
 

 

 
Wednesday, 28 October 2020 
 
To:   Members of the SCR - Local Enterprise Partnership and Appropriate Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby invited to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Local Enterprise 
Partnership  to be held at Virtual Meeting, on: Thursday, 5 November 2020 at 11.00 am 
for the purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 

 

You can view the agenda and papers 
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
or use a smart phone camera 
and scan the QR code: 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


 

 

Member Distribution 
 
James Muir (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Nigel Brewster (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Professor Chris Husbands Representative for Higher Education 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Karen Beardsley Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Angela Foulkes Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Cathy Travers Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Joe Chetcuti Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Tanwer Khan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Bill Adams TUC Representative 
Michael Faulks Co-opted LEP Board Member 
Paul Leedham Co-Opted LEP Board Member 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Professor Dave Petley University of Sheffield 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE SCR Mayoral Combined Authority 
Councillor Julie Dore Sheffield City Council 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC 
 



 

 

 
SCR - Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

  
 

Thursday, 5 November 2020 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue: Virtual Meeting 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  Mr J Muir 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 In relation to any agenda item 

 In relation to any activity since the last 
formal meeting 

 In relation to any forthcoming activity 
 

Mr J Muir  

3.   Notes of Last Meeting  
 

Mr J Muir 5 - 12 

Strategic Development 
 

4.   Renewal Action Plan Update  Mr Felix 
Kumi-Ampofo 

13 - 20 

5.   SEP Consultation  Mr Felix 
Kumi-Ampofo 

21 - 144 

6.   The Nuclear sector and opportunities in South 
Yorkshire  

Mr Mark 
Lynam, Andy 
Storer and 
Richard 
Deakin 

145 - 150 

7.   Programme Approvals  Ms Sue 
Sykes 

151 - 154 

Governance 
 

8.   Recruitment of Private Sector LEP Board 
Members  

Dr D Smith 155 - 160 

For Information 
 

9.   Chief Executive's Update  
 

Dr D Smith 161 - 162 

10.   Mayoral Update  Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

163 - 164 

Date of next meeting: Thursday, 14 January 2021 at 11.00 am 
At:11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



This page is intentionally left blank



ALISCR - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 10 SEPTEMBER 2020 AT 11.00 AM 
 
VIRTUAL MEETING 
 

 

 
Present: 
 
James Muir (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Professor Chris Husbands Representative for Higher Education 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Angela Foulkes Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Bill Adams TUC Representative 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Professor Dave Petley University of Sheffield 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE Barnsley MBC 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Reserve) Sheffield City Council 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
  
Dr Dave Smith Chief Executive SCR Executive Team 
Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive SCR Executive Team 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 

Officer 
SCR Executive Team 

Mark Lynam Director of Transport, Housing 
and Infrastructure 

SCR Executive Team 

Daniel Wright Head of Communications & 
Marketing 

SCR Executive Team 

Colin Blackburn Assistant Director - Housing, 
Infrastructure and Planning 

SCR Executive Team 

Andy Gates Assistant Director - Strategic 
Corporate Affairs 

SCR Executive Team 

Felix Kumi-Ampofo Assistant Director Policy and 
Assurance 

SCR Executive Team 

Gareth Morgan Senior Business Development 
Manager 

SCR Executive Team 

Sue Sykes Assistant Director - Programme 
and Performance Unit 

SCR Executive Team 

  
Guests in Attendance 
 
Andrew Shirt (Minute Taker)   
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Apologies: 
 
Nigel Brewster Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Laura Bennett Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Owen Michaelson Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Tanwer Khan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alison Kinna Co-Optee LEP Member 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE SCR Mayoral Combined Authority 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Julie Dore Sheffield City Council 
Steve Davenport SCR Executive Team 
 
 
1 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.   

 
Apologies for absence were noted as above.   
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
 

 None noted.   
 

3 Notes of Last Meeting 
 

 The notes of the previous meeting were agreed to be an accurate record. 
 

4 AMRC Development Plan 
 

 A report and presentation was delivered to provide the Board with outline plans 
for the development of the AMRC.   
 
The Board was reminded that the University of Sheffield had been a key 
stakeholder in the development of the SEP, especially around the focus on 
innovation. Through analysing the evidence for the SEP, it was clear that the 
LEP needed to ensure that a much wider set of businesses, supply chains and 
SMEs benefit from innovation. To boost productivity and accelerate the pace of 
growth, a greater focus on translational research is required. The benefits of 
this approach will only be realised if all partners work together to foster a 
culture of innovation, at scale, across the city region.  
 
The Board noted that the MCA/LEP was working with MIT to develop the 
entrepreneurial ecosystem in South Yorkshire to enable the growth that the 
economy needs. The collaboration and focus of the MIT approach had been 
incorporated into the AMRC’s new strategy.  
 
Steve Foxley, Director of the AMRC delivered a presentation which provided 
background information and achievements made during Chapter 1 of the 
AMRC (2000 – 2019) where the AMRC’s main purpose had been to “create 
sustainable wealth for all”.   
 

Page 6



 

In developing an updated Strategy for the AMRC (Chapter 2, 2020-2030),   the 
Board were provided details of the inclusive and transparent consultation 
process which had been undertaken to develop the updated Strategy.  
 
The purpose of Chapter 2, would be focused upon we “make” things better: 

 By creating sustainable wealth for all; 

 By always looking ahead; 

 By leading manufacturing towards a smart, sustainable and resilient future; 
and  

 By being disruptive.  
 
The Board were provided with details of the AMRC’s unique selling points, 
which included its proven track record of regeneration, creating eco systems 
and communities, taking a lead, taking a risk and by seeing things others don’t.   
 
The goals of AMRC in Chapter 2 were presented and noted as follows: 
1. To become the UK’s first fully connected, open access digital 

manufacturing testbed for any sector.   
2. Create a world leading UK Circular Factory Demonstrator and Testbed.  
3. Support global zero carbon goals – develop whole product lifecycle 

capabilities for future propulsion systems (hydrogen, high power density 
battery, bio-fuels.  

4. Deliver a step change in productivity: 
i) By ensuring collectively with our partners that 75% of MRLG projects 

make tangible impact to production.   
ii) By levelling up the productivity in the North; regenerating other forgotten 

northern towns.  
iii) By improving UK manufacturing resilience and thereby also improving 

productivity.   
 
The Board were provided with the Strategy Focus Areas to be included in 
AMRC Chapter 2.  This included details of work post Covid-19, the Core 
Strategy (where the AMRC assign 70% of its resources, efforts, funding and 
management time) and details on the Adjacent / Transformational Strategy.  
 
The Chair asked if a summary note could be produced and circulated to the 
Board after today’s meeting setting out how high value manufacturing catapult 
systems work in the UK.  ACTION: D Smith   
 
D Fell noted that aviation was a key focus for the AMRC.  He asked if there 
would be further opportunities for the AMRC to collaborate with Doncaster 
Sheffield Airport (DSA), who’s future growth was a key priority contained in the 
SEP.   
 
S Foxley replied that there were natural links between DSA and the AMRC in 
relation to key manufacturing, engineering and its work on bio-fuels. 
 
The Board discussed SME engagement and how the City Region could help  
AMRC businesses access consultancy services and business support.  It was 
noted that there needed to be a joined-up approach for this area of work to be 
successful.   
 

Page 7



 

Councillor Iqbal asked if a briefing note could be produced and circulated to the 
Board with regards to how supply chain SME engagement will work.  
 
The Board discussed transport connectivity issues to the AMRC site.  It was 
highlighted this was a particular issue for young people living in Barnsley who 
were currently unable to access training and employment opportunities at the 
AMRC, due to poor transport links.   
 
S Foxley replied that a 5G bid would be a fundamental enabler for improving 
transport connectivity in the City Region.    
 
D Petley provided assurances that the University of Sheffield was fully 
committed to the AMRC and its training centre.  The University of Sheffield 
were fully aware of trickle-down, which had been considered and discussed at 
the University of Sheffield’s Executive Board.   
 
The Board agreed that further discussions were needed with AMRC to 
addressed LEP resources which would enable the AMRC to make a footprint 
across the City Region.   
 
The Board suggested that, to make the AMRC more visible, representatives 
from the AMRC should arrange to visit the four local authorities.  Councillor 
Iqbal stated that AMRC representatives would be more than welcome to attend 
Sheffield’s Business Recovery Group.    
 
The Board received assurances from S Foxley that a Strategy was currently 
being developed which looked at succession planning, gender, equality and 
diversity and leadership opportunities for female employees at the AMRC.   
 
The Chair thanked Steve Foxley for delivering an interesting and informative 
presentation.  He asked that Steve be invited to a future LEP Board meeting to 
update Members on Chapter 2 progress.   
 
The Board also requested that the Head of Training at the AMRC be invited to 
attend a future meeting.   
 
The Board further agreed that it would be helpful to have a discussion at a later 
date around the AWRC.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Board noted and discussed the progress made in 
developing the direction of the AMRC and its relationship with the SEP 
priorities. 
 

5 Renewal Action Plan 
 

 A report was presented to provide the Board with an update on the SCR 
Renewal Action Plan.   
 
The Board was reminded that the SCR Renewal Action Plan (RAP) was 
approved by the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) on 27 July 2020, following 
endorsement by the LEP Board.  
 

Page 8



 

The RAP focuses on three high-level objectives:  

 People - we will invest to ensure local people have the opportunity to 
develop their skills, and to find, stay and progress in work. 

 Employers - We will invest to ensure employers can survive, adapt and 
thrive.  

 Places - We will invest to create jobs and thriving places, in a way that 
reduces inequality and enhances our environment.   

 
Following approval by the MCA Board, the Thematic Boards were tasked with 
steering the development of Implementation Plans to deliver the RAP 
objectives and priorities.  
 
The Skills and Employment Board is guiding the development of the People 
Implementation Plan; the Business Growth Board is leading the development of 
the Employers Implementation Plan, and the Housing, Infrastructure and 
Transport Boards are developing implementation plans for the Place 
interventions identified in the RAP and Purpose of Report. 
 
F Kumi-Ampofo provided the Board with a verbal update on progress made to 
date in developing the Implementation Plans and challenges currently faced.   
 
The Board noted that funding availability and capacity to deliver were currently 
presenting a challenge.  Until additional resource from central Government is 
identified, the LEP and MCAs primary focus would need to be on delivering 
those interventions identified for the Relief phase (immediate and short-term) in 
the RAP, and which can be delivered with available resources. 
 
The Board noted that the RAP Implementation Plans would be presented to the 
LEP and MCA Boards in November for approval and delivery would begin as 
soon as funds are available and allocated. Work was currently underway to 
secure more funds to deliver more of the RAP and the draft SEP.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Board noted the progress made and provided any 
comments and suggestions they deem appropriate, on how the Renewal Action 
Plan should be implemented. 
 

6 Business Development Pipeline of Schemes 
 

 A report and presentation was delivered to provide Members with an overview 
of the project pipeline in development; including indigenous business projects 
to support the growth of established South Yorkshire businesses and new 
investment projects from outside the Region and the UK.  
 
The report also provided the rationale for the approach and considered what 
needed to be developed in order to secure both these investments and 
stimulate further opportunities.   
 
G Morgan delivered a presentation which informed the Board that there were 
currently 29 live new Inward Investment projects in the pipeline. These 
investment projects had a value of £760 million and were forecast to create 
6000 jobs in the region over the next few years if all are landed and 
successfully delivered.   

Page 9



 

 
The Board recommended that a targeted and systematic Strategy be 
developed to engage companies to invest in the City Region both in the short 
and long term.  The Board considered that there was a need to attract other 
investors to create a cluster effect.   
 
The Chair requested that future LEP Board agendas contain a standing item to 
provide the Board with updates on the pipeline of business growth schemes.  
ACTION: E Hickey  
 
The Board agreed that they would discuss indigenous businesses at a future 
meeting.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Board considered and discussed the approach to the 
development of the business growth pipeline. 
 

7 Local Growth Fund (LGF) Programme 
 

 NB. AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, THE BOARD WAS NO LONGER 
QUORATE.  
 
A report was presented to provide an update on the current LGF programme 
position and recommends selection of one scheme onto the LGF Programme in 
order that a Full Business Case may be developed. 
 
The current programme position was noted as follows:  

 £128.6m of projects have now completed.  

 £193.7m of projects are currently in delivery.  

 £5m has been approved for projects which are in the process of satisfying 
conditions prior to contract.  

 
Cumulatively this gave a total commitment of £327.3m. In addition, there was a 
ringfenced scheme within the programme pipeline totalling a further £40.1m. 
 
The Board was asked to consider giving preliminary approval for Company 
0208 to enter into the LGF Programme to develop a Full Business Case.  
 
The Board was informed that Company 0208 was seeking c£130k support from 
the LEP with regard to its growth plans including additional jobs and relocation 
from out of area into Barnsley.  
 
The total cost of the project was £665k and the scheme would create 10-15 
new FTE jobs. In order to evaluate the proposal and consider its value to the 
economy against any public sector investment the company would need to be 
adopted into the pipeline of the LGF programme.   
 
The Board gave its preliminary approval for Company 0208 to enter into the 
LGF Programme to develop a Full Business Case. 
 
It was noted that approval would also be sought from Board Members 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton, Mayor Ros Jones, Mayor Dan Jarvis and 
Councillor Chris Read.   

Page 10



 

 
RESOLVED – That the Board gave its preliminary approval for Company 0208 
to enter into the LGF Programme to develop a Full Business Case. 
 

8 MCA Thematic Boards 
 

 A report was submitted to update Members of the proposed changes to the 
MCA Thematic Board arrangements. 
 
The Board noted that the proposed new operating model would be based on 
the principle of the Thematic Board Co-chairs from the LEP and MCA, 
supported by cabinet members from the Districts, with Chief Executives 
providing advice to the Co-chairs.  
 
Each Board will own and lead on a policy theme and will be supported by MCA 
Officers in order to shape, craft and direct positions early and in advance of 
formal decision making. 
 
The proposed new Thematic Board structure and membership of each 
Thematic Board was set of out paragraphs 2.2 and 2.3 of the report. 
 
Paragraph 2.4 of the report set out the initial LEP Board 
representation/Membership.  It was noted that the MCA Meeting on the 27th 
September would determine the SCR Leader and Chief Executive 
representation.   
 
The Board discussed the proposals and a consensus was reached that, the 
new Thematic Boards should not meet in the public domain and continue to 
hold meetings in private.   
 
In the interests of openness and transparency, the Board agreed that the 
publication of agendas and minutes of the new Thematic Boards should 
continue to be published on the SCR website.   
 
The Board considered that the frequency of Thematic Board meetings should 
be determined by each Board’s Co-Chairs.   
 
New LEP Board Members who were currently not assigned to a Thematic 
Board requested that they be kept up to date informally on the work of each 
Thematic Board’s progress. 
 
RESOLVED – That Board Members noted the proposed changes to the MCA 
Thematic Boards and provided comments on the proposals. 
 

9 Mayoral Update 
 

 A report was presented to provide Members with an update on key Mayoral 
activity relating to the economic agenda. 
 
Updates were provided on: 

 The COVID pandemic and adapting to our ‘new normal’. 

 The South Yorkshire Devolution Deal now being enshrined in law. 

Page 11



 

 Securing additional powers and resources to deliver the Renewal Action 
Plan and build back better, and 

 Details on a new Tree Planting Partnership. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board noted the update. 
 

10 Chief Executive's Update 
 

 A report was presented to provide Members with a general update on activity 
being undertaken by the LEP outside of the agenda items under discussion. 
 
Updates were provided on: 

 The Strategic Economic Plan and Recovery Plan Consultation. 

 The Skills Advisory Network. 

 LEP Board recruitment. 

 The Comprehensive Spending Review, and 

 The Covid Economic Response - Business Group.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Board noted the update.   
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The SCR Renewal Action Plan (RAP) provided the basis for the MCA’s submission to the 
Government’s 2020 Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR); providing a formal request 
for additional revenue funding for the next three years and additional capital funding for 
the next four years. The Government has since announced that the 2020 CSR has been 
abandoned due to the Covid pandemic and that a one year settlement will be announced 
in due course. 
 

 1.2 The Thematic Boards have all considered how the agreed priorities in the RAP should be 
implemented and which interventions can be delivered.  This paper provides an update on 
the progress made to date and the interventions which require immediate support.  
  

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 The Skills and Employment Board has guided the development of the People 
Implementation Plan; the Business Recovery and Growth Board has led the development 
of the Employers Implementation Plan; and the Housing and Infrastructure and Transport 
and Environment Boards have developed the implementation plans for the Place 
interventions that are relevant to their respective remits.  
 

 2.2 Each Thematic Board has considered the interventions that require immediate financial 
resource; including the anticipated outputs and outcomes for each intervention, the 
investment required from the MCA, and the use of new Government initiatives such as the 

Purpose of Report 

This paper presents an update on the SCR Renewal Action Plan.  

Thematic Priority 

Cross-cutting across all six thematic priorities. 

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be made available under the SCR Publication Scheme.  

Recommendations 

LEP Board Members are asked to note the progress made and provide any comments and 
suggestions they deem appropriate, on how the Renewal Action Plan should be implemented. 

5th November 2020 

RENEWAL ACTION PLAN UPDATE 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

Getting Building Fund, Housing Fund (Brownfield) and Emergency Active Travel Fund.  
The priority interventions are detailed in Annex A.  
 
It is worth noting here, that as this crisis has evolved and Government funded 
interventions are being announced regularly, the proposed interventions in the RAP have 
also progressed and been adapted accordingly. This is particularly relevant in the People 
focused interventions which have been continuously modified to respond to the raft of 
central government announcements. 
 

 2.3 The key interventions that have been identified to be progressed immediately, using 
current resource are summarised below. Please note that these do not represent the sum 
total of interventions under development. Instead these are the first in a sequence of 
interventions selected on the basis of impact, cost and deliverability. More interventions 
are being developed and will be shared with the board in future meetings. 
  

 2.4 People 
On 30th October, the Employment and Skills Board considered a set of proposals, and 
endorsed two key interventions that could be delivered immediately through utilisation of 
Gainshare resources: 
 

• Enhanced Apprenticeship Training Agency/Broker (EATA) – this would 
create an Aprenticeship Hub for South Yorkshire to increase the volume of new 
apprenticeship starts and completions, particularly for 16-18 year olds and growth 
sectors.  The hub would also potentially act as an employer of apprentices to 
reduce the risk for businesses who want an apprentice but who are unable to 
employ them in the current climate. 

• Kickstart South Yorkshire 25+ - this would assist economically inactive adults 
aged over 25 years to access training and employment by providing them with 
job placements.  The current national Kickstart scheme is restricted to individuals 
aged between 16 and 24 years.   

 
 2.5 Employers 

On 21st October, the Business Recovery and Growth Board discussed the draft Employer 
Implementation Plan and the endorsed five priority interventions for immediate delivery: 
 

• SY Business Relief Fund - providing immediate financial support to businesses  

• Advisory and Specialist Support – this would enable more businesses to access 
services and knowledge support from Specialist Advisers to help them to adapt to 
COVID-19.  

• Digital Adoption – this would support businesses in accessing and utilising digital 
technology services in their companies including the provision of training to 
increase digital skills. 

• Supply Chain Development – to map and identify opportunities for businesses to 
enter supply chains and access procurement contracts.  

• Marketing – this would support the production and promotion of positive 
messaging and communications to businesses on the range of initiatives and 
market opportunities available.  

 
 2.6 Places 

Work is underway to develop a prospectus for the South Yorkshire Capital Infrastructure 
Fund. This fund will be deliver a portfolio of inteventions based on the four key areas of 
focus set out in the RAP 

1. Covid-19 spatial adaptation: reconfigure and redevelop urban centres and 
principal towns. 

2. Sustainable Travel: public transport support, cycling and walking investment. 

Page 14



 

3. Shovel-ready decarbonisation investment: investment to accelerate low carbon 
transition. 

4. Shovel-ready infrastructure investment: spades in the ground and cranes in the 
sky. 

 
The objectives of the fund will be aligned with the SEP and RAP (Stronger, Greener, 
Fairer) objectives. The details of this work will be presented to the Board at its January 
2021 meeting.  
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do Less 
until, new funds become available, the MCA will use existing resources to deliver  the 
RAP interventions it is able to fund in order to aid economic recovery from Covid-19.  
However, the LEP and MCA could decide not to act until further funding is secured so that 
more interventions in the RAP can be delivered.  
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
If the proposed interventions in this paper are taken forward, this will use up the 
equivalent of two years Gainshare, at a minimum.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications arising from this paper.  
  

 4.3 Risk Management 
Risks include: 
 

• Failure to adequately prepare for and implement schemes that mitigate the adverse 
impacts of COVID-19 on young people, those employed in lower paid jobs or 
vulnerable sectors and SCR residents who have lost employment. The 
consequences being a significant rise in unemployment, a sustained fall in 
productivity and a prolonged economic recession in the City Region. 

• Failure to adequately prepare schemes to a detailed level of development, that 
evidences their deliverability to support individuals in a timely manner. The 
consequence being the inability to secure additional funding from Government. 

• Failure to demonstrate leadership on the response to COVID-19 to the City Region’s 
businesses and residents. The consequence being adverse publicity or reputational 
damage to the Mayor, the MCA and the LEP. 

 
 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  

There are no equality, diversity and social inclusion implications arising from this paper at 
this stage.  
 
The RAP is focusing on the economic wellbeing of residents in South Yorkshire. Through 
it we are seeking to mitigate against increasing levels of poverty and improve social 
inclusion. Interventions are targeted at vulnerable groups and those individuals who have 
been disproportionately affected by COVID-19.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Communications on the RAP and the RAP Implementation Plans will be delivered across 
a range of channels, including digital, social and traditional media, as detailed in the RAP 
Communication Plan. The LEP and MCA will work with partners and stakeholders to 
deliver these communications.  
 

Page 15



 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Annex A – Thematic Board Priorities for RAP Implementation 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Lyndsey Whitaker 
POST  Senior Economic Policy Manager  

Officer responsible Felix Kumi-Ampofo 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email felix.kumi-ampofo@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
Telephone 0114 220 3445 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 16

mailto:Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Page | 1  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations from Renewal Action Plan 

Implementation working groups for the Employers 
DATE: 5.10.2020 

 

SCR RENEWAL ACTION PLAN  
 

EMPLOYER IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

OCTOBER 2020 

DRAFT 

Page 17



Page | 2  
 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN - SUMMARY OF PROGRAMMES AND INTERVENTIONS  

 

EMPLOYERS 
 

1. Services and knowledge support for COVID-19 adaptation – Specialist Advisors 

Proposed Intervention: Access to services and knowledge support. Access to an expanded in-

house team of specialists within the Growth Hub utilising the ‘Neutral Vendor’ Framework. 

Agreement reached proposing a two-tiered approach 

 Tier one - Provision of additional regional resource into LA areas to provide wrap around 

strategic advice and brokerage support 

 Framework access to specialist advisors – identify and have contracted with a bank of 

specialist providers on a call off basis – to include; HR, Legal, Financial, H&S, QMS, Digital, 

others as identified. 
 

2. Digital adoption and upskilling for our organisations – Digital Upskilling and Tech Adoption 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of support for businesses looking to adopt new technology and 

upskill workforce around digital and technology adoption and a gateway for tech starts and scale 

ups to the best tailored provision and access to investment. 

3. Backing employers to accelerate growth and deliver a job led recovery: Flexible investment 

and recapitalisation  

 

 Relief Grant 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of COVID Relief Grants to SCR business with the primary focus of 

safeguarding employment within the context of our Jobs First recovery.  

 Flexible investment and recapitalisation – Capital Fund Grant 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of project grant funding in the range of £15,000 - £250,000 to 

SCR indigenous businesses with the primary focus of safeguarding employment within the context 

of our Jobs First recovery and supporting growth of businesses during the recovery phase.  

 Repayable Loan 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of repayable loan funding in the range of £5,000 - £100,000 to 

SCR businesses with the primary focus of safeguarding employment within the context of our Jobs 

First recovery and supporting growth of businesses during the recovery phase. 

 Equity Fund 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of equity funding to early stage businesses via 3 seed funding 

products.  

o Angel Co-investment Fund 

o Co-investment pre-Seed Fund 

o Co-investment seed fund incorporating early stage scalable businesses 

 

Page 18



Page | 3  
 

 Employer leadership support 

Proposed Intervention: Supporting and developing the capability and experiences of leadership 

and management teams. There is much economic research that suggests the nature of leadership 

in a place can have profound effects on regional outcomes. 

o Leadership coaching and mentoring 

o Peer to peer support 

o Non exec access and support 

o Formal training support 

 

4. Supply chain and procurement support 

Proposed Intervention: Provision of a regional wide supply chain programme, focussed on 

opportunity development - capability building and regional mapping.  

 

PEOPLE 

Interventions under development 
Early Intervention Support Pilot To provide early intervention support for individuals receiving support from 

mainstream employment services. Focused on whether early referral to support for those with complex 

needs reduces incidence of long-term unemployment. Also, whether providing a co-ordinated local 

approach reduces welfare benefits and other service dependence. 

 

Full Level 2 or Full Level 3 qualifications -Take up is very low across the SCR and the focus would be to link 

the qualifications to occupations in growth sectors. Or people who need to upskill or reskill due to the Covid 

pandemic and require a second Full Level 2 or Level 3 to enable them to access new opportunities in growth 

sectors.  

 

Apprenticeship Advance - Allow pooling of transferred apprenticeship levy funding as already available to 

the West Midlands MCA, the establishment of new ATAs to support SME take up of apprenticeships, and 

an employer incentive scheme to stimulate demand in key skill gap disciplines.  

 

Supporting our young people to progress into work or education - Advanced Economy Institute with a Hub in 

Sheffield with spokes in Doncaster, Rotherham and Barnsley to provide a seamless approach to skill 

development across the city region. Linked to shortage of technical and professional skills at level 4 & 5 

 

Disadvantaged Learner Pilot -Deliver and test a pilot programme of specialist employment and skills support 

for learners in ‘alternative provision’, including those within the existing Care Leaver pathway to increase 

the number of most vulnerable young people aged 19-24 participating in education, training or 

employment.  

 

Closing the Digital Divide - Deliver Community Digital Skills Hubs to improve the number of South Yorkshire 

residents accessing and developing digital skills  

 

ESF – European Social Fund projects are being delivered across the SCR, many supporting the RAP. A 

response has been provided to the ESF Reserve Fund Call. Identifying and securing sufficient local match 

funding, will be a challenge. The Board may want to consider how the MCA engages with national 

Government and how we might prioritise funding within SCR, particularly given the level of disadvantage 

that still exists. Five interventions, fully aligned with the RAP, have been proposed for the ESF call and are 

set out below: 

Page 19



Page | 4  
 

 Reducing youth unemployment and inactivity in Sheffield City Region LEP Area; 

 Improving existing workforce digital skills and Business Productivity Levels; 

 Overcoming Barriers to Work – Digital Inclusion; 

 Existing Workforce Progression / Productivity / Underemployment / Career Change; 

 Job Creation and Skilling the Unemployed. 

 

PLACE 
RAP interventions are being delivered via programme like Getting Building Fund, Housing Fund 

(Brownfield), Active Travel Emergency Fund and Transforming Cities Fund. Additionally, work is 

underway to develop a prospectus for the MCA Capital Programme. This programme will be the 

means by which all future place based infrastructure projects are developed approved and 

delivered. 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 Following agreement of the draft SEP at the LEP Board (5th March), and the Boards 
agreement to commence public consultation, the consultation began on the 3rd August 
and was open for 6 weeks. The delay in commencing the consultation from the decision 
date was as a result of the national lockdown decision and the requirement to commence 
activity on a Renewal Action Plan. 
 

 1.2 This paper summarises for members the comments received as part of the consultation 
and presents a final version of the SEP for approval.  
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 Following the 6 week period of public consultation, over 800 individual comments were 
received from the general public, voluntary sector, businesses and Local Government. 
The comments were broadly supportive, with several useful suggestions, clarifications 
and additions recommended. Following detailed consideration of the consultation 
responses a revised SEP has been developed reflecting the comments received. 
 

 2.2 All comments received were categorised and responded to. Consultation responses 
varied in length from several pages to short comments. A presentation will be delivered to 
LEP Board Members to present the comments received. 
 

Purpose of Report 

This paper presents an update on the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP hereafter) following consultation  

Thematic Priority 

Cross-cutting across all six thematic priorities. 

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be made available under the MCA Publication Scheme.  

Recommendations  

LEP Board Members are asked to note the consultation responses and changes made and to adopt 
the Strategic Economic Plan. 

5th Novemvber 2020 

SEP Consultation 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

 2.3 The web-consultation asked respondents to rate (using a likeart scale) whether they 
agreed or disagreed with the following statements about the SEP: 

• The focus on three key areas of growth, inclusion and environmental sustainability 

• The ambition to channel resources into those opportunities with the potential to 
deliver the most improvement to the lives of our people, rather than spreading our 
focus across a wider range of projects 

• A desire to blend growth with prioritisation on fairness and inclusion – even if this 
compromises the rate at which our economy grows 

• A focus on those businesses that have the most potential to grow 

• Championing vocational educational opportunities, and 

• Protecting our environment should be a key focus of our economic plan 
 
Responses to these questions showed strong support for the SEP’s ambitions and focus 
with between 60% and 91% of respondents agreeing or strongly agreeing with these 
statements. 
 

 2.4 The longer responses received, demonstrated further support to these ambitions and 
focus.  
 
Categorisation of these comments showed that: 

• over 270 comments (35%) either directly or indirectly agreed with SEP ambitions  

• over 150 responses (19%) suggested changes that have been actioned in more 
detail; this included wording changes, clarifications, suggested examples and 
emphasis changes.  

• more substantive comments around the role of environment, culture and health in 
the SEP and elements of inclusive growth and innovation have also been 
addressed, where feasible.  

 
Of the responses received, 46% required no immediate action due to: 

• the detail being captured in implementation plans or other SCR LEP and MCA 
publications; 

• comments being broader than the LEP’s remit (e.g. Government policy); 

• the comments not focusing on the new SEP but being a retrospective comment on 
the approach agreed by the LEP to date (e.g. suggesting a different focus to that 
of inclusion, sustainability and growth); 

• Some responses were contradictory or making a broader point including against 
the scientific basis for a climate emergency. 

 
 2.5 Having undertaken the detailed consultation, and reviewed all responses, a final draft 

SEP has been produced and is included as Appendix A to this paper for approval to be 
adopted. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do nothing or do less  
The previous SEP was a 10 year plan and so a revision could have been delayed or could 
have simply updated the targets / metrics. This option was discounted due to a desire to 
consider growth in the context of the wider policy objectives of inclusion and sustainability.  
The SEP is a non-statutory document and therefore did not require formal consultation. 
This was discounted as widespread engagement was the preferred model in the 
development stage and also it is poor practice to miss out the consultation phase. 
  

 3.2 Different approach 
The LEP could have chosen to follow a different economic growth model, but in early 
discussions the focus on the three pillars were agreed. 
 

Page 22



 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
The SEP will help to secure additional funding from Government including the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund. The costs associated with the completion of the SEP including research 
have been accounted for within the existing approved budget.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no legal implications arising from this paper.  
  

 4.3 Risk Management 
A senior officer has been appointed to project manage the LIS and SEP programme, this 
is to ensure that activities are managed in accordance with the milestone plan, and 
external risks to delivery are mitigated. A residual risk is that if the work is not completed, 
the LEP and the MCA Boards will have a weaker strategic direction and reduced ability to 
secure additional funding.  
 
The LEP paused development of its local industrial strategy reflecting decision making 
delays from UK Government on this agenda. Major risks to the SEP are largely external to 
the LEP (e.g. current public sector financing) and reflect current socio-economic 
conditions as well as the limitations of funding for LEPs and MCAs (availability of funding 
for SEP is contingent on Government awarding funding to local areas). 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The SEP is focusing on the economic wellbeing of residents in South Yorkshire. Through 
it we are seeking to mitigate against increasing levels of exclusion and improve economic 
conditions for all. Inclusive growth is central to the agenda and the strategy considers all 
aspects of society to understand where opportunities are not available or where particular 
barriers are preventing residents from accessing opportunities. Further consideration of 
inclusion will occur through review from Sheffield Hallam’s Centre for Regional Economic 
and Social Research. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 A detailed engagement plan was developed. All partners and stakeholders have been 
engaged in the development of the SEP and had the opportunity to review and comment 
on draft docments.  
 
BEIS and HMCLG have been regularly engaged. 
Once adopted, the vision, objectives and priorites in the SEP will be communicated widely 
through all the channels. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Slides on Consultation 
 6.2 Final SEP 

 
REPORT AUTHOR  Jonathan Guest  
POST  Senior Economic Policy Manager  

Officer responsible Felix Kumi-Ampofo 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email felix.kumi-ampofo@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
Telephone 0114 220 3445 

Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
Other sources and references: 

 

Page 23

mailto:Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



SEP CONSULTATION

SCR Policy team

economy@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Sheffield City Region 
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
United Kingdom
S1 2BQ

5th November 2020

P
age 25



Consultation Responses

Categorised: Changes made

Key Points
LEP Board

PROCESS

P
age 26



RESPONSES

P
age 27



0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Focusing on three key areas of growth, inclusion and environmental
sustainability

Channelling our resources into those opportunities with the potential to
deliver the most improvement to the lives of our people, rather than

spreading our focus across a wider range of projects

Prioritise fairness and inclusion – even if this compromises the rate at which 
our economy grows

Focusing our efforts on those businesses that have the most potential to
grow

Championing vocational educational opportunities within South Yorkshire

Protecting our environment should be a key focus of our economic plan

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongle Agree

P
age 28



FURTHER THOUGHTS ON HOW YOU THINK WE SHOULD DRIVE SUSTAINABLE AND INCLUSIVE 
GROWTH.

P
age 29



ADDRESSING COMMENTS

P
age 30



ADDRESSING COMMENTS
⎻ Almost 800 individual comments from online form, emails and written feedback. 

⎻ Consultation responses varied in length from several pages to short comments.

⎻ All comments have been categorised.

⎻ 274 (35%) showing direct or indirect agreement with SEP ambition. 

⎻ 149 (19%) of responses with suggested changes that were actioned in more detail:

⎻ Many minor changes (e.g. wording);

⎻ Inclusion of examples; 

⎻ Clarification of points;

⎻ Targets; and,

⎻ Emphasis in certain sections.

⎻ Other comments (46%) are a mix of detail for implementation, wider than the SEP and SCR, 
points of detail or have been rejected because of line and agreed position by LEP.

⎻ Several contradictory comments (e.g. climate change denial vs enhanced focus upon climate 
emergency). Not balancing but actioned in line with agreed position by LEP so far. 

P
age 31



CHANGES MADE AND CONSIDERATIONS
1. Additional “section”

⎻ Health in SEP

2. Stronger emphasis and wording changes: 

⎻ Culture

⎻ Role for environment 

⎻ Climate emergency vs climate change

3. Alignment with RAP:

⎻ Stronger, fairer and greener

4. Place based examples:

⎻ Separate document

5. Communications

⎻ Engagement with SCR

⎻ Sharing what the SEP is with different groups

P
age 32



THANK YOU

SCR Policy team

economy@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Sheffield City Region 
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
United Kingdom
S1 2BQ

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Our Strategic  
Economic Plan  
2020-2040

Page 35



2

Contents

Executive Summary	 3

Foreword	 7 
Local Enterprise Partnership Chair  
& Sheffield City Region Mayor	

Introduction	 8

Our Economic Strategy 2020-2040

1.	 The Vision for 2040	 10

2.	 Vibrant and Resilient Places	 18

3.	 Innovation, Enterprise and Growth	 26

4.	 Skills, Education & Employment	 40

5.	 Clean Energy & Net-Zero	 46

6.	 Transport & Mobility	 54

7.	 A Digital Future	 62

8.	 Land, Housing & Built Environment	 67

9.	 Outcomes, Benefits and Financial Implications	 75

Appendix A	 86 
Summary of Evidence Base

Appendix B	 93 
Vibrant and Resilient Places (Detail)

Page 36



Our approach is underpinned by a simple vision:

The Sheffield City Region MCA will grow an economy that works for  
everyone. We will develop inclusive and sustainable approaches  
that build on our innovation strengths and embrace the UK’s  
4th Industrial Revolution to contribute more to UK prosperity  
and enhance quality of life for all.

The Opportunity
The SCR economy has huge untapped potential. But it faces a productivity challenge. 
Too few of our businesses innovate or operate in national and global supply chains. Too 
few of our people have the right qualifications to get into, stay and move on in work and 
our transport system and urban centres require improvement to match the level of our 
ambition.

Because of these challenges, not enough of our people fulfil their potential.  
Yet, the same capabilities that put the city-region at the heart of the world’s first industrial 
revolution give us the opportunity to be at the centre of the next.  
This is because the world needs new:

•	 Approaches to traditional ways of working across our economy.
•	 Ways of transporting people quickly, efficiently and safely.
•	 Ways of getting our population healthy. 
•	 Manufacturing and engineering processes.
•	 Ways of building; designing, and quality places to live.
•	 Capabilities to transition to a net-zero carbon economy
•	 Methods of energy production and the means to scale them.
•	 Products and materials that are lighter, stronger and which use less energy 

in their production and their use.

These are the opportunities that our research base,  
our institutions, our businesses and our people  
are superbly placed to take advantage of.  
This Strategic Economic Plan sets out what we intend 
to prioritise to make this happen.

Our Vision

3Page 37



A focus on growth,  
inclusion and sustainability
In the new landscape after Covid-19, we will not pursue growth at any cost.  We will prioritise 
investment in generating growth that is stronger, greener and fairer. 

If we get this right:

1.	 We will be a net contributor to the national economy, retaining talent rather 
than exporting it and attracting new investors to locate in the region;

2.	 Our people will be healthier, better qualified and better able to access good 
opportunities;

3.	 We will have a high-quality natural environment which will contribute to an 
improved quality of life.

4.	 We will lead the world in testing, developing and commercialising ideas 
emerging from our research community and businesses;

5.	 We will have vibrant town and city centres with rich sporting, cultural and 
leisure offers attracting people and visitors from across the country.

The purpose of this plan is to point the way to a prosperous, inclusive and zero carbon future.

We have set out how we will build and sustain a competitive economy that unlocks 
prosperity for our residents, serves our communities, and is resilient in the face of global 
and national economic and climate headwinds. So, our residents, businesses and all our 
communities are at the heart of this plan.
 
Across the SCR, it is in Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and 
Sheffield where the economy plays out – where people 
work, and where communities benefit from growth. Our 
priorities and interventions show how, together, we can 
create a stronger, greener and fairer economy, which  
benefits everyone and protects our environment.

4 Page 38



How will we do this?
We will build our innovation capacity and 
capabilities, facilitating the incubation of 
ideas, creation of new businesses,  
and helping them grow and access new 
markets.

We will build on our successful Advanced 
Manufacturing Innovation District. We 
will enable the development of emerging 
clusters and maximise opportunities 
in modern methods of construction, 
intelligent mobility, lightweighting, clean 
energy, digital and health. We will open 
up our business base and supply chains 
so that we become more outward facing  
and international.

The SCR will be a home to a world 
class technical education system which 
focuses upon quality and progression 
and supports talent to flourish here. We 
recognise that we need to support our 
people so that they can reach their full 
potential. Also, we will deliver an all-age 
careers, advice and guidance service 
that meets the needs of our people 
and industry and enable our people 
to access training, upskill or reskill and 
progress in work. Finally, we will work 
with employers to ensure our people 
are supported to (re)train, upskill and 
progress in work and, Post-Covid-19, that 
the health and wellbeing of our people 
at work is always paramount.

We are going to... 

secure the future for the  
next generation – nurturing our economy 
whilst protecting people and the 
environment, generating our own clean 
energy, reaching net-zero emissions by 
2040 and becoming self-sustaining.

invest in our urban centres,  
in arts and culture and our natural capital.

build our transport infrastructure – so 
people and products can move and trade 
around our region, nation and the globe 
with ease.

invest in a zero-carbon  
public transport system with cycling and 
walking central to how we get about our 
region.

make homes and land available 
for families and businesses to locate and 
grow here, maximising our outstanding 
natural environment and excellent  
quality of life.

make every penny count.  
We will invest where we see social value; 
where we can create good jobs, grow 
businesses that help turn around our 
economy, that create opportunities for 
young people and that inspire the next 
generation.

Through this plan, we’re making  
the following commitments.

5Page 39



By 2040 our economy  
will look very different.

Inclusive growth, underpinned by 
productivity gains will drive an 

extra £7.6bn G
VA

33,000 

 A
 Y

EA
R

extra people in  
higher level jobs

People will live longer,  
healthier lives, improving by
for men and women in the SCR at birth.

3 years

Wages will have raised, 
particularly among the  
lowest-paid, by over 

A net zero  
carbon City Region

30,000 

more people with higher  levels 
skills and 9,000  
people fewer with no skills  
or low qualifications. £1,500

Our region’s investment in R&D 
will be trebled, from £323m to 

£1.1bn

6 Page 40



7

Foreword from 
the LEP Chair
James Muir, Chair of the Sheffield  
City Region Local Enterprise  
Partnership Board.

Industrialising innovation and creating 
the skills sets to match are at the 
heart of this Strategic Economic Plan. 
These are the cornerstones in order 
to generate a significant uplift in 
productivity and spread wellbeing 
across as broad a spectrum of the 
Region’s population as possible. Our 
ambition is to make South Yorkshire a 
leading contributor to the 4th Industrial 
Revolution and beyond.

Message  
from the Mayor
Dan Jarvis MP,  
Mayor of the Sheffield City Region

We need to unlock the potential of 
people and businesses across South 
Yorkshire. This Strategic Economic Plan 
provides the blueprint for how we can 
come together to build a stronger, 
greener, fairer, more productive region 
– creating not just a bigger, but a better 
economy for all of us.

Page 41



8

Introduction

This Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) sets out  
what needs to be done to grow the economy and 
transform the lives and wellbeing of our people. It 
focuses on the communities of Barnsley, Doncaster, 
Rotherham, and Sheffield and will inform what we do 
over the next 20 years.

This is an unprecedented period of significant national and global socioeconomic 
change, with new opportunities in products, services, technology, and markets, 
providing potential for economic growth.  
These opportunities sit alongside the need to respond to the climate emergency.

Our people and communities must have the opportunity to benefit from and take 
part in the new economy. This plan sets out how we will respond and ensure they 
can do this in a sustainable way. 

The time is right to deliver an ambitious agenda 
and do things differently.

© Duncan Philpott

Page 42



9

Figure 1: Map of the Sheffield City Region and Neighbouring Local Enterprise Partnerships

 
Source: SCR 2019

Humber

Greater
Lincolnshire

Leeds City Region

Sheffield

Barnsley

Rotherham

Doncaster

Bassetlaw

Bolsover

N.E. Derbyshire

Derbyshire Dales

Chesterfield

Greater 
Manchester

Cheshire &
Warrington

Page 43



10

1.	 The Vision for 2040
Vision

The Sheffield City Region will grow an economy that works for everyone.  
We will develop inclusive and sustainable approaches that build on our innovation strengths and 
embrace the UK’s 4th Industrial Revolution to contribute more to UK prosperity and enhance 
quality of life for all.

Outcomes

1.  �Our increasingly productive workforce and strategic  
investments lead to a growing economy. 

2.  ��Our people are well-connected to new job opportunities,  
with access to progression, supported by affordable living. 

3.  �Healthy, safe, vibrant and green places offer environmental  
resilience alongside a high quality of life offer.

Overarching Policy Objectives

Growth
Growing the economy and enhancing its strength and resilience 

Inclusion
Ensuring that everyone has a fair opportunity to contribute  
to and benefit from economic growth.

Sustainability 
Driving low carbon, green and circular economy opportunities within the economy 
and delivering net-zero emissions.

Page 44



11

1.1 A vision and objectives that 
go beyond GVA

Our first SEP was focused on creating jobs 
and generating GVA. This made sense at that 
time. However, the world has moved on and 
experienced significant disruption. Our vision 
is about creating a stronger, greener and fairer 
future. 

Productivity1 is a strong determinant of quality 
of life and wellbeing. The evidence indicates 
that we must foster a much stronger culture 
of innovation to grow our productivity and 
accelerate the pace of economic growth.

We are building on our long-standing, 
world-famous industrial heritage to exploit 
the opportunities being created by the 4th 
Industrial Revolution (Industry 4.0)2. The time 
is right to deliver this ambitious agenda, 
embracing global changes in the way  
we work, live, and travel. Now is the  
time to do things differently.

Importance of 
Productivity 
When it comes to the economy, 
measuring the right thing matters.  
Productivity is an important measure 
of living standards and wellbeing in 
an economy. It quantifies the value 
that our people and businesses are 
contributing to the economy. SCR’s 
productivity compares unfavourably 
to other UK LEP areas and other post-
industrial regions in Europe.

1SCR’s productivity has increased more quickly in recent years than in some of our peer LEP areas, but there are two important caveats: Firstly, this productivity growth was from a relatively low base; 
and, secondly, this productivity growth has been driven largely by efficiency savings made in processes, rather than through the creation of more productive jobs.
2Industry 4.0 is the next phase in the digitisation of the economy, driven by four disruptions: the rise in data volumes, computational power, and connectivity, new power sources and networks; the 
emergence of analytics and business-intelligence capabilities; new forms of human-machine interaction and augmented-reality systems;  
and improvements in transferring digital instructions to the physical world.

Page 45



12

1.2 Growth needs to be 
inclusive and fair

The Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined 
Authority (MCA) is seeking to create inclusive 
economic growth. This approach recognises 
that communities and sectors have specific 
needs or require different interventions, drivers 
and empowerment for communities, local 
businesses and the public sector to enact 
change.

Economic growth does not automatically 
lead to vibrant centres, reductions in poverty, 
or increases in employment and/or earnings 
for low-skilled workers. Our policies and our 
investment decisions must actively make this 
so. 

1.2.1 Tackling health inequalities 

We know that pre- and post-Covid-19, healthy 
people drive healthy economies. Good health 
is an asset that reaps rewards in the workplace 
as it enables people to find and keep jobs, 
gain well-paid employment, improve skills, 
and enjoy a better quality of life. Poor 
health represents a huge cost in lost earning 
potential, lower productivity and tax revenue, 
and expense of public resources, while also 
having a significant impact on individuals and 
communities.
We must maximise the benefits of growth for 
marginalised groups and places, in order to 
reduce social and health inequalities.

Inclusive growth 
Inclusive growth is a model which 
enables as many  people as possible 
to contribute to and benefit from 
prosperity. Inclusive growth is a 
response to the failure of traditional 
approaches, which can focus upon 
high value-added and high-wage 
sectors that are then expected to 
produce wider benefits through 
‘trickle down’.

There are specific inclusion challenges 
for the SCR which include low 
productivity rates, low wages, in-work 
poverty, and a lack of higher-level 
occupations. The inclusive growth 
agenda is fast-moving and requires 
the development  
of bold and innovative strategies and 
a willingness to pilot experimental 
approaches to make a real difference.

Page 46



13

1.3 Growth should  
also support a net-zero carbon 
future

The climate emergency represents the single 
biggest threat to economic stability. 
Its widespread, unprecedented impacts will 
disproportionately burden the poorest and 
most vulnerable people.
Over the past decade, the relationship 
between carbon emissions and economic 
growth appears to be decoupling. 
Furthermore, circular economy approaches 
have become more prominent. This reflects 
economic changes, including a shift from 
carbon-intensive manufacturing to more 
efficient service-based industries, growth of 
green technology sectors, and an increased 
focus on environmental sustainability within 
policy and decision making. 

Health and the SCR 
economy 
Covid-19 has clearly illustrated the  
close relationship between health 
and the economy. The pandemic has 
created further social and economic 
challenges but also opportunities 
to address inequalities, reshape 
the economy and link people to 
opportunity. 

Long-term health conditions often 
lead to economic inactivity. In SCR, of 
those who are economically inactive, 
nearly1 in 3 (53,800 people) are 
inactive due to long-term sickness.  
This is the largest contributor  
to economical inactivity. 

Encouragingly, SCR has a higher 
proportion of economically inactive 
people who want to work: 27% 
compared to 20% nationally. 
This illustrates an aspiration for 
employment and highlights an 
opportunity to widen our labour 
market through tailored and local 
approaches to tackle worklessness 
and health-related absences.

SCR MCA has seen successes such 
as the Working Win trial, where an 
experimental control trial tested a 
new intensive employment support 
service for people, who are living with 
physical or mental ill health.

Page 47



14

1.3.1 Decisions should enhance and protect the 
climate and natural capital

We must seek to mitigate and adapt to the 
climate emergency and enhance our natural 
capital.  A successful transition to a net-zero 
carbon economy is now essential for all 
modern, forward-looking economies and 
is critical for SCR’s growth prospects. The 
transition will unlock numerous opportunities 
and through our business and research 
capabilities we are well placed to play  
a leading role. 

1.3.2 Making bold and innovative decisions 

Innovative approaches to investment can drive 
inclusive growth and create opportunities 
for people and organisations that are often 
excluded from traditional approaches to 
economic development. A fairer distribution 
of innovation needs to consider small 
and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and 
organisations in the Voluntary, Community 
and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector. Innovative 
decision making can also unlock benefits for 
organisations, in terms of providing extra 
capacity, developing new technologies, 
products and processes, leading to additional 
job creation, improved services and provision 
of new products that enhance quality of life. 
Innovation can also help build community 
wealth by generating jobs and developing 
local supply chains.
 

Climate and 
Environmental 
Sustainability
There is overwhelming evidence 
indicating that human activity 
has resulted in a global climate 
emergency which now threatens our 
future and that of generations
to come.

Environmental sustainability is the 
capacity for people to protect and 
enhance the natural environment. Our 
‘stock’ of environmental assets which 
bring benefits to people is known as 
‘natural capital’.

SCR MCA’s plans for environmental 
sustainability will set out a more 
comprehensive vision and set of 
policy actions on the transition to a 
net-zero carbon and climate-resilient 
economy.

Page 48



15

1.4 Growing SCR’s economy 
better – as a system

The economic evidence highlights that there 
are several interrelated factors that directly 
influence and enable innovation, enterprise, 
and growth – the cornerstones of the SCR 
economy. These enablers are skills and 
employability; mobility; digital connectivity; 
clean energy; land assets, housing and the 
built environment; and liveability.

Underpinning these enablers is the importance 
of locally distinctive, accessible and vibrant 
places. Across SCR it is in Barnsley, Doncaster, 
Rotherham, and Sheffield where the economy  
plays out3 – where people work, and where 
communities benefit from growth. Individual 
places have distinctive strengths and these 
need to be capitalised on to ensure that the 
benefits of economic growth reach all parts of 
our City Region.

This SEP provides an opportunity to transform 
the direction of the economy by tackling SCR’s 
systemic and entrenched challenges4. We will 
work together to create a dynamic, inclusive, 
and sustainable economy. We will rise to 
new challenges and spread opportunity and 
prosperity to all our people.

Vibrant and urban centres 
Reinvigorating SCR’s urban centres 
requires the appropriate mix of 
economic, social and environmental 
interventions. Further planning and 
investment in our urban centres 
should recognise their unique 
identities, culture, heritage, and 
creativity whilst also investing in their 
future and safety.

3Our thematic priority areas broadly map across to local authority economic strategies and the drivers of economic and productivity growth
4See Sheffield University’s Productivity Insight Network Productivity synthesis 2019 

Page 49



16

1.5   New ways of working

How we work together matters.  
Transformation and success will require us to 
work differently:

a. �Working together and leading  

Our approach must move  beyond the ‘here 
and now’ concerns that can so easily distract 
attention from longer-term aspirational efforts.
SCR MCA’s leadership will be collaborative and 
outward looking, working together with other 
anchor institutions and areas across the North 
and Midlands.

b. Being innovative in our decision making and 
investments 

Public sector funding and support are 
important drivers of innovation and economic 
growth. Our investment decisions must better 
harness the benefits for local economies, 
(following principles of community wealth 
building. We will work collaboratively 
with partners, stakeholders, and the UK 
Government to attract and leverage private 
sector investment against public sector 
contributions to ensure our funding works 
harder and benefits our businesses, people, 
and communities.

c. Looking outwards to enhance global 
influence and competitiveness 

SCR’s economy is not sufficiently global5. 
Changing this is crucial. Future success 
will stem from our economy being more 
embedded in national and global supply 
chains, and innovation networks. We will be 
more outward looking. 

d. Promoting and projecting a culture  
of proactive excellence and confidence 

We will work proactively to develop a culture 
of excellence and confidence in how we 
project ourselves as a City Region and switch 
from a narrative of comparative regional 
disadvantage to one of excellence and 
confidence. 

e. Highlighting economic distinctiveness 

In this global context, economic success stems 
from being distinctive and from being known 
for our successes. Key to this is ensuring that 
our specialisms form a compelling ‘USP’ and 
that individual and collective branding is 
recognisable and distinctive. This recognition 
attracts and retains talented people, 
investment, and businesses. 

f. Act at the appropriate spatial level  

To deliver our vision, the MCA will be bolder in 
the Northern Powerhouse and within the UK 
Government. At a local level, devolution and 
anchor institution levers will unlock growth.

g. Present a unified position externally 

Working together, we will achieve more than 
the sum of our parts and improve our national 
and international profile. Transformation 
requires considerable political investment to 
turn ambition into reality, utilising existing and 
new knowledge and building on the skills and 
experience of local communities.

h. Involve communities in solution 
development 

Residents, community groups and the 
voluntary sector are major stakeholders. The 
MCA will include, where possible, residents, 
community organisations, and other groups in 
developing interventions and policy.

5The City Region has one of the lowest shares of goods and service exports in England.

Page 50



17

SCR MCA’s sustainability and inclusion plans
both present a set of policies and actions on 
how we are tackling inequality and enabling 
the transition to a net-zero carbon economy.
Alongside these, we also have, or are 
developing, other key strategies and plans 
including our Transport Strategy, Skills 
Strategy, Energy Strategy and International 
Plan. This SEP should, therefore, be considered 
as one of a suite of strategies and plans which 
inform and guide our actions.

1.5.1   Measuring outcomes

What we measure matters. The outcomes we 
seek and indicators that demonstrate progress 
towards delivery will be designed to better 
balance our investment decisions against 
growth, inclusion, and sustainability. A set of 
outcomes and indicators have been developed 
to measure progress. These are presented at 
the end of the document. 

Page 51



2.	 Vibrant and 
Resilient Places 
By harnessing the strengths of SCR’s people 
and places, we will create a stronger, greener 
and fairer City Region where everyone, and
every place, can succeed. The towns of 
Barnsley, Doncaster, and Rotherham, and 
Sheffield’s city centre are well placed to build 
on their current entrepreneurial and creative 
advantages to unleash the full economic 
potential.

18 Page 52



19

2.1 Collaboration and 
maximising opportunities

Barnsley, Rotherham, Doncaster and Sheffield 
are distinct places within the regional 
economy. But we share more than just 
administrative borders. A set of shared themes 
and opportunities characterise the region. 
These include: 

•  Inclusion – Success will be measured by more 
than economic growth. It is essential that we 
integrate as much of our population in our 
economy as possible. This means delivering an 
inclusive economic plan which shapes how all 
partners operate and make decisions. 

•  Health - Covid-19 pandemic has led to a 
sharper and sustained focus on public health. 
We have an opportunity to embed public 
health initiatives and messages to ensure a 
focus on wider determinants of health.

•  Net-Zero Carbon Economy – Development in 
SCR must reflect our shared agendas around 
pursuing a net-zero carbon economy, including 
exploiting the opportunities around public 
transport and active travel.  
SCR MCA will work with partners to unlock 
capabilities and opportunities to drive the net-
zero carbon agenda. 

•  People – All areas across SCR are determined 
to play a role in creating a City Region that 
everyone can be proud of. We will:
- Create employment and develop skills, 
opportunity and foster progression across all 
ages. 
- Support people and businesses to grow and 
flourish with a focus on good jobs and well-
paid work for the future. 
- Harness the determination of our people to 
make communities vibrant  
and confident.
- Attract and retain our skilled and qualified 
people.

•  Transport – It is essential that our 
transport system connects communities to 
opportunities. Our main population centres 
must be  better  connected  to one another 
and to future sites of major employment. This 
provides the opportunity for exploring “15 
minute city” approaches or identifying roles 
within a wider economic system.

•  Greater density, liveability and vibrancy in 
our urban centres – Our urban centres in SCR 
are transforming, and a critical role of the SEP is 
to meet this challenge and future-proof them. 
This means advocating liveability, culture, 
flexibility, and mixed use to ensure that SCR’s 
urban centres are attractive and sustainable. 
We will work with local areas to modernise 
and deliver transformational developments. 
Achieving individual and collective ambitions 
is a crucial element of the place-making 
approach to delivering an inclusive economy.

•  Environment – The natural environment 
is an asset and its importance will grow as 
expectations of safe, liveable, and green spaces 
increase over time. The natural geography of
our local authorities – which share the arterial 
River Don and its tributaries – provides 
opportunities and challenges. SCR MCA will 
work to enhance our natural capital, minimise 
impact, and improve resilience across all local 
areas.
The River Don and its catchment in our region, 
provides a useful starting point for whole 
catchment- based approaches and unlocking 
our natural environment’s potential.

Page 53



20

Barnsley
•  Prioritisation of urban centres

•  �Delivering ambitious  
Local Plans

•  �Improved and greener transport 
connectivity

•  ��Improving adult education and 
developing skills pathways 

•  �Addressing health inequality and 
deprivation

•  �Creating a community-led inclusive 
economy

•  Achieving Net-zero carbon 			
   commitments 

•  �Future proofing the economy 
through investment in digital 
Barnsley

Doncaster
• Improving the prosperity and 
  well- being of people and places 

• Developing a more regenerative  
  place with a circular, decarbonised 
  economy.    

• Developing industry specialisms,   
  green industries, the foundational  
  economy and supporting services.  

• Growing priority areas and investing  
  in housing, infrastructure, local  
  services and public realm 

• Improving digital connectivity 

• Developing an intelligent, greener  
  transport system 

• Improving skills and supporting  
  lifelong learning and creativity.

Page 54



21

Sheffield
•  �Creating an inclusive  

wellbeing economy

•  �Increasing ‘good’ jobs and boosting 
business growth

•  �Supporting the growth of 
productive and competitive 
businesses

•  �Recognising the importance  
of place

•  �Consolidating Sheffield as a Magnet 
City to attract innovators, visitors 
and investment.

•  �Transformed transport connectivity 
linking people to jobs and cities to 
each other.

•  �Housing that provides quality, 
choice and affordability across the 
city

•  �Growing an environmentally 
sustainable, more resilient economy 

Rotherham
•  �High quality housing and 

regeneration 

•  Densification of manufacturing 

•  �Expanding the new manufacturing 
economy to deliver inclusive 
regeneration across the borough

•  �Connecting the town centre to the 
northern, eastern, and southern 
economic corridors 

•  �Enhancing and harnessing green & 
blue infrastructure

•  �Enhance skills development and 
broaden opportunities  
for residents

•  �Develop inclusive growth through 
strengthened local supply chains

Page 55



22

2.2   Shared and distinct cultures 

SCR has outstanding natural, heritage, cultural and artistic assets. It is a City Region that brings 
together strong   and proud communities across both urban and rural settings. Our communities 
have a deep sense of place and identity. We are a region that is proud to play a role on the 
global stage. From the Snooker World Championships at the Crucible to the St Leger Festival in 
Doncaster, we host several national and international events each year that sit alongside industry, 
leading cultural productions and activities. SCR also has a thriving cultural scene, as the birthplace 
for many music bands, the location for world renowned performing arts and a sports scene across 
football, both codes of rugby, swimming, boxing, athletics, cricket, cycling and outdoor sports. 

2.2.1 Why do we need change? 

The contribution of SCR’s creative industries 
to the economy shows that it is significantly 
lower than many other Northern city regions6. 
Available data on visitors and spend suggests 
that South Yorkshire is often overlooked as a 
visitor destination and cultural and creative 
participation is lower, compared to other city 
regions7. Culture, art, heritage, and leisure play 
a fundamental role in the  dynamism of SCR. 
Culture has a significant role in the economy, 
through improving education and wellbeing 
across communities.
The shock from Covid-19 makes this even more 
of an imperative. There are major assets and 
events across South Yorkshire which deserve 
more support and recognition. We will step 
up our offer to improve the wellbeing of our 
people and the attractiveness of our places.

2.2.2 What do we need to do to drive change 
and create growth

SCR needs more recognition of its cultural 
strengths. Many positive economic and social 
benefits can arise from places having a strong 
cultural ‘offer’, and SCR can build on the rich 
cultural assets it already has to realise  
its full potential. Culture-led regeneration 
can generate economic benefits like creating 
employment, stimulating urban centre footfall, 
attracting and retaining inward investment 
and talented individuals, and supporting 
growth in the fast-growing creative sector. 
It can bring wider social benefits too, such 
as developing skills and knowledge of 
residents, and improving health, wellbeing and 
community cohesion.
The visitor economy has the potential  
to be a key driver of the social, cultural, and 
economic life of the city region. As well as 
building on our world-class cultural facilities, 
SCR MCA will invest in our growing nascent 
strengths in local arts, culture, and heritage. 
SCR MCA will establish culture as a strategic 
socio-economic driver. This will be especially 
important as we seek to modernise and 
diversify our vibrant urban centre offer and 
increase civic pride.

“You’ll find jaw-dropping scenery, 
cities steeped in industrial heritage 
and hidden market towns in equal 
measures in South Yorkshire.”
 
 
Visit Britain 2019

6Latest figures from Arts Council and the Great Britain Tourism Survey. Furthermore, funding from national cultural bodies is lower per head than other similar city regions. 
7We see that all four local authorities in the region are below the national average for the size of creative sectors and tourism visits in SCR have been lower than neighbouring metropolitan LEP areas 
for decades. According to national surveys, people in SCR are less likely than the average person in England to have visited a museum, used a public library or indeed had any arts engagement.

Page 56



23

2.2.3 How do we create the transformative change needed?

Collaboration and innovation are needed for investment to unlock SCR’s potential. To help us 
achieve this, we will develop a culture, arts, and heritage investment offer which will focus on the 
following themes:

Boosting Engagement  
To widen the reach of benefits to our entire 
population, SCR MCA will support programmes 
that focus on boosting participation in culture, 
arts, and heritage, targeting the groups not 
currently engaged.

Providing Leadership  
Identifying international examples of best 
practice in developing an arts and cultural 
offer and building strategic partnerships 
with international cultural organisations. This 
includes building on the impact of our assets 
that deserve UK and worldwide recognition 
(e.g. through UNESCO) and positioning SCR 
and individual areas as leaders within their 
distinct heritage, tourism, and cultural offers. 

Unlock Signature Investments  
We will explore the role SCR can play in 
readying sizeable culture, arts, and heritage 
projects for investment, and the potential to 
create a visitor and cultural heritage attraction 
of international repute. This could involve 
scaling up existing assets through finance, 
attracting new  investment and exploring 
other support to boost competitiveness.

Promotion and Branding  
SCR will invest in cultural infrastructure to 
ensure that events, festivals, and projects 
strengthen communities and maximise 
economic opportunities for all. South Yorkshire 
is potentially a world class visitor destination 
with some outstanding assets. SCR MCA 
will work with all local areas to develop a 
joint promotional strategy that reflects our 
strengths and opportunities. This will cement 
SCR as a distinctive place to live, work and play.

Securing Investment  
Through our relationships, we will encourage 
the business community to become patrons of 
culture, arts and heritage, encouraging them 
to invest whilst exploring mechanisms that 
encourage greater community participation.

Championing South Yorkshire’s Assets
The talent and variety of arts, music, heritage, 
performing arts, sport and other cultural 
activities deserves increased recognition. 
SCR will champion and promote these assets 
through a variety of channels including within 
national Government, across the media and 
internationally.   

Page 57



24

2.3 Healthy communities
 
2.3.1 Why do we need change?
There are significant health inequalities within SCR and when compared with the UK average. 
Inequality in health outcomes are strongly related to economic inequalities. Someone in a 
well-paid and secure job is more likely to have better health outcomes than someone that is 
unemployed or in a less well paid or secure job. 
Covid-19 has shown the intertwined nature of health and the economy. The public health impact 
of the disease has targeted the most vulnerable and has been particularly strong on deprived 
areas, Black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) people, the disabled and other vulnerable people. 
The economic impact has also targeted vulnerable people and places , centered upon many of 
the same population groups and many residents that were already economically disadvantaged.

2.3.2 What do we need to change?

Economic growth in SCR will not automatically 
benefit the whole population nor improve 
the health and wellbeing of everyone. 
Interventions made should be planned to have 
positive impacts upon people’s lives:
•	 Collaboration: SCR MCA’ will work with 

stakeholders to influence change. There 
is a need to collaborate with anchor 
institutions and other partners to 
understand how change can be driven and 
delivered.

•	 Unlocking mutual benefits: SCR MCA 
has already worked with health partners 
on several programmes connected to 
employment, business growth and health 
(e.g. the employment-led health trial 
called Working Win). Undertaking and 
innovating with further direct (and indirect) 
positive health impact programmes will 
help cement collaboration, create the 
opportunity to unlock good jobs and 
yield mutual benefits (e.g. reducing health 
inequalities and improving job outcomes).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

•	 Health Innovation: Healthcare assets 
within the SCR are highly important to the 
strength of our economy and unlock many 
population-wide benefits.

•	 Good jobs: Employment growth is 
important in a healthy economy and 
the provision of ‘good jobs’ is an 
important part of this. Encouraging the 
creation of well-paid, progressive and 
secure employment is key to SCR MCA’s 
aspirations. Good jobs are beneficial to 
health and all employers have a significant 
contribution to make.

•	 Measuring impact: The economy is 
driven by many different factors and 
understanding how wellbeing impacts 
our economic fortunes will shape future 
programmes of work and how we judge 
success. 

6Latest figures from Arts Council and the Great Britain Tourism Survey. Furthermore, funding from national cultural bodies is lower per head than other similar city regions. 
7We see that all four local authorities in the region are below the national average for the size of creative sectors and tourism visits in SCR have been lower than neighbouring metropolitan LEP areas 
for decades. According to national surveys, people in SCR are less likely than the average person in England to have visited a museum, used a public library or indeed had any arts engagement.

Page 58



25

2.3.3 What do we need to do to create transformative change?

The SCR is a growing centre for health innovation, working in partnership with businesses and 
patients. SCR MCA will continue to work with health partners in the private sector and public 
sector. This includes establishing strong relationships with the Integrated Care Service in South 
Yorkshire.

SCR MCA will invest in projects and 
programmes which deliver positive health 
outcomes, indirectly or directly through a focus 
upon inclusion, good jobs and innovation. We 
will create new jobs related to, or in, the new 
healthcare economy. A growing economy has 
more opportunities to unlock positive health 
outcomes but investing smartly will help the 
positive impacts spread more equitably. 
SCR MCA will encourage all local employers 
to recognise their role in offering providing 
good work and ensuring that the most 
disadvantaged in our society are not left 
behind in their ambitions and progression. 

SCR MCA will invest in healthcare innovation 
infrastructure, companies and skills 
assets in line with the aspirations set out 
in this document. This includes planned 
developments in emerging healthcare 
clusters and new capital infrastructure. We will 
continue to invest in the business support and 
networks needed to support the healthcare 
sector; SCR MCA commits to assessing the 
impact of the SEP against a set of wellbeing 
measures. Chapter 9 of this Plan begins to 
set this out and will continue to evolve by 
working with a range of organisations (e.g. 
AWRC, public health professionals, Yorkshire 
Academic Health Science Network, etc).

Page 59



26

3. Innovation,  
Enterprise and Growth
Innovation is at the heart of our plan to grow an economy that works for everyone. 

3.1 Why does innovation 
matter?

Innovation has a transformative effect on the 
economy. In every economy around the world 
the most innovative firms and industries are 
also the most productive. SCR is seeking to 
accelerate the intensity of innovation activities 
in order to drive economic development. 

Maintaining the status quo is not going to 
unlock transformational growth. We need 
incremental as well as transformational 
improvement of existing products, processes 
and services, alongside the discovery and 
commercialisation of new ideas, capabilities, 
and designs.

Increased investment is required to create 
the enabling conditions which will grow 
productivity and improve lives. To transform 
our economy, the city region must triple 
investment from £323 million to £1.1billion to 
meet the UK Government’s target of spending 
2.4% of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) on R&D 
by 2027.

By offering structured innovation support 
to organisations of all sizes - whether those 
businesses are start-ups, established, high-
tech, or traditional - we will develop inclusive 
and sustainable approaches that build on our 
innovation strengths.

Defining innovation
Innovation is the process of creating 
value from ideas. Developing new 
products and services requires skills. 
In turn, these create more jobs and 
growth. Innovation cannot be  
left to chance.

Innovation directly drives economic 
growth, helping organisations to 
scale-up and create employment. 
Innovation enables new ideas to be 
incubated, processes to be developed, 
and products to be commercialised. 
Innovation also expands services, 
increases capacity and creates growth 
opportunities in new and emerging 
markets. 

Innovation needs to be taken 
seriously to accelerate productivity 
growth. That means having a clear 
idea of where and how making 
changes will move the economy 
forward, combined with a long-term 
commitment to implement change 
and make innovation happen. 

Page 60



27

3.2 The Sheffield City Region 
innovation approach

Our focus will be to increase the  
number of innovative firms and the number of 
firms innovating as a proportion of the whole. 
There will not be a one-size fits all policy to 
innovation, as we recognise that industries 
innovate differently.

To unlock transformational growth in our 
region, we need to accelerate the adoption of 
innovative products, processes and services in 
our businesses, alongside a transformational 
increase in the scaling up of both the 
discovery and commercialisation of new ideas, 
capabilities, and designs.

Innovation is a complex process which carries 
risks. It therefore needs careful and systematic 
management right through from discovery 
and incubation, to the commercialisation or 
spinning out stage. 

SCR MCA’s approach adopts the International 
Standards Organisation definition of 
innovation as follows, “the implementation of 
new or significantly improved products,  
goods or services, as well as processes, or new 
marketing methods”. 

We will promote collaboration between the 
public and private sector. To drive economic 
growth, we will also seek out efficiency, 
continuous improvement, and competitiveness 
in two key market opportunities for SCR: 

•  Decarbonisation - Noting the collective 
agreements around net-zero emissions 
commitments; and

•  Industry 4.0 - The trends towards automation 
and data exchanges, smart technologies, and 
complex computing. 

A step change is needed to industrialise and 
commercialise value-added activities. By 
championing and incentivising innovation 
through public support, SCR MCA is 
recognising its leading role in encouraging and 
promoting modernisation of businesses and 
communities.
 
The SCR MCA innovation approach will be 
shaped by an acceptance of the following 
principles:

•  Inclusion and risk taking – Through 
stakeholder engagement at key levels. 
Innovation leads to new discoveries and radical 
results. Either way the outcomes will be novel 
and will face risk and uncertainty, which SCR 
MCA’s will be ready to support businesses to 
address. 

•  Anchoring investment in the City Region – 
To support the innovation focus. By driving 
change at each stage of business maturity, 
we will address and overcome flawed 
expectations that investment will trickle down 
by default, from major businesses to the whole 
supply chain.

Page 61



28

•  A joined-up approach to align research, 
development and skills – Partnerships with 
organisations beyond universities can support 
innovation.

•  Our skills system must be reshaped  
to support the innovation system -  
The skills system from school, further and 
higher education and then throughout 
the working life must be better focused on 
industry needs.

•  All industries can be innovative - Start-ups 
exist in all sectors and businesses can be 
innovative and adopt technology in all sectors. 
Covid-19 has also driven innovation in several 
industries. Evidence shows that some of our 
most productive businesses are in sectors that 
are traditionally thought of as unproductive.

•  The linkages and density of activity 
is important - Increasing the density of 
innovative firms is important for the formal 
and informal links of businesses. SCR MCA 
recognises that proximity is crucial for 
knowledge exchange. 

Collaboration is essential, bringing different 
communities together to innovate, connecting 
small and large businesses, and creating 
linkages across industrial sectors where risks 
are shared to enhance competitive advantage. 

SCR’s innovation ecosystem includes  
a range of stakeholders, such as the UK 
Government, educational institutions, firms, 
entrepreneurs, business support providers and 
mentors, communities, and investors. Each one 
plays a significant role in creating value and 
helping to ensure that innovation is harnessed 
with new ideas transformed into reality. 

Page 62



29

Communities

Capital &  
Finance

Skills  
System

Government 
(Local, Sub Regional and 

National)
Business

SCR 
INNOVATION 
ECOSYSTEM

This ecosystem creates a platform for the  
flow of information and resources and there 
are four approaches to innovation which 
SCR will embrace.

Page 63



30

1.  Traditional Innovation 

For firms that follow the traditional model, Research and Development (R&D) is key. In these 
sectors, new products, services or processes often depend on scientific breakthroughs. Innovation 
requires substantial scientific expertise, long timelines, and investment in capital and equipment.

2. Unconventional Innovation
 
In many sectors, the traditional innovation process does not fit. Firms in these sectors use a blend 
of market channels, traditional research and customer testing to develop new products, services 
or processes. Innovation in this model is not linear but includes feedback loops.

3. Mixed Industry Innovation
 
Many emerging sectors use different elements which rely on institutional approaches, formal and 
informal channels to achieve innovation. Innovation is not linked directly to academic research 
but is tested and pushed through engagement with suppliers and customers.

4. People driven innovation 

Often innovation can be driven by communities and the exchange of ideas through informal 
networks as well as with formal institutions. Innovation can come from markets, consumers, 
suppliers, community groups, social enterprises as well as businesses.

Opposite: Adapted from NESTA 2019 and Scott Andes (2016) How Firms Learn. Policy 2020.  
Global Development or International Affairs Intl Affairs. U.S. Politics & Govt.

Page 64



31

1.  Traditional Innovation (e.g. manufacturing)

Outputs
(Products,  

Services, etc)

Government Research Industry

Commercialisation

3. Mixed Industry Innovation (e.g. technology)

Customer Driven Innovation

Supplier Driven Innovation

Research

Inventor Driven Innovation

Industry

4. People driven innovation (e.g healthcare)

Communities

Institutions

Research

2. Unconventional Innovation (e.g. materials or chemicals)

Customers

Institutions

SalesSupplier

Page 65



32

3.3  Building on our capabilities

The City Region has a well-established but 
relatively small innovation network that 
contains world-class capabilities (such as our 
Universities and research flagship institutes), 
alongside emerging specialisms and services. 
The strength of this foundation stems from our 
supply chains, existing specialisms, and active 
networks.

Building our innovation capacity is crucial 
to meet growing demand for the digital 
technology and service sectors that we lead; 
such as learning and educational technology, 
wellness and health, and advanced materials 
and composites. We also have our traditional 
innovation networks and communities. For 
example, our manufacturers, steelmakers 
and forgers are established suppliers to 
global industries in advanced manufacturing, 
construction, and rail. These stakeholders are 
a core part of our established capability and 
global reputation for making and distributing 
excellent products and services.

Advanced Manufacturing  
and Engineering

The Advanced Manufacturing Innovation 
District (AMID) and adjacent business and 
science parks connect world-class capabilities 
and R&D assets in materials, clean energy, 
and advanced wellness. At AMID’s heart is 
the Advanced Manufacturing Park (AMP), 
and the University of Sheffield’s Advanced 
Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC). The 
City Region is also home to the Institute for 
Energy. Since the early 2000s the AMP has 
helped change perceptions of SCR’s economy 
from a place for low-cost production to a 
location of choice for high-value, knowledge-
driven engineering, manufacturing research, 
and skills development.

Construction

This sector has the most businesses in SCR 
(over 8,200) and there are several important 
companies and supply chains which link 
into this sector. The potential of the sector 
is highlighted by University of Sheffield’s 
Integrated Civil and Infrastructure Research 
(ICAIR) Centre. The centre is translating 
disruptive technologies from other sectors, 
including advanced manufacturing, robotics 
and autonomous systems and applying it to 
the construction and infrastructure sector. This 
provides the opportunity to transform the 
intelligence, resilience and resource-efficiency 
of commercial and residential buildings and 
other infrastructure, benefitting both our 
people and climate. With the strengths in 
this industry, SCR is an obvious location for 
a Centre for Innovation Excellence, focusing 
on Modern Methods of Construction (MMC) 
helping to develop new materials and skills 
needed in the construction industry to 
respond to market trends. 

Page 66



33

Intelligent Mobility 

As the pioneer of UK railways, Doncaster is at 
the forefront of intelligent mobility and the 
infrastructure of tomorrow. The borough is 
one of the most important rail hubs in the 
UK and at the centre of developing the next 
generation of rail skills and expertise. As well 
as skills and research, Doncaster offers access 
to an 8,000 strong, highly skilled rail workforce 
and is home to the National College for 
Advanced Transport & Infrastructure and a new 
University Technical College (UTC) specialising 
in digital design and engineering.

Health

Covid-19 and its consequences have hit most 
vulnerable populations the hardest. With a 
background in healthcare technology, sport 
research and healthcare service design and 
flagship research Institutes for Neoroscience 
and Healthy Lifespan, we are a City Region 
that can help tackle global health challenges. 
The health sector has over 4,000 employers 
in SCR and has established a reputation for 
excellence in the development of innovative 
healthcare technologies. The City Region 
is host to many world-leading healthcare 
technology companies including Braun, Swann 
Morton, Orchid and JRI Orthopaedics and the 
only Olympic Legacy Park in the world outside 
of a host city. The City Region also has several 
large teaching hospitals, is the location for 
world leading clinical research and biomedical 
devices, and has several firms involved in 
diagnostic and interventional innovations 
(everything from surgical to artificial 
intelligence). 

The National Centre for Sport & Exercise 
Medicine is a globally leading transformation 
programme co-locating health and activity 
in bespoke community facilities, utilising the 
unique demographic of Sheffield as a living 
laboratory for research and innovation. 

Sheffield Hallam University’s Advanced 
Wellbeing Research Centre (AWRC) builds 
on this capability to undertake world-class 
research in physical activity. The AWRC also 
develops collaborative community, academic 
and industry partnerships to drive innovation 
and co-design products, interventions and 
services that transform the social, behavioural 
and environmental determinants of health.  
Future developments including the Gene 
Therapy Innovation & Manufacturing Centre 
provide further opportunities.

Digital

Digital technology is changing how education, 
engineering, and manufacturing operates. The 
City Region has a lot to offer entrepreneurs, 
from Sheffield’s Digital Coalition, dotSHF and 
Sheffield Digital, to Barnsley’s Digital Media 
Centre. There is a growing value chain which is 
delivering specialist training to support growth 
in the sector and a thriving network of over 
400 companies, incubators and organisations; 
all of which make up our digital media and 
technology ecosystem. Over 60% of the UK’s 
educational technology capacity is in Sheffield, 
and we are the home of national and globally 
significant businesses like The Floow, Sumo 
Digital, Wandisco, Plusnet, and 3Squared.  

Building on our capabilities, our approach will 
focus on the core areas set out below:

•  �Increasing density in our successful 
innovation district (AMID) and emerging 
clusters

•  �Supporting businesses to flourish  
and drive economic growth 

•  �Driving supply chain development and 
competitiveness regionally and nationally

•  �Ensuring our innovation approach benefits 
the whole City Region

Page 67



34

3.3.1 Increasing density in our successful 
innovation district (AMID) and emerging 
clusters

Working closely with the UK Government and 
local authorities, we will co-develop innovation 
clusters. We will support training practitioners 
and university researchers, alongside industry 
to increase the mix of activity, and we will 
collaborate with entrepreneurs and innovators.

We will accelerate innovation-led economic 
growth by supporting much greater density 
to harness the benefits of clustering. In SCR, 
the most established example of this is AMID, 
a world leading Innovation District, translating 
applied research and precision engineering 
strengths into a globally significant 
manufacturing centre of excellence that 
drives new business activity, creates jobs, and 
generates additional income for the region. 

The AMRC’s model of university-industry 
collaboration has driven the agglomeration of 
technology firms within AMID. Similarly, the 
Olympic Legacy Park, with the AWRC as its 
central node, is emulating the AMRC model 
by attracting businesses to co-locate and 
collaborate with academic researchers at the 
AWRC and other research centres in AMID.

There are other emerging clusters in SCR, and 
we will work with partners to develop these 
into hubs of innovation excellence:

Barnsley – The Digital Media Centre (DMC) 
has seen significant growth over the last 
three years as a hub for digital technology 
and creative businesses, and a destination 
for events and business support. A key factor 
in the growth of the DMC has been the 
‘TechTown’ project, which is creating bold 
plans for the future of Barnsley. TechTown is 
creating a digital ecosystem by connecting 
people from the public and private sector, 
entrepreneurs and education providers to 
share and benefit from digital technology 
expertise. 

Doncaster – There are opportunities to build 
on current expertise and market opportunities 
in intelligent mobility, higher education, rail 
engineering, creative and digital, health, and 
green technologies in three key geographical 
areas:
o Town centre
o Unity; and,
o Doncaster Sheffield Airport (DSA).

Sheffield City Centre is already a major 
professional services hub and employment 
centre, and there is an opportunity to further 
strengthen the city’s digital technology 
and creative businesses and clusters, and to 
support the scale up of digital businesses, 
particularly around the Castlegate area of the 
city centre (where Kollider is established).  This 
would build on the city’s technology clusters 
including edtech, mobility and entertainment, 
and complementarities to the Digital Campus 
in Barnsley.

There is further potential to establish other 
innovation assets and nodes across the City 
Region, for example a Modern Methods of 
Construction Centre of Excellence and a 
Preventative Medicine Centre to build on our 
expertise and provide an anchor for innovation 
and business activity. We will invest in new 
anchor institutions and support existing ones.

Page 68



35

3.3.2   Supporting businesses to flourish and 
drive economic growth

SCR MCA will focus on interventions 
that incentivise innovation and enable 
entrepreneurs and enterprises to locate here. 
This will involve us being more risk tolerant 
to achieve our policy objectives by targeting 
innovation that actively influences the 
direction and pace of growth. 

Enabling our business base to improve and 
grow requires increased trade (and export) 
with global markets. We will support and 
promote entrepreneurs and businesses to take 
innovative ideas to market. To achieve this we 
will:

•  �Create the conditions to allow more 
entrepreneurs to develop and launch 
solutions quicker and be in a stronger 
position to scale them up. 

•  �Establish new  partnerships with businesses 
and organisations in key sectors (e.g. CCGs) 
and finance organisations to build strategic 
relationships and facilitate formal and 
informal networks that drive innovation;

•  �Boost business-academic-public sector 
collaborations in translational research;

•  �Welcome risk-taking – inherent in the 
innovation process – by recognising that the 
state is a legitimate actor in the innovation 
process; 

•  �Develop investment mechanisms so that the 
public and private sectors share risks and 
rewards.

•  �Drive innovation through a range of 
activities, from financial incentives and 
investments, branding, influencing, 
networking, convening, and much more;

•  �Deliver growth and scale-up support  to help 
companies invest in digital technologies 
and develop strategic plans, export and 
coordinate access to investment as well as 
expert advice;

•  �Work closely with the UK research councils 
to build collaborative initiatives that harness 
support from public institutes such as the 
British Business Bank, InnovateUK and social 
enterprise funding. Private and third sector 
funding is vital during the commercial 
stages of innovation; we will offer support 
to maximise benefits for organisation that 
invest in innovation (e.g. ranging from 
training support to R&D tax credits); and,

•  �Identify innovation potential at all levels 
of scale and maturity, exploiting investible 
solutions. This could mean, seeding 
first stage R&D investment to accelerate 
competitive advantage to targeted high-
value markets. It could also mean supporting 
firms adopting technology to deliver 
innovative adult social care in communities.

Page 69



36

3.3.3 Driving supply chain development and 
competitiveness

SCR MCA intends to build on established 
supply chains and create new global value-
chains. We will build strategic relationships with 
targeted businesses and anchor institutions. 
We will also build the capability of local 
businesses, to enable them to participate in 
supply chains beyond our City Region and 
work collaboratively so they can compete 
nationally and internationally. This will create 
opportunities for businesses to diversify into 
new sectors or new export markets. We believe 
this will result in increased open new markets, 
especially in non-EU markets in a post-Brexit 
world. Our businesses will be better placed to 
take advantage of reshoring opportunities, to 
streamline the distribution of goods, reduce 
risks, delays and costs, benefit the environment, 
and create more jobs.

Going beyond R&D
NESTA’s work on inclusive innovation 
highlights three main strands:

•  �Broadening participation in the 
innovation economy

•  �Ensuring that the benefits of 
innovation are shared by all

•  �Involving the public in shaping 
innovation policy

These three areas provide the 
strategic lens to test our investments 
in innovation.

Page 70



37

8Such as working with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology’s UK REAP project
9Such as through AMID’s membership of the Global Institute on Innovation Districts 

There are three stages to improving our supply chain capability:

Stage 1 

Supply Chain Readiness  

Linking businesses together and raising the awareness levels of business systems 
and processes required to compete. This will enable businesses to acquire the right 
skills, undertake business planning and focus on strategy, gain accreditations, and 
implement quality management systems or other specific requirements. 

�Stage 2 

Supply Chain Development 

This will include supporting those businesses that are nearly ready to grow and/or win 
bigger and more valuable supply opportunities. This may also include some aspects 
of the supply readiness programme or assistance  with diversifying their product 
range or target markets. To create the right environment for strong supply-chains in 
SCR, we will support value- adding activities, utilise digital technology applications 
and develop practical outcomes from collaboration with world leading research  
programmes8.

Stage 3 

Opportunity Management 

We will work together to connect more businesses to opportunities.  
This could take many forms such as local procurement, Meet the Buyer events or 
developing regional Original Equipment Manufacturer challenges for local supply 
chains to address. We will continue to ensure we are at the leading edge of technology 
development, positioning the SCR globally, to attract inward investment9. SCR MCA 
will also build new and expand on existing global linkages to showcase our assets and 
capabilities and unlock economic opportunities. 

Page 71



38

3.3.4   Ensuring our innovation approach 
benefits the whole City Region

Innovation is inherently disruptive, creating 
winners and losers. It often does not reach 
disadvantaged groups. There are two aspects 
to our inclusive innovation ethos that address 
this. Firstly, we will aim to enable all people to 
participate in delivering innovation initiatives. 
We will deliver more inclusive and diverse 
innovation systems. To do this, we must ensure 
that the backgrounds and skills of decision- 
makers within the ecosystem are also diverse. 
Furthermore, we can unlock multiple benefits 
by considering innovation as a wider approach 
which encompasses natural-based solutions, 
community groups and community decision 
making.

Secondly, when making  investments, we will 
establish an upfront social contract based 
on our terms of business and a social value 
policy and action plan which will govern both 
stakeholder  behaviours and policy outcomes.

Ensuring that everyone has a fair opportunity 
to contribute is important. We will 
focus on the diffusion of innovation to 
disadvantaged groups and enable fair access 
to entrepreneurship. Also, our approach will 
embrace university originated innovation 
as well as wider and informal sources. We 
will work across the economy, including 
foundational industries as well as high-end 
tech. Our approach is about helping businesses 
and people to do better – we will facilitate this 
by providing the enabling conditions needed 
for them to flourish.

Through an inclusive approach 
to employer commitments we will 
focus on the following areas to shape 
our terms of engagement: 

•  �Environmental commitments 
towards a net-zero target

•  �Driving social and environmental 
value through procurement and 
supply chain activity

•  �Recruitment and employment 
of apprentices (representative of 
society)

•  �Commitment to achieving a gender 
balance in management

•  �Employer commitment to  
skills and careers 

•  �The provision of work placements 
and internships

•  �A minimum living wage  
for all employees, including 
apprentices

Page 72



39

Key intervention areas: 

•  �Build strategic partnerships with businesses and entrepreneurs, unlocking growth 
contingent on social impact and supporting our transition to a net-zero carbon 
economy by establishing a social contract and a social value policy and action plan.

•  �Bring together different communities to innovate by connecting small and large 
businesses and creating linkages across industrial sectors where risks are shared to 
enhance competitive advantage.

•  �Focus on interventions that incentivise innovation and enable entrepreneurs and 
enterprises to locate here.

•  �Accelerate innovation-led growth by supporting much greater density  
to harness the benefits of clustering. 

•  �Build the capability of local businesses, to enable them to participate in supply chains 
beyond our City Region and work collaboratively so they can compete nationally and 
internationally.

Page 73



40

•  Attainment and progression –  Despite 
examples of world-class teaching facilities and 
training, the quality of education varies widely 
across all levels. SCR lags the national averages 
across all levels of formal education for many 
indicators (e.g.  English  and  Maths,  Progress 
and Attainment 8).

•  The workforce is typified by a lower 
qualification profile – Productive economies 
have a highly qualified and skilled workforce. 
Our system lacks the progression routes and 
the employment opportunities for these 
people. Low qualification levels are holding 
back economic growth and innovation. 

•  Workers’ health affects productivity and 
economic prosperity – The disruption 
experienced during Covid-19 pandemic 
confirms the close link between employment 
and health. People can be prevented from 
working due to either their own ill health 
or  the health of someone they have caring 
responsibilities for. This may result in 
absenteeism and presenteeism (working 
while sick), time taken to attend hospital 
appointments, early rretirement or premature 
deaths, all of which impact on productivity and
limit personal resources and spending power. 
Economic performance is also an important 
wider determinant of health.

The relationship between schools, colleges, 
training providers and higher education with 
industry is not strong enough. We do not 
do enough to inspire our young people, or 
to support people to move into work,  or to 
progress in their career, or to support older 
workers in our labour market. At the higher 
level, our leadership and management skills 
are not universally strong.

4. Skills, Education  
& Employment
The City Region’s skills, education and employment system is not working. The SCR faces several 
skills and employability challenges, some of which are summarised below:

4.1	 Why do we need change? 

At the moment the City Region’s skills, education and employment system is not working. The 
SCR faces several skills and employability challenges, some of which are summarised below:

Page 74



41

•  Apprenticeship growth is largely in low pay 
sectors – Whilst SCR has a comparatively high 
level of apprenticeships compared to other 
areas, and an economic base which could 
support further growth, there are constraints 
on the capacity to grow, and challenges with 
levels and subjects studied. For example, it is 
estimated that around 70% of apprentice starts 
in SCR are aligned to low pay sectors10.

•  Higher rates of poverty and worklessness – 
Higher unemployment rates and higher levels 
of economic inactivity11 underpin poverty in 
the City Region. The rate of young people 
living in workless households stands at 5.7% 
above the national average12. This can restrict 
the realisation of aspiration for generations. 

•  Low levels of diversity – Companies that 
commit to diverse leadership are more 
successful13. There are diversity challenges, 
with women and certain ethnic groups 
underrepresented across the labour market. 
The current lack of diversity in the City Region’s 
workforce constrains productivity and business 
performance. 

•  Mismatches in the employment  
and skills system – A lack of alignment 
between business and education and training 
providers damage the SCR economy and there 
are huge opportunities to align these better14.  
This mismatch limits the employment and 
earnings opportunities of individuals and 
prevent companies from maximising their 
performance15. Mismatches have been 
identified in technical education, graduate 
employment, and flexible working (e.g. the gig 
economy) which can limit progression. 

According to ONS 47% of SCR jobs  
are at risk of automation over the next two 
decades, compared to 39% in London16. 
Those with low qualifications are more 
likely to be unemployed in the future. The 
sectors and occupations at the highest risk 
are unfortunately the same sectors that have 
created the most jobs in SCR over the last 
decade. The prospects for a low qualification, 
low wage economy are concerning and urgent 
intervention and improvement  
is needed.

10SCR Analysis of DfE data and ONS: automation jobs index – 2019.
11This is the case even when students are taken out of the datasets.
12ONS Annual Population Survey 2019 
13�See for example, the McKinsey report on why diversity matters, available here:  

https://www.mckinsey.com/business-functions/organization/our-insights/why-diversity-matters
14�There are multiple complexities, but one example is the ‘gig economy’ which provides opportunities for those looking for flexible workers  

(e.g. part-time carers of children) but also faces challenges with pay and progression.
15BIS Research Paper Number 265 Research to understand the extent, nature and impact of skills mismatches in the economy (2016)
16ONS: automation jobs index - 2019

Addressing wider skills &  
employment issues in SCR

Meeting business growth needs:

Innovation led growth
Collaboration relationships

Supply of skills

Skills demand

Page 75



42

4.2 The assets on which we must build

Despite severe challenges, the City Region has some major skills and employment advantages 
and assets to build upon, a host of forward-thinking businesses, and pioneering skills and 
employment programmes. 

•  SCR has two world-class Universities:

	� o  Sheffield Hallam - the 10th largest university in the UK with a range  
of research centres, institutes, and award-winning teaching provision. 

	� o  The University of Sheffield - a world top-100 and Russell Group university renowned 
for the excellence, impact, and distinctiveness of its research-led learning and 
teaching.

•  �We have industry leading Further Education and specialist colleges that  
are leading the technical education and apprenticeship agenda. 

•  �Our University Technical Colleges are bucking the trend in terms of learner numbers, 
progression of students and employer focused and led curriculum.

•  �SCR is leading the way in the innovative delivery of Key Stage 3 and 4 with several 
schools experimenting with different learning approaches and seeing great inspection 
results driven by qualification achievement and attendances.

•  ��Employers in SCR are supporting the creation of a high skilled workforce through a 
variety of means. Several leading examples include:

	� o  Working with schools to deliver projects to equip students with industry skills to 
take forward in their careers. 

	 o  Creating organisation-wide approaches to apprentice recruitment.
	� o  Investing in workforce progression to supporting the needs of the workforce and 

business. 
	� o  Recognising that investing in the health and wellbeing of staff can greatly improve 

productivity. 

•  �SCR’s Health Led Employment Trial is the largest of its type to test the effectiveness of 
combining health and employment support. Over 6,000 people have joined the trial 
and long-lasting relations have been developed with primary and secondary health 
referring agencies.

Page 76



43

4.3 What do we need to do to create transformative change? 

Building on the City Region’s assets we will develop an employer-led World Class Technical (and 
Vocational) Education System that will match the traditional academic education route in terms of 
outcomes and relevance for our people and our economy. 

We need to ensure that our people develop the skills required for the economy to thrive – so that 
employers’ demand for skills is matched by a supply of sufficiently qualified workers. 

Figure 2: Balanced Skills Supply and Demand 

Source: Adapted from OECD Local Skills Strategies 2019

Supply Demand

Business  
technology  

transfer

Attracting  
and retaining  

talent

Innovation, 
design  

and new 
markets

Skills  
progression  

and adult training

Management, 
training  

and work  
progression

Highly skilled 
Labour  
market

Skills  
utilisation 
by  
employers

Fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 sk

ill
s s

ys
te

m

Strong schooling 
and education system 

and pathways

Page 77



44

Supply 
To tackle our supply side challenges, we will 
focus our resources on:

•	 Investing in our vocational education 
infrastructure, creating better facilities 
that are more aligned to the needs of our 
businesses.

•	 Incentivising excellence in teaching and 
the development of new collaborative 
learning delivery models.

•	 Targeting adult vocational education 
skills funding towards provision that 
explicitly meets the needs of employers and 
learners. 

•	 Developing programmes that provide a 
clear pathway for those out of work to get 
into, stay and then progress in work. Where 
possible linking to economic opportunities 
(e.g. growth in green economy.)

•	 Link to employer groups to help shape 
LMI and improve careers advice reach and 
quality.

•	 Design and deliver an all-age careers 
service that will provide our people with 
the information, guidance and advice they 
need to make informed choices, to reskill or 
upskill, and to access opportunities across 
the economy.

•	 Building our intelligence and data to 
support intelligent decision making at every 
level.

Demand
To tackle our demand side challenges, we 
will focus our resources on:

•	 Creating good jobs and securing 
commitment from the wider SCR business 
base to invest in the development of 
technical skills across SCR.

•	 Working with pioneering employers to 
widen and unlock skills potential and create 
progression opportunities as part of any 
investment to grow such businesses.

•	 Ensure employers are better integrated 
in the skills system so they can co-invest, 
co-design, co-deliver, and co-govern to 
meet the needs of our economy and retain 
talented people.

•	 Work with businesses to develop 
strategies to unlock the provision of flexible 
working and supportive initiatives for our 
workforce.

•	 Create leadership and management 
development opportunities to support 
talent to flourish here.

•	 Establish a social value framework to 
support investment in skills.

•	 Work with employers to develop 
progressive HR strategies which enable 
greater diversity, and reward training 
with more progression opportunities and 
financial incentives.

•	 Provide connections between businesses 
and academic communities to enhance 
commercial aspirations around global 
expansion (e.g. language skills, capacity and 
international links).

•	 Stimulating the development of bespoke 
training and up-skilling packages to 
employers.

Page 78



45

Key intervention areas: 

•  �Establishing SCR as a place for world class technical education with leadership and 
investment;

•  �Deliver an all-age careers service that is truly best in class and meets  
the needs of our people and employers;

•  �Deep and effective collaborations between businesses, education,  
and training providers to drive skills development;

•  �Investment in our apprenticeship system to build upon existing  
high-quality education assets;

•  �Maximising devolution levers and investment to support education  
quality and progression;

•  �Working strategically with the UK Government, institutions, and businesses to raise 
aspirations, careers knowledge and investment in skills;

•  �Building the data and evidence, supporting and driving collaboration,  
and brokering expertise.

Page 79



46

5.	 Clean Energy & Net-Zero

Energy plays a key role in SCR’s economy, powering its businesses, infrastructure and homes. 
Energy security and increasing costs negatively impact on business productivity and families (e.g. 
deepening household fuel poverty). Furthermore, addressing the climate emergency requires 
urgent and far-reaching changes.

5.1  Why do we need change?

There are several challenges that will need to be 
overcome to achieve net-zero carbon emissions17:

•  �A large proportion of SCR’s 52,000 SMEs are  
not actively improving their energy efficiency. 

•  �The size of the green economy is currently  
lower than other city-regions and on current trends less 
than 1% of the 50,000 new jobs  
in the energy sector in the next 15 years  
are expected to be in the SCR.

•  �There is a lack of electric vehicle  
charging and hydrogen refueling stations.  
Yorkshire and Humber has only 5% of  
the UK’s electric vehicle (EV) charging points and only 
one hydrogen refueling point. 

•  �Only 20% of electricity consumed in SCR is generated in the City Region.  
This provides an opportunity to vastly increase the amount of renewable energy generation and 
storage capacity in the region and become more resilient. 

•  �Two-thirds of houses in SCR have an Energy Performance Certificate rating below C18. Most 
houses will require additional insulation measures and/or low carbon heating systems to be 
installed if the net-zero target is to be met. 

•  �SCR has 28 Air Quality Management Areas. Carbon emissions from vehicles and public transport 
are a significant contributor to localised air pollution.

17Major changes will take time, which means that fossil fuels will continue to be part of the UK and SCR’s energy mix for the short to medium term.
18Forthcoming SCR Draft Energy Strategy (2020)

SCR has adopted challenging targets to achieving a net-zero carbon economy by 2040, 
with local partners also setting individual targets. These targets provide a focus for 
sustained investment. Key priorities include reducing carbon emissions, generating low 
carbon energy, improving the energy efficiency and sustainability of buildings, and 
accelerating the transition to ultra-low or zero-emission transport. 

Page 80



47

5.2   What do we need to do to create change?

The opportunity to transform energy generation, supply, storage, and use will create benefits  for 
the local economy, our communities and the environment. To maximise these, we will focus on:

1. �Driving clean growth and decarbonisation in our local businesses,  
whilst maintaining their competitiveness.

2. �Promoting and enabling investment and innovation in low carbon energy generation, 
distribution, and storage.

3. Improving the energy efficiency and sustainability of our built environment.

4. Accelerate the transition to ultra-low emission vehicles and transport systems.
5.2.1  Driving clean growth in SCR’s businesses

5.2.1 Driving clean growth in 	  
 	 SCR’s businesses

The low carbon economy is projected to 
grow four times faster than the wider UK 
economy20. Providing the platform for clean 
growth makes good business sense as it drives 
both productivity and skills. Energy intensive 
businesses within SCR need to be supported 
to benefit from transformational projects and 
innovative technologies that deliver increased 
productivity and significant cost savings, to 
benefit their bottom-line and our environment. 
Delivering clean growth will also require skilled 
workers at all levels, providing the opportunity 
for its benefits to be enjoyed across SCR.

Green Hydrogen
A key economic focus in the move 
towards a net-zero carbon economy 
is ‘green’ hydrogen. This is hydrogen 
from electrolysis using renewable 
electricity. ITM Power, based in 
Sheffield, has the largest electrolyser 
manufacturing site in the world thus 
giving SCR an unrivalled advantage in 
this area. 

Opportunities for green hydrogen 
include: 

•  Vehicles – fuelling larger vehicles like 
buses and HGVs which make battery 
use unnecessary; 

•  Resilience – more efficient storing 
of hydrogen produced from curtailed 
renewable electricity;

•  Industry – producing hydrogen on-
site when electricity costs are low can 
reduce costs compared to fossil gas. 

•  Heating – decarbonising the gas 
networks by increasing the proportion 
of hydrogen. 

Page 81



48

5.2.2   Promoting investment and innovation in 
low carbon energy technologies

Smart technologies are increasingly important 
in alleviating strain on the electricity network 
and meeting the demands of new patterns 
and types of energy consumption. This is 
achieved by shifting some of the demand 
to off-peak times, matching demand with 
generation, and digitising energy. This reduces 
the extent to which large scale replacement 
and upgrading works will be needed on the 
electricity network thus keeping costs down 
for consumers. With a global movement 
towards decentralised energy generation 
and use, the time is right for SCR to invest in a 
‘smart grid’. 

Whilst energy use can be minimised through 
increased efficiency and the use of smart 
technologies, SCR also needs to ensure that 
more of the energy consumed in the City 
Region has been generated by renewable 
sources and that the security of supply has 
been increased. 

The key opportunities that exist in SCR, in 
addition to our green hydrogen capabilities 
are:

The UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA)’s 
Research Facility – with this facility and other 
related assets like the Nuclear AMRC, the 
SCR is in a strong position to commercialise 
nuclear fusion as a major source of low-carbon 
electricity in the years ahead. In SCR, the 
opportunity is to grow the supply chain to 
support this growing industry. 

Mine Water – Mine Water could potentially 
offer resilience and energy supply to micro 
heat networks for those communities that 
are not connected to urban heat networks. 
South Yorkshire has over 400 mines and is 
ideally placed to be a testbed for Mine Water 
technology. Our mining assets are exploited at 
pace so that the City Region becomes a front 
runner in developing former coalmines for use 
in energy schemes and thereafter benefitting 
from a variety of first-mover advantages in 
the market. The Coal Authority estimates that 
the heat stored in the UK mine network could 
heat 180 million homes for 100 years21. With 
most of South Yorkshire’s mines located in 
disadvantaged communities, there are wider 
benefits, not least supplying cheaper energy 
to households that are more susceptible to fuel 
poverty. 

21Source: UK Coal Authority 2019

Page 82



49

Figure 3: Map of mines in South Yorkshire

Heat Networks – SCR is already  
leading the way on heat networks, with 
Sheffield being home to one of the most 
developed examples in the UK. Given the 
existing industrial activity, there is significant 
potential to capture waste heat and feed this 
into a regional portfolio of low carbon, district 
heat networks. Heat networks can deliver 
significant local benefits including alleviating 
fuel poverty, improving air quality, reducing 
costs, and supporting job creation.

In addition to the above, more established 
low carbon energy generation, distribution 
and storage technologies such as wind or 
solar offer significant opportunities and  
developments in these areas should continue 
to be promoted and invested in.  

What is the climate 
emergency?
The declaration of a ‘climate 
emergency’ recognizes that the 
negative impacts of climate and 
environmental change are evident 
in the UK and throughout the world, 
such as more extreme weather 
conditions, increasing flooding, loss of 
habitats and species, and acceleration 
in the melting of polar ice caps and 
glaciers. Carbon emissions are proven 
to be the key cause of these changes 
and this must be where action at all 
levels needs to be focused. 

Page 83



50

5.2.3   Improving the energy efficiency and 
sustainability of our built environment

Enhanced energy efficiency has the potential 
to significantly reduce fuel bills, protecting 
residents against rising energy prices and 
reducing fuel poverty. As fuel poverty and 
health problems are intrinsically linked, it 
is crucial that the affordability of energy is 
addressed. A strategic approach to tackle 
fuel poverty and improve energy inefficient 
dwellings must cover both existing and new 
homes. New homes must be built to better 
sustainability and energy efficiency standards; 
incorporating renewable energy systems 
into the design and using modern methods 
of construction (MMC) wherever possible to 
increase construction productivity. 

Existing homes - which will make up around 
90% of the housing stock in 2050 - will need 
better energy efficiency, and the potential 
for microgeneration opportunities must be 
explored through increased public and private 
investment.

Community energy projects are a perfect way 
to accelerate the deployment of distributed 
energy, putting our people at the heart of 
energy systems. These schemes can deliver 
many benefits such as improved resilience, 
education, and empowerment for local 
communities. Whilst Energise Barnsley is 
the largest local energy solar PV and battery 
storage project in the UK22, across SCR there is 
a relatively low number of community energy 
projects per resident compared to the South 
West or London. 

5.2.4 Accelerate the transition to Ultra Low 
Emissions Vehicles (ULEV) and transport 
systems

Road transport alone contributes 36%  
of carbon emissions in South Yorkshire23. With 
a high proportion of SCR residents commuting 
to work using their car24, behaviour changes of 
transport can deliver big gains. The SCR Energy 
and Transport strategies set an ambition to 
deliver an innovative, zero-emission public 
transport network and kick-start further 
ambitious active travel interventions.  

Where active travel or public transport are not 
viable options, there is a need for a coherent 
City Region-wide network of transport 
infrastructure, helping to increase the uptake 
of electric and other ULEVs. Companies within 
SCR are already at the forefront of hydrogen 
technology, providing an opportunity to build 
on this competitive advantage and widen 
access to hydrogen as a transport fuel source. 

Behaviour change to  
meet our targets
The importance of behaviour change 
in relation to both minimising 
energy use and implementing 
energy efficient practices cannot be 
underestimated. Everyone’s behaviour 
needs to change to achieve the 
net-zero emissions targets – local 
government, industry, residents, and 
visitors. We simply cannot keep on 
using the amount of energy that we 
are today. 

22Forthcoming SCR Draft Energy Strategy (2020)
23Forthcoming SCR Draft Energy Strategy (2020)
24ONS Travel to Work (2011)

Page 84



51

In line with the national climate target, 
emissions from aviation (alongside other 
‘Scope 3’ emissions) are not included within 
SCR’s net-zero commitment.  However, we 
recognise the importance of this sector and 
the requirement for its activities to be as 
clean as possible. We are working with the 
University of Sheffield to develop sustainable 
aviation fuels.  Alongside commitments for 
better public transport access to the Doncaster 
Sheffield Airport, and research into light-
weighting of materials already taking place 
within SCR, we will be part of the solution in 
decarbonising aviation.

Page 85



52

5.3  How do we create  
the transformative change 
needed?

Decarbonising SCR’s economy could cost 
around £1.7billion per year but could unlock 
over £2.8billion per year in benefits and create 
thousands of jobs. Innovative and long-term 
funding mechanisms will be required to  
achieve this. 

To grow our net-zero economy, we will focus 
on four actions: 

A. Expanding the circular economy and value 
chain opportunities 

•  Supporting businesses to take advantage of 
market opportunities in clean and low-carbon 
energy generation and supply chain capacity, 
particularly for hydrogen, nuclear (including 
SMRs and fusion) and Carbon Capture, 
Utilisation and Storage (CCUS).

B.  Grow the green economy; especially 
hydrogen, low emission transport and CCUS 
capabilities:

•  Exploiting the potential of our hydrogen 
and other established renewable capabilities 
to grow our business base and tackle energy 
challenges;

•  Utilising the City Region’s research strengths 
(including the Translational Energy Research 
Centre) to establish SCR as an innovation 
incubator where clean energy ideas can 
be taken from concept to production and 
commercialisation;

•  Supporting businesses to reduce their 
environmental impacts, and take advantage of 
market opportunities in clean and low-carbon 
energy generation particularly for hydrogen 
and small nuclear;

•  Developing a more circular economy that 
looks towards the future, focused upon 
developing solutions to protect and enhance 
the health and wellbeing of residents and 
responding to the climate emergency.

C.  Significantly increased renewable energy 
generation and storage to improve resilience:

•  Utilising and/or repurposing current 
infrastructure and natural resources to 
decarbonise the energy supply, including the 
use of energy from minewater;

•  Investigating energy storage for energy 
intensive industries to make them more 
efficient and help to balance the load on the 
local electricity/gas distribution network; and

•  Supporting the decarbonisation of heat 
including: 4/5th generation heat networks, 
hydrogen for heat, electrification of heat, and 
zero-carbon smart microgrids.

Page 86



53

D.  Investment and deployment  
of energy efficiency measures and 
technologies:

•  Prioritising the energy retrofit of households 
by helping with the capital costs of installing 
energy efficiency measures through innovative 
funding mechanisms;

•  Working closely with Community Energy 
England to identify opportunities for energy 
schemes which provide a community benefit;

•  The public sector leading by example, 
improving its building stock and embedding 
ethical and low carbon criteria into 
procurement and investment decision 
processes;

•  Investing in expanding the network of 
Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points and 
hydrogen refuelling stations to ensure full 
coverage across SCR;

•  Delivering a zero-carbon public transport 
network and active travel city region; 

•  Ensuring that new homes built in SCR are 
high-quality in terms of energy use and 
efficiency.

These will largely be delivered through the 
implementation of SCR’s energy and transport 
strategies There are also further ambitions 
identified for clean energy which are captured 
in other sections related to low carbon 
buildings, skills pipeline and transport. 

Key intervention areas: 

•	� Exploiting circular economy and 
value chain opportunities (e.g. 
nuclear SMRs and fusion),

•	� Grow the green economy especially 
existing renewables technologies 
and emerging technologies like 
hydrogen,low emission transport 
and Carbon Capture Utilisation and 
Storage capabilities;

•	� Significantly increased renewable 
energy generation and storage to 
improve resilience; and

•	� Investment and deployment  
of energy efficiency measures  
and technologies.

Page 87



54

6. Transport & Mobility

A reliable, efficient, and affordable transport 
system is a crucial driver of economic 
growth. Transport is fundamental to linking 
people, businesses, and services; whether it 
is connecting residents to jobs, education, 
or visitors and residents to green spaces 
and recreational facilities or ensuring our 
businesses can readily access their markets.

Evolving markets dictate the need for an 
integrated transport system that provides 
the connectivity, capacity, reliability and 
resilience needed to support wider regional 
objectives. Pre-Covid, the evidence suggested 
that congestion was restricting growth, and 
without intervention could significantly curb 
future productivity. Covid-19 has also changed 
how people use transport and how transport 
operates; encouraging the potential for active 
travel and highlighting the criticality of the 
public transport network for communities. 

Our Transport Strategy’s vision is to ‘build a transport system that works for everyone, 
connecting people to the places they want to go within the City Region as well as 
nationally and internationally. Our transport system will be safe, reliable, clean, green, 
and affordable. It will be one of the best in the United Kingdom and Europe’.

Whilst the Transport Strategy also has goals which support a shift to a cleaner, healthier 
and more environmentally sustainable transport network, this section specifically focuses 
upon the need for ‘residents and businesses to be connected to economic opportunity’. 
This is how the Transport Strategy will directly help to provide the underpinning 
conditions required to achieve the aims of this Economic Plan. 

Page 88



55

6.1 Why do we need  
to change?

The SCR has a diverse and well-connected 
economy comprising a dynamic core city, 
thriving towns and fabulous countryside and 
a significant rural economy. We have good 
national and international connectivity being 
served by the motorway network, East Coast 
and Midland Mainline rail routes and the 
Doncaster Sheffield Airport. However, a key 
challenge is ensuring our transport network 
keeps pace with planned growth across the 
City Region. A growing population coupled 
with increases in planned development will 
lead to further challenges if the transport 
offer continues to favour car travel over other 
modes. 

Elsewhere, capacity on more popular 
routes has been identified as an area for 
improvement, particularly on train services 
where both the service frequency and the 
seating capacity on board is recognised as 
poor. Transport in the City Region is focused 
around a relatively small urban area, meaning 
that some areas are poorly served, particularly 
in the more rural areas of the City Region.  
There are also several locations outside of 
urban centres earmarked for development 
with little public transport provision available.

The changes we seek can be summarised as 
follows:

•  �Connectivity: Linking people and places – 
including residential areas, key destinations, 
emerging development sites and growth 
areas.

•  �Frequency: Public transport should be 
frequent and well-timed to match busy 
periods.

•  �Capacity: There needs to be plenty  
of seats so that routes do not become 
overcrowded and unattractive to users.

•  �Reliability: Tackling transport choice and 
reliability is essential to ensure that public 
transport can be as attractive as the private 
car.

6.2  What do we need to do to 
create growth?

Our aim of ensuring ‘residents and businesses 
are connected to economic opportunity’ has 
three associated policies:

1.  �Improve the existing transport network 
to enhance access to jobs, markets, skills 
and supply chains, adopting technology 
solutions to support this.

2.  �Enhance productivity by making our 
transport system faster, more reliable and 
more resilient, considering the role of new 
technologies to achieve this.

3.  �Invest in integrated packages of 
infrastructure to unlock future economic 
growth and support Local Plans, including 
new housing provision. 

Page 89



56

6.2.1  Improve the existing transport network 
to enhance access to jobs, markets, skills and 
supply chains, adopting technology solutions 
to support this.

We need to develop integrated transport 
connections and improve access on four 
geographical scales:

•  within our City Region;

•  to other (e.g. non-constituent areas) and 
   centres in the North;

•  �to locations in the UK beyond the North, such 
as London; 

•  to our international markets.

By increasing intra-regional connectivity, we 
will provide access to jobs, skills and education 
opportunities for everyone in our City Region, 
while improving access to markets and supply 
chains for our businesses. 

Most SCR residents (85.3%) commute within 
the City Region boundaries, with the highest 
amount of intra-regional commuting taking 
place between Sheffield and Rotherham, 
highlighting the need for improved 
connectivity by sustainable modes.

We also need to improve inter-regional 
connectivity, particularly east-west 
connections, and connectivity  across the 
North, which will widen our labour market 
as people can live and work in different city 
regions. HS2 and Northern Powerhouse Rail 
(NPR) provide the prospect of transformational 
change. The UK Government plans to invest
£106bn to build HS2, from London to 
Birmingham, South Yorkshire, Leeds, and 
Manchester. HS2 and NPR have the potential 
to be a catalyst for regeneration across the City 
Region. There is much to be done however, in 
the short to medium term to secure benefits 
from rail investment, including completing the 
upgrade of the Hope Valley Line and making 
the case to reinstate rail routes that are not in 
use or are currently underutilised.

Access to national and international markets 
is essential in our ever-increasing global 
economy and we will seek to embrace both 
new and proven technologies that will 
improve this. We are in an excellent position 
to capitalise on our existing assets to achieve 
this, in particular, Doncaster Sheffield Airport 
and the proposed development surrounding it. 
However, connectivity to and from DSA needs 
to be as sustainable, efficient, and effective as 
possible. We will work with DSA to achieve its 
full potential, whilst also recognising that we 
must balance this with our net-zero ambition.

Page 90



57

6.2.2   Enhance productivity by making our 
transport system faster, more reliable and 
more resilient, considering the role of new 
technologies to achieve this.

Transport improvements can enhance 
productivity by making travel to and from 
work, as well as travel for work, quick and 
efficient, so that more time can be spent being 
productive. We know that congestion in our 
City Region is already restricting economic 
growth. For example, analysis shows that travel 
times can be over 30% longer at peak times 
compared to off peak times for rail services 
arriving and departing from Sheffield Midland 
station.

The solution is not more roads but how we 
use road space more efficiently, prioritising 
uses that move people most effectively. 
Pedestrians, cyclists, and other transport 
modes that involve physical activity need the 
highest priority when planning, designing, and 
developing our road infrastructure. 

As a result of Covid-19, our experience 
and expectations of travel is undergoing a 
revolution. Covid-19 has meant that some 
trends have accelerated. Major upward trends 
in intelligent mobility and transport systems, 
autonomous vehicles and artificial intelligence 
need to be embraced. The successful adoption 
of future mobility and digital applications 
and services in SCR are reliant not only on 
technological advancement, but also on the 
governance and regulatory regime within 
which they operate.

There is also potential for the future of 
technology to address aspects of transport 
poverty, low carbon futures, and unlock 
economic growth. We will harness the 
opportunities presented by regional 
employment and specialisms  
in the transport sector. 

Provision of accurate and timely transport 
information allows SCR residents to make the 
best travel choices. Currently information can 
be patchy or in some cases it is not available 
at all. Working with Transport for the North 
(TfN), regional partners and local operators, 
there is a need to maximise digital applications 
to support modern payment methods and 
mobile travel information. This will improve 
the passenger experience and can address 
reliability by reducing boarding times.

Page 91



58

6.2.3. Invest in integrated packages of 
infrastructure to unlock future economic 
growth and support Local Plans, including new 
housing provision.

Unlocking sites for housing and commercial 
growth requires integrated packages of 
infrastructure that consider land use planning 
and the aims of our SEP holistically. This holistic 
approach will enable the best use of our 
existing assets and capitalise on our current 
resources to unlock growth in a cost effective 
and sustainable way. Transport requirements 
should be considered during the early stages 
of planning a new development to ensure 
enough provision is made. This also needs 
to align with and support Local Plans so that 
there is a coordinated and concerted effort to 
plan transport, development and regeneration 
in a coordinated manner.

Transport can play a major role in improving 
the quality of our outdoors. Vehicle emissions 
affect air quality, which affects human 
health and can impact on biodiversity. 
Carbon emissions are worsoning the  climate 
emergency. Furthermore, the resilience of the 
transport system to current and future climate 
risks, especially flooding, remains a continued 
concern.

Page 92



59

6.3   How do we create 
the transformative change 
needed?

The following priorities were outlined in the 
SCR Transport Strategy and highlight our 
priorities on the evolving transport agenda. 
We will build on existing strategies to drive 
sustainable and inclusive economic growth: 

A.  Improve the existing transport network

Mass transit, buses, and local rail links play a 
crucial role in driving the economy as well as 
reducing carbon emissions, providing a vital 
service to communities and are particularly 
essential transport modes for the 35% of 
households without access to a car. The 
Transport Strategy’s ambition is for a world-
class public transport system that connects 
different travel modes seamlessly into one 
comprehensive, easy-to-use network. By using 
our road network efficiently, we shall continue 
to support growth but also secure the 
modal shift commitments set out in the SCR 
Transport Strategy. SCR MCA will transform the 
performance, image and experience of public 
transport to make it an attractive choice for all:

•  Buses - We will work with partners to action, 
where possible the recommendations of the 
SCR independent bus review, focusing upon 
improved performance, principally reliability, 
frequency, affordability, and connectivity. We 
will work with the business community in the 
redesigning of our bus network to ensure their 
needs are captured alongside everyone else’s.

•  Tram Renewal - SCR MCA must futureproof 
the existing ageing Supertram network. We 
will work with the UK Government to secure  
the support needed to renew this strategic 
asset.

•  Train-Tram Extension - The extension is a 
crucial part of the broader Strategic Transit 
Network promoted in the SCR Transport 
Strategy. Tram-Train has the potential to plug 
gaps in mass-public transport between key 
urban centres and strategic assets whilst also 
relieving capacity constraints. Train-Tram is a 
key component supporting our urban centres 
and key growth sites and will connect our 
people to opportunities in a sustainable way. 
Key interventions needed include completion 
of the innovative tram-train pilot, business case 
development for extension into Doncaster and 
Barnsley, and options appraisal for expansion of 
Park & Ride provision to reduce congestion in 
urban areas.

•  Active Travel – Enabling more cycling and 
walking to take place across the region. 

•  Road investment – Roads can unlock growth 
potential, provide connection to public 
transport and join up a network where other 
options are not available. The road network 
also facilitates the performance of SCR’s 
businesses and supports inter-regional flow, 
particularly for freight and logistics sectors. 

In the context of a climate emergency and 
a commitment to achieve net-zero carbon 
emissions by 2040, the focus will be on making 
the best of existing roads, before building new 
ones. Public transport priority and investment 
in high quality cycling options will be an 
important focus of road investment. 

Page 93



60

B.  A transport system that is faster, more 
reliable and more resilient

We will connect our employment, housing 
and commercial sites through rapid, 
efficient public transport and cycling and 
walking infrastructure. It is essential that 
key employment centres like our urban 
centres, AMID and our emerging innovation 
clusters are equipped with better transport 
connectivity to enable accelerated growth. 
These will benefit from investment to improve 
mode choice, smarter traffic information 
systems and charging point networks for 
electric vehicles, using renewable energy 
sources. Rapid public transport connections 
will require the patronage to make this 
sustainable and therefore the way that 
journeys are currently undertaken needs to 
change. 

We need to plan for growth at all scales. 
Transport interventions are often vital to 
unlocking new sites for development. There is 
an opportunity to re-open rail infrastructure 
that has laid dormant or is currently 
underutilised to support growth. It will be 
essential to designing new and growing places 
to support sustainable transport. As we plan 
for growth for the whole City Region, our plans 
for tram renewal and extension will be taken 
forward.

C.  Integrated packages of infrastructure to 
unlock future economic growth 

The significant transport investment needed 
in SCR, as set out in our Transport Strategy, 
is well aligned with TfN, NPR, and other UK 
Government plans. Our plans look to maximise 
the benefits of HS2 and NPR. The SCR 
Integrated Rail Plan includes several priorities 
with the following specifically aligned to this 
SEP:

•  Connecting HS2 trains from the centre 
of Sheffield to Leeds and the north east of 
England; improving the speed and frequency 
of trains from SCR to Greater Manchester 
and Leeds; new Intercity rail connectivity 
direct into the town centres of Barnsley and 
Rotherham; a new station in the Dearne 
Valley, a direct national rail connection to DSA, 
major improvements at Sheffield Midland 
station and other local stations through NPR; 
completing the upgrade of the Hope Valley 
Line; and opening of low usage or closed rail 
lines to new passenger and freight services; for 
example, Waverly station (to serve AMID).

Page 94



61

SCR MCA requires investment in infrastructure 
and schemes to support a move to zero-
carbon transport fuel such as hydrogen, 
encourage a modal shift to active travel and 
public transport, and prioritise sustainable 
travel modes over private cars to reduce the 
number of vehicles on our roads. The SCR 
also needs to rapidly improve its EV charging 
infrastructure, as outlined in section 5. 

SCR can maximise opportunities from future 
transport investment and innovation. SCR 
MCA will support the growth of our transport 
industry to enter and prosper in global supply 
chains. SCR MCA will work in partnership with 
our universities and businesses to accelerate 
the translation of research and development 
of new transport technologies into prototypes, 
pilots, and trial products.

Key intervention areas: 

•  �Connect residents to employment opportunities and key growth sites with rapid, 
efficient public transport and cycling and walking infrastructure.

•  �Encourage modal shift to active travel and public transport by growing an extensive 
and integrated network of cycling and walking routes. 

•  Harness our intelligent mobility capabilities and ambitions.

•  �Deliver a range of transport packages to connect SCR to national and international 
markets. 

•  �Work in partnership with our universities and businesses to accelerate the translation of 
research and development of new transport technologies into prototypes, pilots, and 
commercialised products.

•	� Invest in infrastructure and schemes to support a move to zero-carbon transport fuel.

Page 95



62

7. A Digital Revolution 
 

7.1 Why do we need to change?

7.1.1 Digital technology does not stand still

The quality and coverage of SCR’s digital 
infrastructure is critical to realising future 
ambitions. During Covid-19 ‘lockdown’, the 
quality and coverage of digital infrastructure 
has shown some limitations and confirmed 
the ‘digital divide’. There is a need for full fibre 
and 5G coverage across the whole region, 
some areas of which still have inadequate 
4G coverage. SCR is already lagging behind 
other city regions, with open access full fibre 
coverage only half the national average. In 
addition, although we now have near 100% 
superfast (30-100 Mbps) coverage due to 
the successful Superfast South Yorkshire 
Programme, the city region needs to gear up 
to ultrafast services (300+Mbps) and Gigabit 
speed25  services, which is transforming how 
information is processed, and services are 
delivered. 

The Government has set a target for full 
Gigabit service coverage across the UK by 
2025, but there is an opportunity to achieve 
this target across the SCR before 2025; thereby 
maximising the economic and inclusive 
opportunities this would present.

But it is not just about speed. Our digital 
capabilities and the successful application 
of digital technology is equally vital. The 
increasing number of ‘smart’ devices are 
disrupting markets for basic everyday 
appliances (e.g. TVs, heating systems, and 
fridges)26. New product design, manufacturing 
techniques, use of artificial intelligence, 
autonomous vehicles, smart devices, new 
forms of wireless connectivity (5G and 6G in 
the future) and infrastructure upgrades all 
present significant opportunities for new jobs, 
investment, and productivity improvements. A 
society  that does not adapt, enable and fully 
exploit these changes and opportunities will 
be left behind both economically and socially.

The digital revolution is transforming every aspect of our lives, globalising 
communications, forming new linkages, and driving new economic activity. Covid-19 
appears to have intensified the move towards digital technologies in our homes and 
workplaces. Digital connectivity enables residents and businesses to use digital solutions 
to improve their lives and to sustain, grow, and create new businesses. SCR will drive 
sustainable and inclusive growth by ensuring we get the balance right between ‘soft’ 
and ‘hard’ infrastructure. This means creating the enabling conditions for residents 
and businesses to connect, gain digital skills, adopt new processes, and exploit the 
opportunities this opens. It also means securing investment in the ‘hard’ infrastructure to 
make this possible and ensure we have digital connectivity fit for the 21st century.
This chapter focusses on how greater adoption of digital technology can help people 
and organisations throughout the region to prosper. Our approach for how to support 
growth and innovation the digital and tech sector itself – a key strength within the 
region – is set out in Chapter 3.

25�HD TVs run at 8mbs; 4k TVs stream at 32mbs each and the next generation of TVs will be even higher –  
NB definition of Superfast is 24-30mbs (not enough for one 4k TV)

26Also termed the ‘Internet of Things’ (IoT)

Page 96



63

7.1.2  Strengthening SCR’s digital economy

Our City Region’s digital technology  industry 
currently makes a smaller contribution to the 
economy compared to northern England 
and the national average. However, SCR has a 
notable presence in several digital technology 
industry sub-sectors including creative, 
mobility, industrial, data science and learning 
(EdTech) technologies.

However, demand and take up of full fibre 
digital connectivity SMEs is still relatively 
low, suggesting that across the economy the 
benefits of enhanced digital connectivity, for 
improving productivity and driving economic 
innovation, may not be fully realised.

Accelerator programmes within the City 
Region have been limited so far. Although 
there has been recent progress, we want 
to ensure that we have digital technology 
accelerator programmes comparable with 
the private sector-driven offer available in 
other Northern cities. The supply of incubator 
facilities and managed workspaces
has grown strongly in recent years, and there is 
a healthy pipeline of new innovation-focused 
development, particularly in Sheffield and at 
the Barnsley Digital Media Campus.
However, a lot more is needed and there are 
reported constraints in accessing suitable 
grow-on space as digital technology and 
creative sector firms scale up.

27SCR Digital Action Plan Evidence Base (2018)
28SCR Digital Action Plan Evidence Base (2018)

Economic gains  
from digital infrastructure
Significant economic gains are 
possible if we can deploy the best 
infrastructure for digital connectivity. 
Analysis of the benefits of digital 
infrastructure has posited that the 
total economic impact of  deploying 
full fibre broadband networks in 
South Yorkshire could be as high as 
£2.8bn over 15 years. Almost half 
of these gains are derived from 5G 
connectivity which is anticipated 
to open new business models and 
bring forward products and services 
in sectors such as transport & 
logistics, finance, health & social care, 
manufacturing, and retail.

Page 97



64

7.1.3 Digital skills need to be embedded within 
the existing and future workforce

The growth of our economy is strongly linked 
to the digital skills of the workforce. Digital 
technology and creative workers are highly 
skilled, with over 40% qualified to degree level 
or higher27. Forecasts also suggest that 10,000 
new digital technology and creative sector 
employees will be needed by 2024 in SCR28, 
equivalent to around half of the whole digital 
workforce. The pace of change means that all 
sectors will become ‘digital’ and will need to 
upskill their workers. This highlights challenges 
and opportunities for large employers and 
anchor institutions in the City Region.
We are building on strong foundations of 
existing activities and delivery to upskill the 
workforce with effective school, college, 
apprenticeship and UTC programmes 
providing a talent pipeline for businesses 
utilising digital technologies. Despite strengths 
in delivery, digital exclusion is high. Few 
women engage in IT-related learning at 
higher technical level, and learner pathways 
are unclear. None of these factors are unique 
to the SCR, although local learning providers 
and businesses have expressed frustration at 
the apparent mismatch between supply and 
demand in a fast-moving technology rich 
environment. 

7.1.4 A digital world should not leave people 
behind

Covid-19 has confirmed that is is crucial that 
the population has the ability and confidence 
to use digital technology, particularly as more 
everyday activities and services become 
digitised, affecting all aspects of our lives. 
The benefits are ever-growing and include 
accessing public services like healthcare 
and private services like banking, but also 
social engagement, media connectivity, and 
shopping. Importantly, this can align with 
other critical agendas such as reducing carbon 
emissions and minimising the costs of travel.

The platform for raising 
digital skills 
•  Schools - As the national leader, and 
a globally significant player in EdTech, 
SCR has a good opportunity to 
enhance digital skills within the future 
workforce from an early age.

•  Universities - SCR’s university base 
is an important source of talent, with 
around 700 graduates in computer 
science and related subjects each year. 

•  Apprenticeships - Every year 1,200 
people enrol on digital-related 
apprenticeships. 

•  Further Education - Almost 10,000 
people in the SCR enrol on ‘digital-
related’ education and training 
courses per year, primarily within 
SCR’s Colleges. In addition, the City 
Region’s UTCs’ focus on engineering, 
digital, and manufacturing.

•  Informal Learning - Many of the 
City Region’s coding clubs and other 
informal activities are driven on a 
voluntary basis, often located within 
schools and public venues. Some 
schools run free after school code 
clubs for 9 to 13-year olds, supported 
by organisations such as Raspberry Pi 
Foundations.

Page 98



65

7.2 What do we need to  
do to create change?

The ambition for digital is that SCR will be 
recognised as one of the best- connected city 
regions in the country where coverage, choice, 
and speed of communication stays ahead of 
demand and where there is an abundance 
of multi-skilled, digitally mature individuals 
to cater for every industry’s business needs. 
Enhanced digital  connectivity and skills enable 
people to use digital applications and solutions 
to improve their lives and to sustain, grow, and 
create new businesses. Almost every aspect of 
the economy is being transformed by digital 
technology. The rationale for change outlines 
four strategic areas for us to focus on:

A.  Secure cutting-edge digital infrastructure to 
develop smart communities 

We will enhance SCR’s digital ecosystem by 
ensuring the supply of ‘hard’ infrastructure 
(full fibre and 5G) across the whole of the 
SCR, some areas of which still do not have 
4G connectivity. This will likely require public 
interventions where market failure exists 
to accelerate and bring forward delivery. 
However, extending digital connectivity 
coverage alone will not in itself achieve the 
economic and social benefits that we want to 
realise. This will rely on progressing the other 
three areas of activity above in parallel.

B.  Improve digital skills 

We need to increase understanding and take-
up of digital technologies across the whole of 
the City Region. We will develop, attract, and 
retain talent, increasing (and enhancing) the 
supply of digital skills and ensuring that the 
digital technology and creative curriculum 
(at all levels) is relevant to rapidly changing 
business needs.

C.  Ensure that we build inclusivity
We must support and enable digital inclusion 
to widen participation and build capability for 
all. We will do this by combating the factors 
that keep people excluded from the digital 
economy, and ensuring all of SCR’s residents 
have, at the very least, the basic access, skills, 
and confidence they need to harness the 
benefits of digital in their lives and work. 

D.  Support business innovation and growth

We will support businesses, particularly 
SMEs, to better understand and exploit the 
productivity improvements that enhanced 
broadband connectivity and application of 
digital technology in their business could 
bring. We will do this by supporting SMEs 
to become full-fibre and 5G connected; 
providing better links to schools, colleges and 
universities to access the future digital skills 
they will need; and enabling them to exploit
the commercial benefits of digital applications 
and services to innovate and scale-up business 
activities and growth. This could include 
deployment within the public sector to 
increase efficiency of services, as well as within 
innovating firms that stand to benefit from 
greater exposure and capabilities of digital 
technology.
It also involves developing investor networks 
and attracting commercial digital accelerators, 
building on home-grown examples such as 
those established in Sheffield.

Page 99



66

7.3  How do we create the 
transformative change 
needed?

Our digital priorities that relate to skills and 
business will be delivered in line with the 
respective sections already presented in this 
strategy. The actions below are focused on 
infrastructure and inclusion.

A.  Secure cutting-edge digital infrastructure to 
develop smart communities 

•  Identifying and leading on barrier-busting 
measures to accelerate deployment of full 
fibre and 5G, including the utilisation of public 
sector land and assets.

•  Providing infrastructure support and 
interventions where it is commercially 
prohibitive such as ‘hard to reach’ areas.

•  Ensuring consistency in local planning 
approaches across the SCR to future 
digital infrastructure and service provision 
requirements, both promoting provider 
certainty for investment in the sector and 
enabling accelerated adoption of the digital 
developments and the ‘SMART’ agenda.

B.  Build inclusivity and essential skills for life 
and work:

•  Supporting the role of formal and informal 
(e.g. community-based) learning provision for 
adults at risk or those excluded from the digital 
economy or digital-first services;

•  Connecting with initiatives (e.g. the Future. 
Now alliance) to improve essential digital 
skills in the wider workforce, building digital 
adaptability of staff, suppliers and businesses; 

•  Actively supporting the development of 
‘assistive technologies’ which enable people 
with disabilities to better access digital services 
and products;

•  Working with partners across SCR to improve 
digital access and affordability for residents, 
where this remains a significant barrier for 
people; and

•  Working with partners across SCR to improve 
access to digital infrastructure and services, 
which is affordable  for residents, where this 
remains a significant barrier for people; and

Key intervention areas:

•  �Creating the enabling conditions for a 
digital future through the accelerated 
roll-out of full fibre and 5G across the 
SCR and supporting ‘SMART cities’ 
interventions.

•  �Ensuring SCR is an attractive place 
to invest in the digital sector and 
encouraging the private and public 
sector to adopt cutting edge digital 
technology and innovate.

•  �Maximising digital’s contribution 
to economic growth by nurturing 
commercial and entrepreneurial 
successes and increasing businesses’ 
digital capability, adoption and access.

•  �Boosting digital skills development 
by connecting talent with employers, 
connecting the digital community and 
maximising opportunities from digital 
skills development programmes. 

•  �Focus on digital skills and collaboration 
to support individuals and organisations 
in tackling digital inequalities.

Page 100



67

8.  Land, Housing & Built Environment 
 

8.1  Why do we need change? 

SCR has over 1,300 ha of employment 
land ready for commercial and industrial 
development across the City Region, able to 
accommodate up to 96,000 new jobs. At the 
same time, we are building over 6,000 new 
homes every year with plans to continue this 
over the next ten to 15 years. However, we are 
not attracting enough productive and growing 
businesses to these sites. Furthermore, 
Covid-19 has changed how people interact 
spatially, and their needs for housing and 
workspace, demonstrate the necessity of more 
creative and flexible to be considered within 
existing and new developments. 

Many of our larger sites are well served by 
roads but have little in the way of public 
transport or active travel options, meaning that 
they are not well integrated into surrounding 
communities and difficult to reach from other 
parts of the city region. 

At the same time, a reliance on road links 
means skew land development towards certain 
sectors, many of which have traditionally 
largely generated low value jobs. This then 
displaces or restricts development in higher 
value activities.

Furthermore, our industrial past means that 
investment is needed to remediate sites and 
improve the local environment in order to 
create the basis for new development.

2966% of existing stock is below EPC Rating C.

The availability of good quality, well connected and attractive development land for new 
homes and jobs is a major competitive advantage for SCR.    But there are challenges with 
the quality of our existing built environment, especially in urban areas, and a need to 
invest in our current housing stock. The attractiveness and viability of some employment 
locations mean that they are not attracting the quality of jobs and development we 
demand.

SCR MCA’s approach to land, housing and built environment is to;

• Improve the quality of existing and new housing stock, whilst maintaining housing 
growth;

• Ensure the supply of good quality, attractive and sustainably developed employment 
land that is widely accessible; and,

• Proactively work on strategic planning opportunities to unlock potential through 
joined-up investment packages.

Page 101



68

In terms of the housing market, there are 
stark differences across the city region. The 
polarisation is a barrier to inclusion, limiting 
social mobility and contributing to widening 
inequalities across the city region. The quality 
and energy efficiency of the housing stock is 
also poor with around 400,00 homes in need 
of improvements to meet the standards we 
expect over the lifetime of the SEP29.
Sites and buildings in South Yorkshire are 
not always resilient to the impacts of the 
climate emergency or fit for a low carbon 
future. Flooding events across South Yorkshire 
illustrate the threat of a changing climate to 
communities and our economy.

8.2  What do we need to do to 
create change? 

8.2.1  Land to deliver growth aspirations

We must bring forward a combination of 
mixed-use developments, large strategic 
opportunities and strategic regeneration 
in key growth areas. We need to focus on a 
small number of big opportunities - sites and 
developments that have the scale to benefit 
the wider city region. This will demand a 
much more joined up approach between local 
authorities and other public agencies to share 
resources and jointly deliver, as well as private 
sector investment. We must also continue 
to work across South Yorkshire to provide a 
more consistent and proactive development 
environment that offers support, provides 
certainty and pushes for higher quality. 

8.2.2   Unlocking our housing potential 

There are three aspects to SCR’s housing 
market which can deliver a sustainable housing 
market:

•  Existing Homes - There is potential for 
existing homes to play a much bigger part in 
regeneration and the local economy. Renewal 
or upgrades to the housing stock can unlock 
investment, creating new jobs and business 
opportunities locally. 

•  New Homes - New and affordable 
homes needs to drive greater density in 
urban areas, benefit from (and deliver30) 
transport connectivity and enhance the built 
environment, helping to create more attractive 
places to encourage demand.

•  Housing Innovation: Modern methods 
of construction have the potential to 
revolutionise the way that new homes are 
delivered in South Yorkshire, providing 
higher build standards and more efficient 
technologies than traditional construction. 
Alongside technological innovation, we 
need to encourage investment in affordable 
housing that utilises cutting edge innovations 
(e.g. heating). Housing investments will 
need to complement skills and employment 
opportunities so local people can benefit from 
the jobs this creates as well as new investment 
models and products such as Build to Rent, to 
provide the range of homes and tenures that 
people now demand.

30Through greater density, urban areas can make public transport connectivity more viable and development can also release new investment in existing transport.

Page 102



69

8.2.3   Strengthening our urban centres 

SCR MCA will adopt an integrated  
place-based approach to developing strategic 
regeneration proposals in urban centres 
which aligns investment in infrastructure (e.g. 
land remediation, housing, transport and 
other infrastructure) to create sustainable 
employment and housing sites. This will  
focus on supporting Local Plans to re-structure 
town and city centre economies, helping to 
re-populate and re-purpose our urban cores 
so that they act as a magnet for people, 
businesses and growth in  South Yorkshire.

Where it is best placed to lead, SCR MCA will 
ensure that key growth areas are developed 
through master planning, site assembly, 
marketing and investment. 

8.2.4   Managing land sustainably

Our natural capital and cultural and heritage 
assets are rich and diverse. We will ensure that 
land is developed sensitively and sustainably, 
protecting and enhancing key environmental 
assets whilst unlocking new sites, improving 
access to and the resilience of natural space 
to climate change and other related threats. 
This will involve making the most of the 
infrastructural assets already in place as well 
as adopting different approaches, such as 
nature-based solutions like natural flood 
management, and biodiversity net gain.

SCR MCA will also work closely with 
surrounding areas and our non-constituent 
member areas31 so strategic sites continue to 
offer opportunities and benefits for the wider 
economic area. 

31Non constituent areas include Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales, and North-East Derbyshire.

Page 103



70

8.3   How do we create 
the transformative change 
needed?

Creating strong employment locations in key 
parts of SCR, with good access from residential 
areas, is central to achieving a growing, 
inclusive, and sustainable City Region. The core 
ambitions are therefore to:

•  ��Develop the right residential, industrial 
and commercial sites and premises, well 
connected and in the right locations at a 
scale to support densification and economic 
growth in key parts of SCR;

•  �Ensure that new development is well served 
by high quality, modern infrastructure, well 
connected to other parts of the city region 
and resilient to flooding and the impacts of a 
changing climate;

•  Ensure that SCR’s urban centres are quality 
places where people and businesses choose 
to locate – offering the opportunities to live, 
work, study and relax in a dynamic and diverse 
environment. 

It is critical that we ensure there is enough 
viable land in the right locations, clusters 
and stronger urban centres32. To do so, the 
key priorities for land, housing, and the built 
environment in supporting our innovation and 
growth agenda are outlined below:

A.  Liveability and our housing offer Improve 
the quantity and choice of high-quality homes 
by adopting Modern Methods of Construction 
and supporting new and innovative models of 
investment through: 

•  �Working with partners to promote 
development that adheres to quality 
standards, low carbon and biodiversity net 
gain requirements and prioritises modern 
methods of construction;

•  �Supporting the delivery of new housing and 
business space; 

•  �Upgrading existing housing stock to higher 
environmental standards;

•  �Ensuring that all new housing developments 
have full fibre digital connectivity;

•  �Stimulating the development of affordable 
homes in sustainable, vibrant and mixed 
urban centres.

32Please see section 3 for more details

Page 104



71

B.  Planning Strategically - A long-term and 
more integrated approach for development. 
SCR MCA will lead by:

•  �Building on the SCR Statement of Common 
Ground through joined up strategic 
working on cross boundary place issues (e.g. 
biodiversity, flood risk, housing, economic 
growth, low carbon, transport and flood risk);

•  �Providing a framework to consider spatial 
impact of development to ensure that new 
employment sites are accessible and modern;

•  �Releasing/unlocking sites by overcoming 
barriers to viability and working proactively 
to make the most of public funding and drive 
through development;

•  �Working with local authorities to authorise 
compulsory purchase orders or other 
powers we need around key development 
sites to push development forward, where 
appropriate; and,

•  �Providing the framework to benefit from 
land value capture and ensure a return on 
investment to fund infrastructure needed.

C.  Maximise public assets - Utilising public 
assets and the public estate to drive 
regeneration, host digital infrastructure, and 
enable innovative place shaping.

D.  Natural capital enhancement - Deploying 
innovative finance, policy, and delivery 
mechanisms to improve the stock of natural 
capital (and biodiversity) to allow us to be 
the first generation to leave our natural 
environment in a better state than we found it.

E.  Develop infrastructure investment ‘place 
packages’ - Agreeing packages of interventions 
for each of the key growth areas in the SEP, 
supporting locally driven approaches with 
additional capacity for site assembly and 
infrastructure investment. We will focus on 
a small number of areas which have the 
potential to create change at scale and bring 
benefits to the wider city region:
 
•  Sheffield city centre: 
•  AMID
•  Barnsley Town Centre
•  Rotherham Town Centre
•  Doncaster Town Centre
•  Doncaster Unity
•  Goldthorpe in the Dearne Valley
•  Doncaster Sheffield Airport

Page 105



72 Page 106



73Page 107



74

Key intervention areas:

•  �Ensure the supply of viable land in the right locations, maximising  
the potential for clusters and improving our urban areas.

•  �Improve the quantity and choice of high-quality homes.

•  �Plan strategically through a long-term and more integrated approach  
for development.

•  �Working in partnership with stakeholders to deliver place-based  
policies that improve economic growth, inclusion and environmental sustainability.

•  �Develop infrastructure investment packages for key development opportunities in SCR.

Page 108



75

9.  Outcomes, Benefits and Financial 
Implications 
SCR MCA’s vision – centred on growth, 
inclusion, and environmental sustainability – is 
underpinned by our outcomes framework. 
SCR has developed targets to complement the 
outcomes. These will help to measure progress 
against the outcomes on a regular basis. These 
will help to measure progress against the 
outcomes on a regular basis. The outcomes and 
metrics are ‘live’, will be reviewed over time33.  
They also reflect a focus upon the systemic 
nature of economic development and the 
linkages to health, wellbeing, environment and 
civic society..

The SEP Implementation Plan will set out the 
activities that will take place and how the 
strategy will be delivered.  
It will set out the specific actions that will be 
taken forward and the organisations that are 
responsible for delivering those actions. 

9.1 Outcomes and indicators

The outcomes and targets (Figure 5 and table 
below) will guide all investment decisions that 
SCR controls or influences to ensure this is 
coordinated and that impact is maximised to 
deliver our policy objectives. 

We have developed the outcomes and 
targets to not only provide transparency and 
accountability in terms of our progress, but 
also to inform the decisions we make in how 
we invest the resources available to us and 
how we commission services. 

33�SCR will work with stakeholders to measure so that we can track our performance as accurately as possible.  
This also provides an opportunity to adapt targets in light of more information or more detailed understanding.

Figure 5: Linking the vision to outcomes to indicators 

Vision

A growing and  
resilient economy

Everyone has  
opportunity

Our places are  
sustainable

Outcomes

Our increasingly productive workforce 
and strategic  

investments lead to a growing econ-
omy.

Our people are well-connected to 
new job opportunities, with access to 
progression, supported by affordable 

living.

Healthy, safe, and vibrant places offer 
climate and environmental resilience 
alongside a high quality of life offer.

Indicator

GVA per worker, R&D spending 
and high level occupations 

increase

Our lag in digital capability, 
educational outcomes and 

wage levels close whilst housing 
remains affordable

Environmental quality and 
cultural participation rise  whilst 

fuel poverty and deprivation 
decline.

Page 109



76

The targets highlight areas where we would like to monitor progress and are mostly relative, 
meaning that progress is measured against wider change. The targets will require regular 
review, particularly when data and metrics improve, evolve, or if the wider economic, social, or 
environmental context changes. At time of writing, the targets will lead to the following outputs 
by 2040:

•  �Economy: Productivity growth which will drive an extra £7.6 billion  
Gross Value Added (GVA).

•  J�obs: Progression will see an extra 33,000 in higher level jobs.

•  �Wages: Raise average wages, and particularly the lowest wages, across South Yorkshire, in line 
with the national average (closing the current gap of £1,500 for the lowest paid and £2,800 for 
the average).

•  �Environment: Delivering a net zero carbon emission target for South Yorkshire.

•  ��Skills: Skills and education progression and attainment rates improve,  
leading to 30,000 more people with higher levels skills (NQF Level 3+)  
and 9,000 fewer people with no skills or low qualifications.

•  �Health: Healthy life expectancy at birth to match the national average,  
with an improvement by roughly 3 years for men and women in SCR.

More detail on the outcomes and targets is provided in the following tables.

Page 110



77Page 111



78

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

Productivity Our workforce’s productivity will increase, positively 
benefitting the prosperity of our residents.

Labour productivity measured in Gross Value Added 
(GVA) per employee. Annual Population Survey.

100% of UK average*

Economic output per capita The size of our economy relative to our population will 
increase.

GVA per capita, rather than employee as above. Annual 
Population Survey.

68% of UK average (2017)

100% of UK average*

R&D expenditure A greater investment in R&D (relative to our economy) 
indicates an innovative economy.

R&D expenditure as a proportion of economy using ONS 
and EUROSTAT data.
SCR approx. 1%

UK Government  
target of 2.4%

Personal Wellbeing Estimated levels of worthwhile, life satisfaction, happiness 
and anxiety are indicators of personal well-being.

Individual areas in SCR currently lower for anxiety 
and happiness wellbeing estimates than the national 

Exceeding national average.

Enterprise Higher density and growing business base. Enterprise growth rate is approximately 15-16% using 
ONS Business Demography data.

Target birth rate of 16%.

Car usage Car usage falls, indicating mode share and lower pollution 
due to transport.

Car usage measured by vehicle miles. Annual road traffic 
statistics by Department for Transport.

Equal to UK level

Digital connectivity A higher proportion of our region is covered by both full 
fibre & 5G broadband.

Percentage of full fibre coverage of residential and 
business premises. Weekly network rollouts modelled by 
Think Broadband based on Openreach data.

No increase in ratio

Housing costs The housing system and wider economy means that earning 
power is not being eroded by inflating house prices.

Lower quartile house price to earnings ratio. MHCLG 
‘House price (existing dwellings) to residence-based 
earnings ratio’.

No increase in ratio

Page 112



79

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

Productivity Our workforce’s productivity will increase, positively 
benefitting the prosperity of our residents.

Labour productivity measured in Gross Value Added 
(GVA) per employee. Annual Population Survey.

100% of UK average*

Economic output per capita The size of our economy relative to our population will 
increase.

GVA per capita, rather than employee as above. Annual 
Population Survey.

68% of UK average (2017)

100% of UK average*

R&D expenditure A greater investment in R&D (relative to our economy) 
indicates an innovative economy.

R&D expenditure as a proportion of economy using ONS 
and EUROSTAT data.
SCR approx. 1%

UK Government  
target of 2.4%

Personal Wellbeing Estimated levels of worthwhile, life satisfaction, happiness 
and anxiety are indicators of personal well-being.

Individual areas in SCR currently lower for anxiety 
and happiness wellbeing estimates than the national 

Exceeding national average.

Enterprise Higher density and growing business base. Enterprise growth rate is approximately 15-16% using 
ONS Business Demography data.

Target birth rate of 16%.

Car usage Car usage falls, indicating mode share and lower pollution 
due to transport.

Car usage measured by vehicle miles. Annual road traffic 
statistics by Department for Transport.

Equal to UK level

Digital connectivity A higher proportion of our region is covered by both full 
fibre & 5G broadband.

Percentage of full fibre coverage of residential and 
business premises. Weekly network rollouts modelled by 
Think Broadband based on Openreach data.

No increase in ratio

Housing costs The housing system and wider economy means that earning 
power is not being eroded by inflating house prices.

Lower quartile house price to earnings ratio. MHCLG 
‘House price (existing dwellings) to residence-based 
earnings ratio’.

No increase in ratio

*MCA and LEP will work with partners to ensure SCR at least achieves these lower bound targets.
Page 113



80

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

School leavers More children leave secondary school  
with better attainment to boost their prospects entering 
further education and employment.

Attainment 8 scores average, Department  
for Education administration data.

BMBC – 42.5, DMBC – 42.7, RMBC – 43.6,  
SCC – 44.6
England – 46.1
(2018)

Equal to England level

Education A higher proportion of working-age population possess 
higher qualifications, indicating progression in education 
and employment.

NVQ level 3 and above included.  
Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 54.2% 
GB – 57.8%
(2018)

Equal to UK level

Wage levels A lower proportion of employees on low earnings (defined 
as 20th percentile of earnings distribution).

Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings.
£8.92 per hour 3% below UK level
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Higher-level occupations Higher proportion of employees in managerial, technical & 
professional occupations.

Standard Occupation Classifications  
1-3 represent higher-level occupations. 
Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 43.4%
UK – 47.0%
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Unemployment More working-age people are in employment. Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 5.2% 
UK – 4.0%
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Page 114



81

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

School leavers More children leave secondary school  
with better attainment to boost their prospects entering 
further education and employment.

Attainment 8 scores average, Department  
for Education administration data.

BMBC – 42.5, DMBC – 42.7, RMBC – 43.6,  
SCC – 44.6
England – 46.1
(2018)

Equal to England level

Education A higher proportion of working-age population possess 
higher qualifications, indicating progression in education 
and employment.

NVQ level 3 and above included.  
Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 54.2% 
GB – 57.8%
(2018)

Equal to UK level

Wage levels A lower proportion of employees on low earnings (defined 
as 20th percentile of earnings distribution).

Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings.
£8.92 per hour 3% below UK level
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Higher-level occupations Higher proportion of employees in managerial, technical & 
professional occupations.

Standard Occupation Classifications  
1-3 represent higher-level occupations. 
Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 43.4%
UK – 47.0%
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Unemployment More working-age people are in employment. Annual Population Survey.

SCR – 5.2% 
UK – 4.0%
(2019)

Equal to UK level

Page 115



82

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

Air quality Improvement in air quality, as measured by relevant 
different particulate matter.

To be developed based on public health agreements 
and available data.

Equal to England level

Health Our population live increasingly long, healthy lives. Healthy life expectancy at birth.
SCR – male 60.2 years, SCR – female 60.2 years
UK – male 63.1 years, UK – female 63.6 years

Equal to UK level

Fuel poverty Fewer households living in fuel poverty. BEIS Sub-Regional Fuel Poverty Estimates.
SCR – 10.6%
England – 10.9%
(2017)

Equal to UK level

Cultural participation Gap for overall participation in cultural activity between SCR 
and national average closes.

To be developed awaiting regular updates  
and reliable data.

Equal to UK level

Deprivation Lower share of local areas in deprivation. MHCLG Index of Multiple Deprivation –  
a composite of indicators including income, 
employment, education, health, crime, barriers to 
housings and services, living environment deprivation.

BMBC – 22%, DMBC – 24%, RMBC – 22%,  
SCC – 22% (2019)

Equal to UK level

Climate and environment Improving ‘value’ of natural environment measured by 
ecosystem service provision.

To be developed awaiting regular updates  
and reliable data.

Page 116



83

Indicator Desired outcome Data 2040 target

Air quality Improvement in air quality, as measured by relevant 
different particulate matter.

To be developed based on public health agreements 
and available data.

Equal to England level

Health Our population live increasingly long, healthy lives. Healthy life expectancy at birth.
SCR – male 60.2 years, SCR – female 60.2 years
UK – male 63.1 years, UK – female 63.6 years

Equal to UK level

Fuel poverty Fewer households living in fuel poverty. BEIS Sub-Regional Fuel Poverty Estimates.
SCR – 10.6%
England – 10.9%
(2017)

Equal to UK level

Cultural participation Gap for overall participation in cultural activity between SCR 
and national average closes.

To be developed awaiting regular updates  
and reliable data.

Equal to UK level

Deprivation Lower share of local areas in deprivation. MHCLG Index of Multiple Deprivation –  
a composite of indicators including income, 
employment, education, health, crime, barriers to 
housings and services, living environment deprivation.

BMBC – 22%, DMBC – 24%, RMBC – 22%,  
SCC – 22% (2019)

Equal to UK level

Climate and environment Improving ‘value’ of natural environment measured by 
ecosystem service provision.

To be developed awaiting regular updates  
and reliable data.

Page 117



84

9.2 Economic  
and Financial Benefits
This SEP, when delivered, will make a 
significant economic contribution to the 
national economy and financial benefits to the 
public purse. The actions and ambitions set out 
in the document will unleash  the potential of 
people, employers and places and accelerate 
the transformation of South Yorkshire, levelling 
it up with  the rest of the UK.

Quantifying the additional benefits that 
this SEP offers has been informed by 
an econometric analysis of the outputs 
and outcomes. This was informed by the 
development of a series of logic models 
to align the key policy objectives with the 
broad mechanisms through which these 
are to be achieved. The modelling has been 
underpinned by engagement with and 
scrutiny from industry experts and academics. 

Investment in SCR will yield a significant return 
on investment for Government, delivering 
quality jobs, higher productivity, new 
businesses and more new and commercialised 
ideas that will keep the UK at the cutting edge 
of innovation globally. 

Based upon the analysis of current trends 
and critical assessment of agreed targets, the 
headline benefits are summarised here. This 
shows the additionality that delivery of the SEP 
offers South Yorkshire, the North of England 
and the UK.

Page 118



85

Potential benefits from delivering the SEP 
 

These benefits confirm that investment in South Yorkshire is prudent and sensible and will 
provide a valuable return on investment for the local and national economy. 
The LEP and MCA’s track record of delivery will ensure that these opportunities are realised in this 
generation. South Yorkshire has made remarkable progress, but the transformation is only just 
beginning. Our track record, combined with the economic potential set out in this SEP, shows how 
investment can deliver a stronger, greener and fairer South Yorkshire. 

Page 119



86

Appendix A – Summary  
of Evidence Base
Over the last decade the SCR economy has grown much faster than expected. Latest figures 
show the economy generated £27bn in GVA (around 8% of the Northern Powerhouse total)34. The 
GVA, job growth, and business start-up targets35 that were set in the 2015-2025 SEP have all been 
exceeded. However, SCR still lags the England average for productivity and is ranked 33rd out of 
38 LEP areas, which is lower than all other English city regions. 

Figure 5: Productivity per worker 

 
Source: ONS GVA per worker estimates 2018

In addition, the benefits of productivity gains have not been felt by the majority of our 
population. Growth since 2015 has predominantly been in low-wage and lower productivity 
sectors (such as public administration, health/care, education, and logistics)36 and low-skill 
occupations (such as administration, trades, and service occupations).

This SEP aims to achieve a step change and give everyone an opportunity to benefit from 
prosperity, not just those working in high-wage and high-skill professions. 

34�This data refers to SCR’s current composition of the nine local authorities of Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales, Doncaster,  
North East Derbyshire, Rotherham and Sheffield. From April 2020, SCR will only comprise the four South Yorkshire authorities of Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham  
and Sheffield – data from ONS.

35�This data refers to SCR’s current composition (see 36) From April 2020, SCR will only comprise the four South Yorkshire authorities of Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield – throughout the 
SEP we have used data for these four authorities where available. However, in some cases, data is only available for the wider city region. 

36ONS and EMSI 2019

£90,000

£80,000

£70,000

£60,000

£50,000

£40,000

£30,000

£20,000

£10,000

£-

£47,000

£46,500

£46,000

£45,500

£45,000

£44,500

£44,000

£43,500

£43,000

£42,500

£42,000

GVA per worker

GVA per worker

London

United Kingdom

West Midlands
Greater Man-

chester

Liverpool City 
Region Leeds City Region

Leeds City Region

Sheffield City 
Region

Sheffield City 
Region

Barnsley, 
Doncaster and 

Rotherhan

Sheffield

Page 120



87

What’s going well?

There are green shoots of economic and 
productivity growth 

Even though our economy has grown ahead 
of targets set in the last SEP, productivity 
growth has remained flat – although this has 
improved in recent years. There are several 
factors that drive productivity growth37, with 
many highlighting a lack of innovation; in 
its broadest sense and in every part of the 
economy38. Innovation is acknowledged as a 
vital component for improving productivity 
and economic development, with the spatial 
component of this (e.g. clusters within specific 
geographies) remaining a key theme of 
economic theory and policy. 

There are opportunities for productivity 
growth. The SCR has strengths in several 
high-productivity sectors39  relative to the UK 
average, such as in high-precision engineering 
and design. We also have a significant 
proportion of high-growth businesses in 
sectors such as professional services, and 
scientific and technical activities. 

Our strongest potential to form a distinctive, 
market-led, and internationally competitive 
offer exists in fostering and building on our 
expertise in manufacturing, engineering and 
materials as well as healthcare, digital and 
creative technologies.

Our business base is much larger now than in 
2015 and evidence points towards increased 
scale-up potential. SCR has a higher proportion 
of high-growth businesses40 compared with

other similar LEP areas (16% compared with 
12% in Greater Manchester and Liverpool and 
11% in Tees Valley)41. Our five-year business 
survival rate is two percentage points higher 
than the England average.

The enabling conditions for growth exist but 
need to be strengthened

Pre-Covid-19, SCR saw high and growing 
employment rates consistently above other 
similar city regions. We are home to several 
globally renowned skills assets and industry-
leading examples of technical education 
delivery, such as the AMRC, AWRC and UTCs. 
These are changing how the private sector 
engages with skills institutions and drives 
innovation.

The City Region is centrally located for national 
road and rail networks, and DSA is growing 
in international importance, with passenger 
numbers on UK, European and Transatlantic 
flights increasing by 47% since 201643. We 
have benefited from some recent transport 
upgrades and there are major projects in the 
pipeline, such as NPR and HS2.

Superfast broadband (30mbps) coverage 
is over 97% within SCR, and our digital 
technology industry is diverse, including 
gaming and entertainment, business software, 
hardware and devices and telecoms, with the 
presence of nationally and internationally 
important firms. However, there is a lack of 
connectivity around new digital infrastructure 
(e.g. 5g and ultrafast).

37See Productivity Evidence Synthesis - Productivity Insights Network 2018
38As directly measured by patents or indirectly measured through firm surveys or research studies
39In GVA terms
40Defined broadly as a company that has seen 20% growth in turnover and employment in the past 3 years.
41Sheffield City Region Economic Evidence Base (2019) 
42Inclusive Growth Report – SCR. CRESR (2019) 
43Sheffield City Region Economic Evidence Base (2019)

Page 121



88

We are also in a strong position to develop 
and implement solutions that will place 
clean growth and energy efficiency at the 
heart of our industrial base. This includes the 
opportunity to build on our strong research 
capabilities, major employment sites, local 
engineering and manufacturing supply chains, 
and strengths in logistics to manufacturing in 
the low carbon market; contributing towards 
the net-zero carbon emissions target set by 
SCR MCA for 204044.

What needs improvement?

Productivity growth remains important

SCR needs more jobs but the level of 
productivity is the most fundamental and 
important factor determining the standard 
of living. The UK is facing a productivity 
crisis and SCR has some of the lowest levels 
of productivity in England. In SCR, higher 
productivity sectors represent a relatively small 
share of jobs45 and the strongest employment 
growth is forecast in lower productivity 
sectors (such as residential care, food, logistics, 
retail and warehousing)46. There is evidence 
that the productivity is impacted by this 
structural composition of the economy but 
also by a lack of firms headquartered in SCR 
and by undeveloped supply chains47. This is 
compounded by overall low levels of inward 
investment and exporting (compared with 
UK averages) and limited entrepreneurial 
behaviour, resulting in sub-optimal private 
sector business creation. 

Supporting conditions for growth require 
addressing

Innovation - Around £325 million is spent on 
R&D in the SCR with almost 65% of that total 
spent by our two universities. The share of 
business investment, UK Government  and 
private non-profit expenditure on R&D in 
SCR is low compared to the national average 
(despite pockets of greater investment). 
Whilst this is only one measure of innovation, 
it confirms that the innovation platform in 
South Yorkshire needs to re-framed. There 
are opportunities to rebuild our innovation 
landscape. Many aspects of innovation 
are flourishing in the SCR, presenting 
opportunities for new, wealth-creating 
products and services, but the evidence shows 
that not enough companies are taking full 
advantage of these opportunities. SCR has the 
track record and institutional capacity to invest 
in translational research to explore models for 
new interventions that will raise productivity 
levels – not just in traditional ‘high technology’ 
sectors, but also in areas of the foundational 
economy such as social care and retail.

Education, Skills and Employment - SCR’s 
occupational profile is weighted more towards 
lower skilled occupations. We have a higher 
share of low-skilled jobs (36%) and a lower 
share of managerial and professional jobs 
(43%) compared to the national average (33% 
and 47%). Also compared to the national 
average, we have a slightly higher proportion 
of people with no qualifications (8% compared 
to 7.8%) and a lower proportion with higher 
level skills (33% compared with 39%)48. 

44Each individual area within SCR has its own carbon neutral target and this figure is the whole SCR target.
45For example; Professional, Scientific and Technical Activities make up 5.9% of jobs compared to 8.7% in the national economy.
46EMSI sector and employment forecasts to 2040.
47As identified in SCR Evidence base and GIC evidence base.
48ONS - Annual Population Survey 2019

Page 122



89

There are also known skills mismatches and 
skill supply constraints in the economy, with 
areas such as Sheffield experiencing under-
employment of qualified people, while other 
areas struggle to retain highly skilled people. 
Educational attainment at all educational 
levels is often below the national average49 
in too many areas, with a close alignment 
between areas that have poor educational 
outcomes, high deprivation and higher levels 
of worklessness.

Prosperity and Inclusion - Workplace earnings 
are significantly lower than the national and 
regional averages50  and one third of SCR’s 
workforce is employed in the four sectors 
most strongly associated with in-work poverty 
(wholesale and retail, accommodation and 
food, administrative and support services, 
and residential care). There has also been an 
increase in temporary and flexible working 
which, though welcome for some, presents 
challenges for low wage economies. There 
is also evidence that several groups remain 
distant from the labour market (e.g. ethnic 
minorities, disabled people and women). 
The number of people that are economically 
inactive due to temporary ill-health and long-
term illness is significantly higher at 29% than 
the England average (25%), indicating serious 
health inequality51. 

Development and Place - SCR has 
opportunities through its available 
development land and commercial space but 
this is often low value, constrained or lacking 
the digital, transport or flood protection 
infrastructure required to encourage 
businesses to invest and relocate. This holds 
back speculative development and retention 
of businesses looking to grow. SCR has 
spatial inequalities in terms of deprivation, 
access to employment and health outcomes, 
affecting quality of life for our communities. 
Many of our urban centres are fighting back 
against the ongoing retail restructuring. SCR 
has substantial natural capital, heritage and 
sporting assets; but despite these advantages, 
visitor numbers, spend, and participation in 
culture, arts, and heritage is relatively
low. The impact of wider environmental 
degradation and flood risk is also affecting 
lives and livelihoods and the level of risk is 
likely to increase with a worsening climate 
emergency.

49DfE - Attainment and Progression Data 2019
50ONS – Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings 2019
51ONS - Annual Population survey 2019

Page 123



90

Connectivity - Congestion and connectivity 
challenges across the transport network 
restrain economic growth, inclusion and 
environmental sustainability. Poor rail 
connections (both in terms of regularity 
and quality) within the City Region, and a 
substantially high proportion of journeys made 
by car, contribute to congestion and poor air 
quality. Across the four local authorities, SCR 
has 28 Air Quality Management Areas. Current 
superfast broadband connectivity (30mbps) 
needs upgrading to 100mbps to satisfy the 
requirements of businesses and domestic 
consumers over the next five to ten years. 
Full fibre infrastructure in SCR is presently at 
3.62%, which is half the national average52 
and insufficient to support the exponential 
increase in broadband service demand. Digital 
exclusion is high in some areas, particularly 
Barnsley and Doncaster.

Shift to Low Carbon - SCR has a higher 
proportion of energy-intensive businesses 
than the national average with a heavy reliance 
on fossil fuels. Only a low proportion of SMEs 
have adopted energy-efficiency measures, 
and most of the existing housing stock is not 
energy-efficient. 87% of homes in the City 
Region have a poor energy rating, with 93,000 
households in fuel poverty53. However, SCR has 
internationally excellent and world-leading 
research in environmental technologies. The 
opportunity for exploiting and translating 
this research into commercial products and 
alternative energy supply is significant.

52SuperFast South Yorkshire 2019
53SCR Energy Strategy (Forthcoming)

Page 124



91

Market Opportunities for SCR

Several opportunities are before us which could have a significant impact on our economy and 
our communities. We will work to capitalise on these:

Healthy Communities – Across the world, innovation in approaches 
to prevention, treatment and public health practice are changing 
the structure of health and care systems and improving lives for 
many people. The response to Covid-19 and demographic change is 
an increasingly dominant economic theme. This leads to economic 
opportunities (e.g. new models of healthcare and employment) and 
challenges (e.g. retraining, upskilling, care). What is certain is that it 
necessitates a rethink of care and health systems across SCR. Through 
SCR’s health strengths, especially the AWRC, we have the potential to 
lead cutting-edge prevention techniques and support new economic 
opportunities. 

The Climate Emergency and Transition to a Net-Zero Carbon  
Economy – The national commitment to achieve net-zero carbon 
emissions by 2050 has been translated to a commitment to achieve the 
same goal by 2040 for SCR. Therefore, our approach to delivering this 
SEP must enable this transition. Achieving the net-zero goal will require 
major changes in how we work, live and travel, while also creating 
economic opportunities for SCR. In addition, extreme climate events, 
such as flooding, will increase in frequency, therefore resilience to these 
risks must be enhanced for SCR’s residents, business and visitors. 

Industry 4.0 – This is characterised by major changes to the way we live, 
work and communicate due to the adoption of cyber physical systems, 
the Internet of Things, and the Internet of Systems. Industry 4.0 will lead 
to much greater application of  digital services and products across all 
industries and aspects of society, as well as the need for much better 
digital infrastructure. SCR has a strong creative and digital technology 
economy and our capabilities are well aligned to the opportunities 
(e.g. industrial digitisation) presented by Industry 4.0. SCR will also be 
affected by the automation of jobs in sectors that form a large part of 
our economy, which is both an opportunity and a threat.

Page 125



92

Intelligent Mobility – Technology is changing the way people access 
travel information and how they use transport. In the last ten years, the 
rise in on-demand travel, growth in digital and mobile technologies, and 
our understanding of people and transport movements has increased  
substantially.  Looking to the future, the growth of autonomous vehicles, 
and digital applications  and assistive technologies, could radically 
change how people travel to work and access education and leisure.
SCR’s research and industrial capabilities in the development of 
sustainable fuels mean we are well-placed to deliver alternative fuel 
technology to support intelligent mobility. It will be important in 
addressing transport poverty and ensuring that areas of deprivation are 
better connected to employment opportunities.

New Markets – As well as selling products and services across the UK, 
SCR businesses are strongly integrated into global markets. Significant 
changes in the global economy present opportunities for our assets, 
skills and industries. The strong performance of economies outside 
of Europe presents huge commercial (e.g. trade), cultural (e.g. touring 
exhibitions) and skills (e.g. students) opportunities. There is also the 
need to exploit existing markets through the development of supply 
chains both within the SCR and other city regions.

Page 126



93

Appendix B – Vibrant  
and Resilient Places
Barnsley
Barnsley’s vision is to “build a sustainable inclusive economy which benefits all its communities”. 
This aligns with SCR MCA’s focus on inclusive growth, noting that the parameters of inclusive 
growth require a different spatial focus. 

Barnsley is focused on delivery against four key priorities: 

•  �Growth – Barnsley is seeking a step change in transitioning towards good economic growth that 
is aligned to the wider three priorities. 

•  �Human Capital – Barnsley is continuing to deliver a ‘More and Better Jobs Strategy’ with a focus 
on enabling residents to get into work, get on in work and stay in work. This also prioritises 
development of skills pathways in key sectors. 

•  �Zero 40 – Barnsley is seeking to reduce emissions to net-zero by 2040.  
The strategy (called Zero40) will be delivered through four five-year action plans from 2020 to 
2040 which include developing a green economy both in terms of employment and business 
growth opportunities.

•  �Health Inequality and Deprivation – A central element of inclusive growth is to ensure that all 
residents benefit from economic growth in Barnsley. This includes addressing health, skills and 
employability challenges within communities. 

Delivering on these priorities requires a holistic approach given the co-dependencies and linkages 
between each strand.

Page 127



94

Economic Role
	
Barnsley’s location and growth opportunities 
position the borough as a key node in future 
northern prosperity. Barnsley’s economic 
strategy outlines the delivery of good growth 
for its communities. 

The Council has committed to creating a 2030 
vision for the borough which will include all 
key stakeholders, and will be co-produced 
with Barnsley residents, communities and 
businesses. The 2030 vision will set and define 
Barnsley’s long-term priorities moving forward. 

The main immediate challenge and 
opportunity for Barnsley is to see a real shift 
in terms of economic strategy to ensure that 
the growth delivered at both a local and 
regional level, directly benefits all residents 
and communities. Despite achieving a good 
level of growth over recent years, Barnsley still 
has significant areas of deprivation and health 
inequalities across the borough. Therefore, any 
future strategy must seek to deliver systematic 
change; ensuring that sustained and equitable 
growth is delivered across the borough. 

Partnership Working –  
Our Shared Priorities	

Barnsley is seeking to ensure that growth 
is inclusive and sustainable by improving 
educational outcomes and skills for adults as 
well as young people; providing pathways 
to more and better jobs, increasing 
entrepreneurship, tackling transport poverty 
and increasing sustainable and active travel. 
SCR MCA is seeking to support this ambition 
and will work with Barnsley on the following 
key priorities:

1.  Prioritisation of Urban Centres

Urban Centres and place remain a priority for 
Barnsley and SCR. Barnsley is looking at the 
next stage of rethinking high streets and place 
shaping in the town. SCR MCA has worked 
with Barnsley to invest in the town centre; 
for example, the £180m Glassworks scheme. 
The regeneration of the town centre and 
completion of the award-winning Glassworks 
scheme is an immediate priority. 

SCR MCA will work with Barnsley on their 
Principal Towns Programmes and aligning 
future urban centre funding opportunities 
to further capitalise on the foundations that 
have been established across the borough. 
This includes the Stronger Towns Funding 
for places like Goldthorpe, which provides a 
platform to unlock urban inclusive growth.  
SCR MCA will also work with Barnsley on a 
framework for towns funding for its town 
centre.

Page 128



95

2.  Delivering Ambitious Plans

Barnsley has adopted an ambitious  
Local Plan that opens significant amounts of 
land for housing, creating space for 21,000 new 
homes, and providing well located strategic 
sites for employment growth. 

SCR MCA will work with Barnsley on this 
growth opportunity in terms of housing 
targets, inward investment, indigenous 
business growth and linkages to other city 
regions (e.g. Leeds City Region).

3.  Improved and Greener Transport 
Connectivity

SCR MCA will work with Barnsley,  
TfN and other city regions, in improving 
connections through Barnsley to other large 
urban areas (e.g. Leeds, Birmingham and 
London). Within the borough, public transport, 
rail and active travel is recognised as highly 
important in encouraging modal shift away 
from car usage. 

SCR MCA has published a Transport Strategy 
and is seeking to go further on the inclusion 
agenda with the transport commitments. 
Addressing transport poverty requires 
improved public transport connectivity and 
more joined up decision making. SCR MCA 
will work with stakeholders across Barnsley 
to create an excellent, affordable and high-
quality transportation system. This includes 
prioritising access to employment, skills and 
leisure opportunities, encouraging a shift away 
from the reliance on the car; which in turn will 
reduce congestion and significantly contribute 
to our aspirations for a net-zero carbon 
economy. There are specific opportunities 
around connectivity in the Dearne Valley and 
through Barnsley town centre.

4.  Improving Adult Education and Developing 
Skills Pathways
 
Barnsley is keen for a regional-led approach 
to the development of skills pathways for 
key growth sectors. SCR MCA will work with 
Barnsley stakeholders to support adults 
into employment and encourage in-work 
progression. SCR MCA will use its devolved 
Adult Education Budget to encourage skills 
progression in Barnsley and explore creative 
use of the Apprenticeship Levy to align with 
the current and future needs of businesses. 

5.  Addressing Health Inequality and 
Deprivation

SCR MCA will work with Barnsley to ensure 
that health inequality and deprivation is 
addressed. This includes exploring ways in 
which investment can positively uplift health 
outcomes and encourage innovation in the 
health sector (e.g. community health sector, 
NHS). 

6.  Community-Led Inclusive Economy

Barnsley continues to devolve significant 
funds and resources through the Area Councils 
and Ward Alliances neighbourhood working 
model. Forward-thinking initiatives like this 
which revitalise community spirit, strengthen 
civic pride and make tangible improvements 
to where people live, will be supported by 
SCR MCA. Similarly, Barnsley’s Town Spirit 
brand and #lovewhereyoulive has gained 
traction with local communities and led to 
a surge in local volunteering. SCR MCA will 
work with Barnsley to strengthen approaches 
around an inclusive economy, tackling health 
inequalities and improving the environment in 
communities.

Page 129



96

Economic Role	

Building on historic strengths in steel and 
engineering, Rotherham has successfully 
modernised heritage industries and has a 
strong reputation in advanced manufacturing, 
engineering and materials. It has developed 
an innovation network concept that 
has international resonance, and AMID 
attracts industry leaders across the globe 
to collaborate on the commercialisation of 
research and development.

Rotherham’s recent economic growth has 
been supported by the incubation of ideas, 
skills and businesses, and delivered through 
four Council-operated business incubation 
centres, the UK’s High Value Manufacturing 
Catapult, the AMRC ‘Centre of Excellence’ for 
apprenticeships, incubation facilities at the 
Advanced Manufacturing Park Technology 
Centre, and innovative and enterprising 
programmes for new business ideas such as 
Y-Accelerator. 

AMID is based on the clustering and 
connectivity of economic assets such as world-
class manufacturing brands McLaren and Rolls-
Royce, and the UK’s Advanced Manufacturing 
Catapult. Therefore, although centred on the 
Don Valley corridor, it has inherently fluid 
geographic boundaries, and Rotherham’s 
regeneration ambition extends to a wider 
geography.

Partnership Working –  
Our Shared Priorities
	
Rotherham is well placed to build on 
the innovation, growth and enterprise 
activities outlined in this SEP. Building 
on the opportunity to develop the new 
manufacturing economy across the borough, 
Rotherham will create a unique asset for 
the city region; a place that draws-in and 
develops world class people, a place where 
world-leading companies come to explore 
new technologies and operating methods 
and where research and technology can be 
commercialised and delivered through the SCR 
and UK supply chains. SCR MCA will support 
Rotherham in delivering the following key 
priorities:

1.  High Quality housing and regeneration 

SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to deliver 
the vision for Rotherham Town Centre and 
overcome the challenges it is facing. This will 
involve shifting the focus from an outdated 
retail-focussed model to a more diverse and 
multi-faceted offer, which provides modern 
and exciting places to live, work and visit, a 
welcoming, attractive and connected urban 
environment, and a vibrant cultural offering. 
Work on the Towns Fund will result in a Town 
Investment Plan being produced that will 
set out the borough’s key infrastructure and 
regeneration priorities for the next exciting 
phase of development for Rotherham Town 
Centre.

2.  Densification of Manufacturing
 
SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to 
establish the area as the centre of the new 
manufacturing economy in the North of 
England. SCR MCA will work with Rotherham 
to power an innovation-led manufacturing 
network across SCR and be the industrial 
centre of the new manufacturing economy. 
SCR MCA will ensure that inclusive pathways 
and productivity growth are unlocked through 

Page 130



97

the sharing of capital, the pooling of labour, 
and specialisation and matching of local 
supply chains.

SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to 
physically connect the new manufacturing 
economy to areas and communities to 
distribute the benefits and create new skills 
programmes and job opportunities. This will 
enable a full range of options for Rotherham 
communities to develop high-tech skills, find 
graduate placements, enlist in high quality 
apprenticeships, seek re-training and upgrade 
their skills. 

3.  Expanding the New Manufacturing 
Economy to Deliver Inclusive Regeneration 
Across the Borough

The expansion of new manufacturing 
opportunities is a model of collaboration 
between industry and the public sector that 
has underpinned Rotherham’s success in 
commercialising research and innovation in 
advanced manufacturing, engineering and 
materials. It will address future challenges in 
related industries such as low carbon energy, 
light-weighting and automation. 

SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to unlock 
several well-connected employment sites 
across the borough including Swinton, Wath 
and Manvers (as part of the wider Dearne 
Valley), Maltby, Hellaby, Thurcroft, Dinnington, 
Wales, and Woodhouse Mill.

SCR MCA will also work with Rotherham to 
scale-up AMID and expand its fluid geography. 
Waverley is the area that is most closely 
associated with AMID but the wider area, 
including parts of Sheffield, have the potential 
to become part of the AMID concept. SCR 
MCA will work with Rotherham and others, 
to promote a compelling and distinctive 
brand for new manufacturing, attract interest 
and establish credibility with global industry 
leaders. 

4.  Connecting the Town Centre to the 
Northern, Eastern and Southern Economic 
Corridors 

At a sub-regional level and a local level, 
there is a coherent case for smarter decision 
making around local transport connectivity. 
SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to unlock 
sustainable transport options across AMID, 
Waverley and the wider area to provide a step 
change in transport connectivity. 

SCR MCA will work with Rotherham to build a 
strategic business case for major infrastructure 
investment including transport connectivity 
within central Rotherham and its northern, 
eastern and southern economic corridors, 
to allow a broader range of communities 
and businesses to share the benefits of the 
new manufacturing economy. This includes 
developing business cases for:

•  �A mainline station in Rotherham, which 
would significantly increase regional and 
national connectivity, as well as providing 
the opportunity to unleash the full potential 
of tram-train by maximising frequencies and 
facilitating extensions;

•  �Working with other South Yorkshire 
authorities to explore economically beneficial 
tram and tram train extensions; and

•  �Transport connectivity for Rotherham’s rural 
areas and growing visitor economies in 
Rother Valley and Wentworth. 

Page 131



98

7.  Achieving Net-Zero Commitments 

SCR MCA is committed to supporting Barnsley 
in their Zero40 commitments and energising 
environmental sustainability. Local and 
regional carbon aspirations will unlock national 
carbon targets. SCR MCA will work with 
Barnsley to develop: 

•  �An inclusive economy in Barnsley  
and prioritise the development and growth 
of the low carbon sector;

•  �Make net-zero decisions to ensure that 
carbon reduction commitments are hard 
wired into processes;

•  �Invest in low carbon transport and 
sustainable travel (e.g. charging points and 
active travel);

•  �Support commercial and residential energy 
use reduction and efficiencies (e.g. solar and 
battery storage);

•  �Mandate better quality new housing (e.g. 
standards)

•  �Establish retrofitting outcomes for existing 
homes and incorporating sustainable travel 
into new developments; and

•  �Support and invest in innovative climate 
agenda technologies, propositions and 
solutions (e.g. Mine Water Energy solutions). 

8.  Future proofing the economy through 
investment in digital Barnsley

Barnsley is showing the importance of local 
level working. The superfast broadband 
programme in Barnsley exceeds its targets of 
take-up (above 50% which exceeds many other 
areas). Switching Barnsley to full fibre and
5G is a priority which is being built into 
planning approvals. The growth potential 
that is presented through digital also includes 
the core and wider business base, digital 
infrastructure, skills, inclusion and innovation. 
Specific activities include:

•  �Creating business support products aligned 
to unlocking the growth potential of local 
businesses;

•  �Unlocking world-class digital infrastructure in 
Barnsley, related  
to full fibre and 5g;

•  �Supporting the adoption of digital 
technology by SMEs;

•  �Providing digital skills to businesses  
in all sectors;

•  �Supporting work with City Fibre  
and Openreach to help secure further 
investment in fibre capability; 

•  �Expanding the Barnsley Digital Campus 
and wider growth opportunities in Barnsley 
through focused investments; and

•  �Seeking further collaborations with skills 
institutions and businesses in digital and key 
economic sector

Page 132



99

Doncaster
Doncaster is changing. A growing and more 
diverse economy contributed to an increase 
in GVA of £1.4bn (31.8%) and 10,000 extra jobs 
between 2013 and 2018, creating an economy 
worth almost £5.9bn. Record levels of 
employment and house building have enabled 
more residents to benefit from this success.  

The quality of Doncaster as a place to live, 
work and do business is further enhanced by 
outstanding national connectivity, new leisure 
developments and environmental assets. 
 
At the same time, Doncaster is tackling long-
standing challenges many of which have 
been exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic.  
Therefore, in addition to creating new jobs 
at scale, the focus remains on improving the 
quality, flexibility and fairness of the jobs 
available alongside developing an education 
and skills system that meets the needs of the 
economy and learners. 

Doncaster is responding to the climate change 
and biodiversity emergency by re-imagining 
the borough of the future. Doncaster’s 
geographical scale and dispersed settlement 
pattern also requires improved transport and 
digital connectivity and supports a thriving, 
networked city.    

‘Doncaster is responding to the climate 
change and biodiversity emergency by 
re-imagining the borough of the future.’

Page 133



100

Economic Role
	
As a rapidly expanding economic centre, and 
home to key industries and economic assets, 
Doncaster is vital to the success of South 
Yorkshire and the wider UK economy.

The scale of opportunity is significant, given 
Doncaster’s established industry specialisms 
in advanced engineering and technology 
(including rail), intelligent mobility (including 
logistics) and the opportunity to create new 
specialisms in creative, digital and advanced 
materials.    

Partnership Working –  
Our Shared Priorities	

Doncaster’s goal is to improve the prosperity 
and well-being of people and places through 
an inclusive, greener, stronger and more 
productive economy.    

To achieve this, the SCR MCA will work with 
Doncaster on the following key priorities:

1. Developing a more regenerative place with a 
circular, decarbonised economy 

This will simultaneously address the climate 
and biodiversity emergency whilst providing 
new economic and social opportunities.  
Doncaster aims to push beyond sustainability 
(“doing no harm”) to regenerative 
development which renews and improves.   
This requires a ‘whole catchment’ approach 
with collaborative working across Doncaster, 
the SCR and beyond, given how natural 
systems, resources, institutions, challenges and 
opportunities cross boundaries.  To achieve 
this Doncaster will seek to:    

•  �Change the linear ‘take-make-dispose’ 
economic model to a circular system.

•  �Regenerate, restore and protect natural 
capital, working with partners to maximize 
its contribution to the local economy and 
inward investment, quality of place and well-
being.

•  �Create social value and build community 
wealth by increasing the impact of local 
investment on economic, social and 
environmental well-being (including the 
‘Doncaster pound’).

•  �Develop, where beneficial, shorter, more 
resilient supply chains.

Page 134



101

Doncaster will contribute significantly to the 
decarbonisation of the SCR’s economy, for 
example through the development of an 
intelligent, greener transport system, the retro-
fitting of homes and supporting businesses to 
decarbonize.     

The SCR MCA will also work with Doncaster to 
ensure there is a more regenerative approach 
to investment when developing plans for 
improving land use, green spaces transport 
and the built environment. 

2. Developing industry specialisms as well as 
green industries, the foundational economy 
and supporting services.   

Doncaster’s existing industry strengths and 
opportunities will support future economic 
growth, create quality jobs, increase 
productivity and help to achieve greater 
economic resilience. Key industry specialisms 
Doncaster will support and develop are: 

• Intelligent Mobility 
• Engineering and Technology 
• Creative and Digital Industries 
• Advanced Materials 

Doncaster and the MCA will work to drive 
decarbonisation and a more circular economy.     

In addition, Doncaster will support growth in:

•	 Green Industries – exploiting the 
opportunities created by new innovations 
and technologies 

•	 The Foundational Economy – particularly 
health, medical and social care.  

•	 Supporting Services - comprising a range 
of professional and business services 
sectors.

3. Growing priority areas and investing in 
housing, infrastructure, local services and 
public realm 

There are several geographic areas within 
Doncaster which will be the focus of growth. 
Each of these locations has unique strengths, 
outstanding connectivity and large land 
allocations for commercial and residential 
development. These sites also link to 
Doncaster’s priority industries and provide a 
focus for  economic development support.  
 
They are:
•	 Doncaster Town Centre – including the 

major Waterfront urban centre extension.
•	 Doncaster Sheffield Airport (DSA)  

 
GatewayEast development – to deliver jobs 
and housing at scale and maximize the 
impact of GatewayEast as an innovation-
led growth and a number of local 
Further Education and Higher Education 
Institutions (e.g.  specialist colleges and the 
UTC),  Doncaster will develop Centres of 
Excellence that link directly to Doncaster’s 
economic strengths,  opportunities and 
challenges. Alongside this, Doncaster and 
the MCA will seek to: 

•	 Ensure all children have the best start to 
learning

•	 Accelerate educational achievement 
•	 Extend opportunities to all

Page 135



102

4. Improving digital connectivity and 
developing an intelligent, greener transport 
system 

The MCA will work with Team Doncaster to:  

•	 Connect residents to employment 
opportunities and key growth sites, 
supported by efficient public transport and 
cycling and walking infrastructure.

•	 Connect Doncaster to regional, national 
and international markets and supply 
chains.

•	 Push for a train station at the DSA.   
•	 Invest in decarbonizing transport 

infrastructure, vehicles and fuels 
•	 Invest in integrated packages of 

infrastructure to unlock future economic 
growth and support local plans and 
strategies, including new housing 
provision. 

•	 Further improve Doncaster’s digital 
infrastructure.

5. Improving skills and supporting lifelong 
learning and creativity.

Doncaster will work with a diverse set of 
partners to create a mixed - or ‘hybrid’ - 
education and skills system, with technical and 
vocational pathways that meet the needs of 
all residents, support a modern economy and 
widen access to high-quality employment.    

Based on collaboration with the SCR MCA and 
a number of local Further Education  

•	 Improve access to arts, culture and creative 
opportunities 
 

6.  Improve wellbeing

To support the delivery of its priorities, 
Doncaster will adopt a purposeful, mission-
orientated innovation approach to improve 
well-being. Mission-orientated approaches to 
innovation that are focused on the big societal 
challenges also support businesses to grow, 
become more productive and resilient.  The 
approach will also be whole system, inclusive, 
asset based and intelligence led. Doncaster will 
be guided by the ‘Three Horizons’  approach 
to help deliver long-term transformational 
change.

Page 136



103

Rotherham Rotherham’s economic ambition is to be 
an attractive, desirable place to live, at 
the forefront of the new manufacturing 
economy in the North, with high quality 
neighbourhoods connected to economic 
opportunities across the borough and the 
wider City Region. 

Rotherham is central within South Yorkshire 
and England. It has an abundance of green 
space, a growing leisure economy, a town 
centre poised for regeneration, a number of 
distinctive towns such as Maltby, and well-
connected employment sites with industrial 
capability and expertise.

Page 137



104

SCR MCA will also develop Rotherham’s active 
travel infrastructure, taking into consideration 
its public health, and environmental plans. This 
will build on committed funding and will look 
at the next phase of investment required. 

5.  Harnessing and Improving the Green and 
Blue Infrastructure

Making best use of our green and blue 
Infrastructure is critical. SCR MCA will 
work with Rotherham to ensure rivers and 
green spaces are a significant asset both 
in Rotherham town centre and across the 
borough. In support of this, and in recognition 
of the devastating flooding events in 2019 
across South Yorkshire, SCR and Rotherham 
will seek investment and action on Flood 
Alleviation Schemes.

Following Rotherham’s commitment to a 
climate emergency, SCR MCA will work with 
the Council on delivering its commitment and 
action plan. This will also align with SCR’s clean 
energy and net-zero carbon activities whilst 
also seeking to enhance local interventions.

6.  Enhance Skills Development and Broaden 
Opportunities for Residents

A key priority for Rotherham is growing local 
pride and ambition by ensuring that local 
communities benefit from regeneration and 
economic growth. Connecting communities 
with opportunities will distribute the benefits 
of economic growth more evenly.  
Going forward, SCR MCA will seek to leverage 
investment in the University Centre Rotherham 
and the AMRC Training Centre to help capture 
the full range of opportunities for local people. 

SCR MCA will work with Rotherham’s 
Employment and Skills Strategy, ‘Extending 
Prosperity to All’ to maximise opportunities 
and invest in projects that respond to the 
needs of the local economy.

7.  Develop Inclusive Growth Through 
Strengthened Local Supply Chains

SCR MCA will help to champion social value 
and inclusive growth activities across South 
Yorkshire. SCR will work with Rotherham 
around key priorities such as wages, living 
standards and sustainability, and will focus on 
policies and interventions that strengthen the 
local supply chain. This will include building 
the capacity and sustainability of SMEs and 
local voluntary organisations and making a 
commitment to maximise local spend.

Page 138



105

Sheffield
Sheffield’s vision is for a stronger, more 
inclusive and sustainable economy that 
improves people’s lives. By harnessing growth 
in a way that increases skills and business 
productivity, more people will be enabled to 
contribute to and benefit from a prosperous 
economy.  
 
To achieve this, more businesses need to 
start-up, grow and invest. Education, skills and 
training support also needs to be delivered 
to enable local people to access fulfilling and 
rewarding jobs.

Sheffield’s unique economic and cultural 
assets need to become a stronger magnet to 
attract innovative and creative businesses and 
visitors. 

The importance of place will underpin 
Sheffield’s approach to the city’s economy: 
with both the city centre and AMID forming 
concentrations of economic activity and 
innovation communities. Sheffield’s reputation 
as the ‘Outdoor City‘ offers superior quality of 
life, combining outdoor adventure  
and city culture.

All this needs to be underpinned by a strong 
transport system and a good quality housing 
offer, whilst acknowledging the intrinsic links 
that the economy has with people’s health and 
the environment. The potential of Sheffield’s 
economy needs to be unlocked so that it plays 
its part in reducing the city’s health inequalities 
and carbon footprint.

Page 139



106

Economic Role 
	
As the only city in the Sheffield City Region, 
Sheffield is a major employment centre for 
the SCR economy, particularly for higher 
skilled jobs. Sheffield has a concentration of 
knowledge intensive businesses, especially in 
advanced manufacturing, creative and digital 
technology industries, healthcare technologies 
and business, professional and financial 
services. It also acts as a major transport hub 
for the City Region.

Partnership Working –  
Our Shared Priorities	

SCR MCA will work with Sheffield on the 
following key priorities:

1.  Creating an Inclusive Wellbeing Economy

SCR MCA will work with Sheffield to create an 
economy that works for everyone living and 
working in Sheffield; the aspiration being for 
all people to live well, realise their ambitions 
and contribute to the life of Sheffield and the 
wider City Region.
 
2.  Increasing ‘good’ jobs and boosting 
business growth

SCR MCA will work with Sheffield on their skills 
strategy and outline how progression routes 
can be developed to ensure that local residents 
are able to access a range of education and 
employment opportunities. Key to this is 
creating the aspirational jobs which are critical 
to address the productivity challenge and low 
wages across SCR.

3.  Supporting the growth of productive and 
competitive businesses 

Wages and business density in Sheffield 
compare unfavorably to other major cities. 
It is imperative that Sheffield residents earn 
more and that there is a stronger economy in 
Sheffield that creates new opportunities for 
people. SCR MCA will work with Sheffield to 
tackle low pay, create quality jobs and boost 
business growth, particularly amongst the 
SMEs that form the bedrock of the economy.

Page 140



107

SCR MCA will support Sheffield in utilising 
the universities’ research expertise, business 
potential and community energy to transition 
to a sustainable and low-carbon economy. 
SCR MCA will work with Sheffield to develop a 
successful and growing ‘low carbon and clean 
energy’ sector; creating and providing jobs, 
services and products locally. 

4.  Recognising the importance of place 
Sheffield’s city centre is a distinct and strong 
economic growth area. It has a concentration 
of highly skilled sectors as well as valuable 
cultural assets and two world class universities. 
SCR MCA will work with Sheffield on the main 
priorities within the city centre:

•  �Completion of Heart of the City 2 –  
A mixed use development delivering high 
quality retail, leisure, offices, residential 
space, restaurants and public realm.

•  �The Sheaf Valley and Midland Station – 
HS2 and Northern Powerhouse will be the 
catalyst for this next major regeneration 
project in the city centre, maximising 
the opportunities created by improved 
connectivity to expand the city centre’s 
business districts and delivering accessibility 
and air quality improvements for the area.

•  �Housing – Ambitions to significantly increase 
the number and choice of housing options 
in the city centre, including developments 
at Kelham Neepsend (with potential funding 
through the Housing Infrastructure Fund) 
and the Devonshire Quarter.

•  �Development is also expected as part of the 
University campuses, West Bar, the Moor and 
Moorfoot and Castlegate.

AMID is one of Europe’s leading innovation-
led, Advanced Manufacturing districts, where 
world-class manufacturers collaborate and 
co-locate alongside a concentration of skilled 
engineers, high-tech firms and applied 
research facilities. SCR MCA will work on 
priorities for the area such as: 

•  �Growing the pipeline of world-class 
innovation, research and technology assets 
that attract inward investment and produce 
knowledge spill-overs in new emerging 
markets;

•  �Creating a supportive environment for 
good ideas to lead to more business start-
ups, with local SME’s benefitting from a 
networked environment that is connected 
to international markets, new solutions and 
supply chain opportunities;

•  �Increasing the number of local residents 
securing fulfilling employment, or pursuing 
entrepreneurial pathways into advanced 
manufacturing occupations; 

•  �Improving accessibility, particularly through 
public transport options and active travel;

•  �Addressing congestion issues on the strategic 
highways network. Much of the Lower 
Don Valley’s ability to accommodate future 
growth of AMID depends on addressing 
traffic congestion and associated air quality 
issues in the area; and 

•  �Opportunities for regeneration for 
employment land and developing a broader 
mix of sustainable housing and amenities 
with a direct and visible impact on the 
development of adjacent communities such 
as Attercliffe.

•  �Outdoor city brand – SCR MCA will work 
with Sheffield to build upon the ‘Outdoor 
City‘ brand and offer a superior quality of 
life, combining outdoor adventure and city 
culture.

Page 141



108

5.  Consolidating Sheffield as a  
Magnet City

Sheffield is a destination city; a magnet for 
enterprise and talent, a hub of employment 
and curator of creativity and culture. As part 
of Sheffield’s Magnet City proposition, SCR 
MCA will work collaboratively on the magnet 
city principles (including assets strategy, the 
Outdoor City brand and physical renewal), 
to create a high-performing, productive, 
high-quality city environment that provides 
opportunity for business, employment, 
residential and culture communities. 

6.  Transformed transport connectivity linking 
people to jobs and cities to each other

Sheffield’s vision for transport, as set out 
in its Transport Strategy, is ‘Reliable and 
clean journeys for everyone in a flourishing 
Sheffield’; where it is easier to get around 
the city, it is better connected, safer and 
more sustainable. SCR MCA will work with 
Sheffield to make sure that everyone across 
the City Region has access to highly-skilled job 
opportunities, skills and education and cultural 
assets in Sheffield. 

A well-functioning city transport system 
contributes to both economic growth and 
people’s quality of life. Sheffield is a physically 
large, and topographically diverse city. SCR 
MCA will work with Sheffield on targeted 
investment in new transport infrastructure 
to ensure that by 2034, Sheffield’s transport 
system eases congestion, improves access 
across the city and facilitates rapid connection 
to other cities. SCR will specifically work with 
Sheffield on: 

•  �Ensuring the transport system opens up the 
city’s economic opportunities for everyone; 

•  �Becoming a leading low-carbon city, with a 
transport system that supports low emission 
travel and improvements in air quality; and  

•  �Developing active travel infrastructure and 
programmes.

7.  Housing that provides quality, choice and 
affordability across the city

Sheffield is recognised as being a city with 
some of the highest quality neighbourhoods in 
the North of England. This is a major asset  and  
means that wealth generated and earned in 
Sheffield often stays within the city.
At the same time, there are areas that need 
more affordable housing. and iImproving 
housing stock quality and retrofitting are 
priorities across the whole city. SCR MCA 
will work with Sheffield to deliver a housing 
market that provides quality, choice and 
affordability across the city. This includes 
increasing the amount of housing, making sure 
all neighbourhoods are vibrant and sustainable 
and improving the quality of existing housing.

8.  Growing an environmentally sustainable, 
more resilient economy

Sheffield is working towards becoming  a 
net-zero carbon city by 2030, is paying its 
full contribution to the Paris Climate Change 
agreements and responding to the climate 
emergency. With rising fuel and energy prices, 
congestion and air quality issues, Sheffield 
needs to move onto a more sustainable 
footing to ensure that the city remains resilient 
to the effects of the climate emergency as 
it changes and grows. Sustainability will 
cut across everything that SCR MCA and all 
local authorities do. SCR MCA will work with 
Sheffield on the many challenges the city faces 
relating to the climate emergency such as 
energy resilience, flooding and transport.

Page 142



109Page 143



Sheffield City Region

11 Broad Street West,  
Sheffield,  
United Kingdom 
S1 2BQ
+44 (0)114 2203400
Contact via Microsoft Teams
economy@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
sheffieldcityregion.org.uk

Publication Date: October 2020

Our new strategic economic plan will  
improve prosperity and create opportunity for 
all, while protecting our environment.

Page 144



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) has written to all Councils and Local Enterprise 
Partnerships setting out their intention later in autumn to publish a detailed site 
specification for the development of a new Nuclear Fusion Reactor prototype. It is 
anticipated that a formal opportunity to bid will come within weeks and before Christmas. 
This is part of the The Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) programme - a 
UKAEA and UK Government initiative to accelerate progress towards commercially viable 
fusion power, through design and construction of a prototype fusion reactor by 2040.   
It is expected that this proposal will align with the Government’s anticipated Energy White 
Paper. This is expected to signal a commitment to expansion in renewables, including 
hydrogen and nuclear power through large scale reactors, small modular reactors, 
advanced reactors and fusion.  

 
 1.2 Over its lifetime, this project has the potential to be of significant scale; creating jobs, high 

value businesses and delivering on the UK’s Net Zero target. The scale of the opportunity 
could be huge with major national investment being targeted at the R&D, construction and 
engineering of a Prototype Reactor. Benefits include the development of an entirely new 
supply chain to deliver the project, huge opportunities for businesses in the region to 
access opportunities and an employment boost of a high skilled research and engineering 
workforce.  

 

Purpose of Report 

This paper sets out a potential UK Atomic Energy Authority opportunity for the region to position itself 
as central to the growth of the UK’s Nuclear Industry, to create high value jobs, grow new businesses 
and support existing businesses to adapt. 

Thematic Priority 

Business Recovery and Growth and Housing and Infrastructure 

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be made available under the SCR Publication Scheme.  

Recommendations  

LEP Board Members are asked to note the opportunity and endorse early stage work to develop a 
submission to a UK Atomic Energy Authority proposal for South Yorkshire to be part of the 
Government’s plans to commercialise and develop Nuclear Fusion technology.  

5th November 2020 

The Nuclear sector and opportunities in South Yorkshire 

Page 145

Agenda Item 6



 

 1.3 The existing capabilities in the region (including the Nuclear AMRC, the new UK Atomic 
Energy Authority facility and large businesses such as Forgemasters), our strengths in 
construction, civil engineering and manufacturing means South Yorkshire has a strong 
offer to pitch to the UKAEA for the region to be a key part of the Government’s nuclear 
investment plan.  
 

2. Proposal and justification 
 

 2.1 The nuclear industry in context 
The UK alone capitalises on a domestic market worth an estimated £75 billion and global 
markets estimated at £100 billion (waste and decommissioning) and £1.2 trillion (new 
build) up to 2035. 
 
The UK’s civil nuclear sector is amongst the most advanced in the world, from fuel 
production, generation, new build, research through to decommissioning, waste 
management and transportation and a highly developed regulatory system. 
The global outlook on nuclear energy production is equally positive.  
 
In the OECD’s World Energy Outlook 2019 a scenario is established that suggests 
electricity generation from nuclear increases by almost 62% by 2040 to 4409 TWh, and 
capacity grows to 601 GWe. The World Nuclear Association proposes the addition of 
1000 GWe of new nuclear capacity by 2050 to provide 25% of global electricity demand. 
 

 2.2 The UKAEA opportunity – nuclear technology including fusion. Conventional nuclear 
power generation is well proven and commercialised. The next commercial development 
will be to produce small modular reactors that provide power in a more localised and 
responsive setting.  
 
Fusion technology on the other hand remains the furthest away from full 
commercialisation – but the most transformational if harnessed. Whilst the science of 
nuclear fusion is proven, the ability to harness it in a commercial setting is not. The 
challenge is now an advanced manufacturing and engineering problem rather than just a 
science one. This was the rationale for the establishment of the UKAEA facility at the 
Advanced Manufacturing Park in Rotherham.  
 
UKAEA aims to transform fusion from an expensive science experiment into a viable 
commercial energy source. The key is to develop a reactor that produces more energy 
than needs to be put in to get the fusion reaction going. Based on current research 
activities, fusion power could potentially be on the grid by the middle of the century. STEP 
is a project focussed on the design, build and operation of the world’s first fusion plant to 
supply electricity. 
 
The UKAEA proposal to establish a Nuclear Fusion Prototype Reactor somewhere 
in the UK presents an opportunity for the region to establish itself a key player in 
the UK nuclear sector.  
 

 2.3  The region’s capabilities demonstrate we have a strong offer 
 
- The Advanced Manufacturing Innovation District (AMID). Home to The University 

of Sheffield’s Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC), the Nuclear AMRC 
(NAMRC), the UKAEA’s Fusion Technology Research Facility and the AMRC Training 
Centre. AMID is a nationally significant asset that continues to attract engineering 
companies, manufacturers and value chain businesses to the region to work with our 
skilled engineers, graduates and technicians, with experience of working on major 
projects. 
 

Page 146



 

- Industrial and research collaboration. The University, the Catapult Centres and the 
Local Enterprise Partnership and the local councils have experience of working with 
companies including Boeing, BAE Systems, McLaren, Rolls-Royce, Sheffield 
Forgemasters and smaller supply chain firms; enabling them to tap into the research 
capabilities the region hosts.  

 
- Locally based assets with national reach. The Nuclear AMRC has a national 

footprint with centres in the North West (focusing on modular construction for Nuclear, 
and other, structures) and Derby (focusing on Control & Instrumentation and Digital 
Environment), as well as office space at the Menai Science Park and South West 
Nuclear Hub in Bristol. Both the NAMRC and AMRC are part of the High Value 
Manufacturing Catapult which enables reach back across a variety of sectors and 
other institutions, meaning we can ensure the best solutions are brought to the 
programme. 

 
- Strong links with the UKAEA already exist with the Nuclear AMRC who work on a 

number of fusion related projects, either directly with ITER, Tokomak Energy or 
through competitively won UKAEA tenders. The region holds strong links to the 
nuclear supply chain through the Nuclear AMRC’s work with 1400 companies 
nationwide via the Fit4Nuclear programme, and also through BEIS funded 
programmes including the Advanced Modular Reactor programme and the ISCF Low 
Cost Nuclear programme (UK SMR). 

 
 2.4  It is proposed that: 

 
- The LEP Board signal their support for this opportunity to be fully explored in the 

context of how it can deliver on the Strategic Economic Plan objectives; looking not 
just at the physical site opportunities but the business, skills and productivity gains to 
be secured with the region playing a full part.  
 

- A small working group with representation from across the four local council areas, the 
the MCA Executive Team and the Nuclear AMRC be established with the objective of 
preparing a ‘pitch’ to the UKAEA.  

 
- That the Business Recovery and Growth Board and the Infrastructure and Housing 

Boards’ engage directly in the process from a supply chain, innovation, business 
growth and site selection perspective. 

 
- That the region adopts an open position at the outset to working with places outside of 

South Yorkshire to build the best UK solution – with the region at the heart of that. 
 

3.  Issues to consider 
 

 3.1 South Yorkshire capabilities in context. It is unlikely that there is any one site/location 
in the UK that can fulfil all of the requirements of the UKAEA process. The requirement to 
align research and development capabilities, a skills pipeline, an emerging supply chain 
and bespoke site requirements makes it a genuinely open competition.  
Initial informal discussions suggest that the region has a strong case to make but that 
there are locations in the UK, including in the North West in which we are part of a 
‘nuclear arc’ of businesses and research capabilities. 
 

 3.2 Phasing of any opportunity - the expectation is that in the first instance a relatively small 
group of engineers, scientists and support staff would start to be located in the successful 
region – with the footprint and economic growth potential growing organically. 
 

Page 147



 

 3.3 Site selection process - the UKAEA are yet to publish their formal guidance but there will 
be expectations around access to water, connectivity, national power grid links and a 
complex set of regulatory challenges. There may not be a specific site within South 
Yorkshire that fully meets the requirements. The working group would be expected to review 
the potential for sites in the region as a priority.  
 

4. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 4.1 The region does not need to submit a proposal. 
 
However, the potential benefits of engaging early with the process and setting out the 
capabilities of the region from a research, engineering, manufacturing, construction and 
civil engineering perspective as well as a potential site location for the UKAEA prototype 
fusion reactor facility make this an opportunity that should, at least, be fully explored.  
It is likely that even without LEP support that other partners in the region may choose to 
submit a proposal. 
 

5. Implications 
 

 5.1 Financial 
This report notes a potential opportunity to bid for project funding in the future. There is no 
resource currently earmarked to the development of the bid. Should there be appetite to 
pursue the opportunity an exercise will be undertaken to determine how a bid could be 
developed and what resource may be required. 
  

 5.2 Legal 
Unknown at this stage, pending details of the bidding criteria being released 
 

 5.3 Risk Management 
Unknown at this stage, pending details of the bidding criteria being released 
 

 5.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
Unknown at this stage, pending details of the bidding criteria being released 
 

6. Communications 
 

 5.1 Communications activities will be considered following the outcome of this early 
discussion. 
 

7. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 7.1  Appendix 1 - Letter to LEPs and Councils from the UKAEA. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Andy Gates  
POST  Assistant Director – Strategic Corporate Affairs 

Officer responsible Dave Smith 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114  

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 148

mailto:Dave.Smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


1 

 

 
 

Mr Tristram Denton 
Head of Commercial and Programme Development 

STEP Programme 
United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority 

Culham Science Centre 
Abingdon 

OX14 3DB 
Tristram.denton@ukaea.uk 

 
Chief Executive Officers 
Local Authorities in England 
Care of: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
 

Site Selection: Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) 
 
Dear Colleagues  
 
I trust you and your team are staying well, amid the current global challenge of Covid-19.  
 
I am writing to introduce the STEP programme - a UKAEA and UK Government initiative to accelerate 
progress towards commercially viable fusion power, through design and construction of a prototype 
fusion reactor by 2040.  
 
Fusion power provides scope for almost limitless low carbon energy. Whilst Fusion has previously 
been seen as something of a future prospect, technology advances in recent years now show a clear 
viability for commercial operations around the middle of this century.  
 
STEP (Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production) is an innovative programme which draws on the 
UK’s world-leadership in compact fusion technology, and aims to transition from a  research-led 
sector to industrial-design and delivery.  
 
The programme is expected to represent an ultimate investment of multiple £billions, and to further 
enhance UK leadership in the field. This is expected to bring immediate and enduring economic 
benefit - construction of the prototype represents a major infrastructure project in-and-of-itself; whilst 
the success of the programme will further establish the UK as a global hub of the fusion industry.  
 
This prototype plant is not necessarily expected to be based on the current UK fusion research 
campus, which is near Culham in Oxfordshire. Whilst the campus is a vital and world-class research 
hub which will support the sector for many decades to come, the STEP plant is expected to have 
requirements much more closely aligned to those of a generating power station. As such we will 
shortly begin the process of looking for a suitable site on which to construct the STEP prototype. 
 
The site ultimately selected will not only host a major construction programme, but will also become 
fertile ground for a flourishing, modern, low-carbon, high-skill and high-value supply chain. 
Consideration of necessary skills and training initiatives are already underway, and long-term 
workforce development will be a priority consideration as the programme proceeds.   
 
To establish the most effective enduring relationship with the ultimate host community, UKAEA 
intends to issue an open call for site nominations – based on collaborative proposals from 
landowners, local authorities, LEPS and local communities. Commercial terms of site access would 
naturally be subject to associated engagement between the landowner and UKAEA. 
 

Page 149

mailto:Tristram.denton@ukaea.uk


2 

 

Nominations would be welcomed from a broad range of entities – and UKAEA will simply ask that 
those who nominate sites provide basic information in line with a set of site assessment criteria to be 
published alongside the call for sites. Needless to say; size, land profile, current use, access to 
cooling water, grid connectivity and industrial base are significant amongst those criteria.  
 
We wanted to give you foresight of this coming process; both so you can consider any potential 
opportunities associated with your area, and so you could be prepared for any questions this may 
raise for you. We expect to launch the process this Autumn, via a bespoke website and media 
announcement.  
 
If you have any questions and would like to discuss STEP, please feel free to contact 
shelley.vaisey@ukaea.uk to arrange a meeting with me or a member of my team.  
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
Tristram Denton 
STEP Head of Commercial and Programme Development 
 

Page 150

mailto:shelley.vaisey@ukaea.uk


 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 LGF is a 6 year, £360m funding programme secured through three rounds of competitive 
bids.  2020/21 is the final year of funding.  This paper seeks to inform members of the 
current programme position.  
 

 1.2 The LGF grant allocation for the 2020/21 financial year is £43.2m.  Government requires that 
this resource is used in full in year. To meet this expenditure target, and avoid resource 
being returned to government, an over-programming position has been adopted. This 
position affords a degree of protection against programme slippage. 
 

 1.3 As the year progresses, and the impact of the pandemic on the pace of programme delivery 
becomes clearer, close attention will be paid to the forecast outturn expenditure position.  
 

 1.4 This report notes the current funding position alongside forecasts to outturn. The report notes 
that under current forecasts the in-year expenditure target will be met whilst retaining a 
degree of headroom made available from recycled funding.  
 

 1.5 The report further notes that consideration is being given to other practical mitigations that 
could be implemented should further slippage materialise as the year progresses.  
 

Purpose of Report 
 
This paper is to inform LEP Board members of the LGF current position noting this is the final year of 
the current six-year LGF programme  

 
Thematic Priority 
 
Cross cutting - financial 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

This paper will be made available under the MCA publication scheme.  

 
Recommendations 

Members are asked to 

1. Note the current programme position  
 

5th November 2020 
 

Local Growth Fund (LGF) Programme Position Update   

Page 151

Agenda Item 7



 

 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

  Programme Summary 
 2.1 The Local Growth Fund Programme is now in its sixth and final year.  Programme 

performance can be summarised in the following way: 
 

  LGF Project Status £m 

Projects Completed £129.1 

Projects in Delivery £193.7 

Projects at Contracting Stage £7.9 

Commitments £330.7 

A630 Parkway Widening £40.1 

Total Commitments £370.8 

Funding Envelope £360.0 

Headroom/(Over Commitment) (£10.8) 

Recycled Funding £17.4 

Residual Headroom £6.6 

 

   
Funding Position 

 2.3 Over three successive Growth Deals the MCA/LEP have been awarded £360m for LGF 
schemes. This resource is generally awarded under devolution principles, with decisions on 
application of the resource resting with the MCA/LEP and schemes being appraised under 
the locally adopted Assurance Framework. 
 

 2.4 However, within this £360m envelope, a ringfenced amount of £40.1m was included for the 
A630 Parkway Widening Scheme. This scheme was ‘retained’ by the Department for 
Transport, meaning that the scheme was appraised outside of the MCA’s usual Assurance 
Framework and could not proceed without DfT approval. The scheme has now been 
approved by the DfT, with a formal funding offer made to the MCA.  
 

 2.5 To-date, c. £330.7m of schemes have been committed to with LEP approval. The schemes 
are in various stages of delivery, with some completed, some in delivery, and some finalising 
contracting. It is expected that, subject to governance, the Parkway Widening Scheme will 
commence imminently, bringing total commitments to £370.8m. 
 

 2.6 Commitments at this level place the programme over the funding envelope by £10.8m. An 
over-programming position has been consciously adopted to mitigate the impact of slippage, 
noting that under funding conditions unused grant should be returned to government. 
 

 2.7 The overcommitment position is enabled, in part, through the use of recycled LGF funding. 
This includes loans granted to business and partners that have been repaid and which can 
now be redeployed to support new activity.  There is no requirement to spend any recycled 
funding within the LGF funded window.  
 

 2.8 The remaining funding headroom available for LGF projects across all thematic areas (the 
programme headroom) is now £6.6m. 
 

 2.9 Board Members are asked to note a further £1.2m of proposed expenditure, subject to 
appraisal, will be put forward for approval at a future MCA. If approved, this would give a 
total spend or committed position of £372m thus reducing the available headroom to £5.4m. 
 

Page 152



 

 

  Forecast Expenditure 
 2.10 At the beginning of the year forecast LGF programme expenditure for 2020/21 stood at 

£52.4m, against the MHCLG spend target of £43.2m.  Adjusting for projects recently 
approved, total forecast expenditure to end of the programme has increased to £54m.     
 

 2.11 Reflecting, in part, the challenges of delivery during the pandemic, partners have submitted 
change control requests totalling £10.3m, the effect of which is to slip expenditure from the 
current financial year into 2021/22.  
 

 2.12 Accordingly, in-year expenditure is now forecast at £43.7m. This level of expenditure 
marginally exceeds the expenditure target for the year and thus secures the in-year funding.  
 

 2.13 
      

Programme monitoring remains vigilant to the risk that this level of expenditure may fall 
below the target, and approaches to contracting that could mitigate the risk of increased 
slippage and loss of the in-year grant are actively being considered. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1      Do Nothing – The option of not accepting slippage has been discounted as projects need the 
certainty of an agreed budget in order to continue their activity. Failure to agree to a realistic 
re-profile would render schemes undeliverable and cause significant risk to the scheme 
promoters. 
 
Do more – the remaining available headroom is not at risk as this is recycled funding and not 
direct LGF grant, therefore there is no urgency to allocating this funding to schemes 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
This paper set out the current position of the LGF programme. The total expenditure of the 
LGF programme will continue to be managed so that it will not exceed the financial 
resources available.  
All funding needs to be fully spent (defrayed) by 31st March 2021. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications as a result of this paper. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
High risk schemes will continue to be monitored and reported back to the LEP and MCA. 
A report detailing delays due to COVID-19 has been prepared and issues are being 
highlighted to MHCLG and an extension to the LGF programme has been requested. 
However, at the present time no extension has been granted. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
None as a direct result of this paper. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 The LEP / MCA has a requirement to comply with MHCLG communication guidance. 
Compliance with these guidance requirements, form one aspect of the Annual Performance 
Review with government. A refresher on requirements is being issued to all Scheme 
Promotors, to confirm understanding and to ensure that the communications approach in the 
region is compliant.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

Page 153



 

 

 6.1  None 

 
Report Author  Sue Sykes 

Post AD – Programme and Performance Unit 
Officer responsible Gareth Sutton 

Organisation SCR Executive 
Email Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 0114 220 3442 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
 

Page 154



 

 

 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 The LEP Review – ‘Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships’ (July 2018) established 

criteria for the size and composition of LEP Boards. These criteria are reviewed and 
enforced by MHCLG as part of the Annual Performance Review of LEPs where failure to 
adhere results in a ‘requires improvement’ or ‘unsatisfactory’ grading as part of the Annual 
Performance Review process and could result in the withholding of funding. The 
requirements stipulate that Boards: 
 

  • Must have no more than 20 Members, although a further 5 Members may be co-
opted to provide specialisms as required; 

  • Must be constituted with a 2/3 majority membership drawn from the private sector, 
including a private sector Chair; 

  • Must have a minimum membership of a third of the Board being female, noting that 
co-opted members do not count for the data. To be compliant if the Board had a 
maximum Membership of 20 – 7 members would need to be female; 

 
 1.2 Following the appointments made in January 2020, and the ending of the terms of two 

members the pre-campaign position was as follows.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
To note the appointments to the LEP Board of 4 private sector members following the recent 
recruitment campaign, run in compliance with the requirements of the LEP Review. 
 
Thematic Priority 
 
Cross Cutting - Governance 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
This paper will be available under the Combined Authority Publication Scheme 

 
Recommendations 
 
Note the Private Sector Board Member appointments being made. 
 

05/11/2020 
 

Recruitment of Private Sector LEP Board Members 

Page 155

Agenda Item 8



 

 Male Female Total 

Private Sector 8 3  

Public Sector 3 2  

Total 11 5 16 

Co-opted Members 2 1  

Total 13 6 19 

 
This is not a compliant position in the context of the gender requirement.  
 

 1.3 Following further analysis of the metrics which saw a ratio of applications of 5:1 male 
/female (January 2020), the LEP Board approved that a future campaign be progressed 
which actively targeted female applications by: 
 

• Reviewing recruitment material to eliminate any gender bias in words and imagery; 

• Utilising Board Member networks to more positively advocate 

• Building into the process a webinar for existing LEP Private Sector Members to 
informally discuss the role and encourage applications 

 
The desire being to build a Board that goes beyond the minimum stipulated compliant level 
for gender and realises an ambition to achieve a more equitable representation on the 
Board. 
 

 1.4 The proposal outlined below updates members on the most recent campaign and seeks 
ratification of the recommended appointments.  
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 The summer campaign, whilst resulting in fewer applicants than the January 2020 
campaign, receiving 9 applications in contrast to 18 received in the earlier campaign, for 
the first time saw a greater number of applications received from females than males.  
 

 2.2 The proposal presented is to appoint two new appointed members and to appoint a further 
three co-opted members, and to amend the status of a current co-optee. 
 

• Cathy Travers 

• Karen Beardsley 

• Michael Foukes – co-opted member 

• Paul Leedham – co-opted member 

• Dan Fell – co-opted member 

• Angela Foukes - amendment 
 
A brief summary of the new appointees is shared in Appendix 1.  
 

 2.3 Subject to ratification the decisions above the membership is illustrated in the table below 
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

Page 156



 

   Male Female Total 

Private Sector 8 6  

Public Sector 3 2  

Total 11 8 19 

Co-opted Members 5 0  

Total 16 8 24 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do not appoint – this is not an option as it would lead to a non-compliant Board and result 
in shortages of knowledge and skills to contribute to the delivery of the LEP agenda 
 

 3.2 Do more – we have the opportunity to appoint an additional member, but it is not proposed 
to run a further campaign in 2020, but schedule this for if there are other changes in 
membership in 2021 due to terms of offices ending.  
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no legal implications. The appointments address the gender balance issues 
raised in the report earlier this year.  
All conflicts of interest are managed in accordance with the stipulated requirements for 
declaration of interest and recording of conflicts. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
The recommended appointments are made to address identified gaps in the knowledge and 
experience across the LEP Board when considered against the Context of the SEP and the 
RAP. This approach is seeking to mitigate the risks of a Board, that is unable to provide the 
breadth of thinking and challenge to take forward its economic plan. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The desire of the LEP Board is to see greater representation and diversity in its 
membership. Whilst some limited steps were taken in this latest campaign to strengthen 
gender balance a far more detailed plan is in development to be more proactive in the LEP 
leading work to promote greater diversity into Non-Executive positions across the city 
region. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 A press release is prepared to be issued following the LEP Board. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix A: Summary of appointees 
 

 
Report Author  Dr Ruth Adams 

Post Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer responsible Dr Dave Smith 

Organisation MCA Executive 
Email Dave.smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Page 157



 

Telephone 0114 2203442 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 

• Strengthening Local Enterprise Partnerships (MHCLG) 

• LEP Board Private Sector Recruitment Pack 
 

 
 
  

Page 158



 

Appendix A: Summary of all appointees recruited as a Private Sector Board Member in 
2020 
 

Summary  

Cathy Travers 

Managing Director of MacDonald’s UK and Europe Region, a £0.7bn business, 6000 people 
who operate in the built environment, advisory, transportation, water, environment and energy 
sectors. 
Working currently on a significant number of UK wide most important and complex 
infrastructure projects 
Professional background a Civil and Structural Engineer 

Karen Beardsley 

Managing Director, Rail Operations for Unipart Rail, working as a member of the Rail Board 
and the Unipart Group Leadership Board. 
Lead a team of in excess of 250 working across infrastructure, signalling and rolling stock 
providing a full portfolio of products, technology and supply chain solutions. 
Doncaster Chamber Non-Executive Director 

Michael Faulks 

Co-founder and CTO of Ioetec Ltd 
Specialisms in Smart City and Cyber Security 
Associate Lecturer SHU 
Advisor on Yorkshire Cyber Security Cluster (YCSC), North East Business Resilience Centre 
(NEBRC),  
Support horizon planning for the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) part of GCHQ 

Paul Leedham 

Managing Director, Matrix Energy Systems LTD (Sheffield and Worksop soon to move to 
Barnsley) 
Council Member, Technology Standards Council (Ground Source Heat Pumps) 
Associate Lecturer 
Winner of 9 Industry Awards linked to Renewable Projects and Air / Ground Source Heat 
Products 

Dan Fell 

CEO of the Doncaster Chamber of Commerce, representative of the CoC sector in SY and 
Director of Y&H CoC 
Awarded National Chamber of Commerce of the year 2019 
Chair of the Cast Theatre 
Recent Chair of the Doncaster UTC, Governor / Trustee of a Multi Academy Trust 

Joe Chetcuti 

Director and Owner Front, responsible for managing high profile company brands. 
Specialist in Creative industries, especially in destination management 
Recent Board Member of the Chartered Institute for Marketing (Regional) Board 

Angela Foulkes 

CEX of the Sheffield College 
Chair of the Sheffield City Regions CEX and Principals Forum - representative of the Further 
Education sector, 
Board Members Association of Colleges and SHU, DFE Colleges Improvement Board 
 

 
 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Purpose of Report 

To provide LEP Board Members with a general update on activity being undertaken by the LEP 
outside of the agenda items under discussion. 

 

 

 

 

November 2020 

Chief Executive’s Update 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1. Working Win 
Working Win - a scheme that supports employees who are struggling or off sick due to a mental or 
physical health condition - has secured a £500,000 funding boost to support a further 450 people 
until March 2021. This scheme currently has more than 6,000 participants in South Yorkshire.  
 

2. Quarterly Economic Review 
South Yorkshire’s Chambers of Commerce are working together with the LEP to combine and 
analyse quarterly business survey results. Their combined results are presented and shared at 
Covid Business Input Group meetings and help to aid understanding of changes in business 
sentiment. The Quarter 3 survey attracted a record 409 responses. The Quarter 4 survey for 2020 
is now open and runs until 23 November 2020. A link to the survey can be found on our website. 
 

3.  Mayor’s speech to Northern Conference  
On 22 October, the Mayor gave a keynote speech at the Great Northern Conference. He said that 
rather than being a reason to delay the levelling up of the North, the current crisis is the most 
powerful argument for accelerating it – and provides a unique opportunity to do so. However, he 
pointed out that the government needs to understand that its credibility is on the line, and that it 
must make ‘levelling up’ more than just a slogan.  
 

4.  Comprehensive Spending Review 
The Communications Team is managing a range of LEP communications and influencing activities 
ahead of the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review. Planned activities include thought 
leadership and commentary pieces in key business media, online and social media activities, and 
a letter to Government signed by local business leaders. 
 

5. Covid-19 Business Input Group 
 Following the decision to go into Tier 3, the Covid-19 Business Input Group scheduled an 

additional meeting, on Wednesday 28 October, to get the business view on where the region’s 
support should be targeted. This Group is playing an important role as it helps to shape the 
support that our businesses and residents need. It is chaired by Lucy Nickson and includes 
members from the FSB, MakeUK, CBI, Chambers of Commerce, the trade unions and other 
business groups.   
 

Page 161

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

November 2020 

Mayor’s Update 

Purpose of Report 

To provide LEP Board Members with an update on key Mayoral activity relating to the economic 
agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. The COVID pandemic and Tier 3 restrictions in South Yorkshire  

 
From Saturday 24 October, all four areas of South Yorkshire (Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham 
and Sheffield) entered the Very High Alert level of Coronavirus restrictions – also known as Tier 3. 
This decision followed extensive discussions with Ministers by local council leaders and myself. 
All those involved in these discussions recognised the gravity of the situation and sought to take 
the responsible route to ensure we save lives and livelihoods and protect our NHS. The latest data 
showed that more older people contracting the virus was leading to more people being admitted to 
hospital, with the number of COVID patients doubling in the last ten days. This meant that inaction 
was not an option.    
 
The additional restrictions come alongside additional support for South Yorkshire. This comprises 
£41m of funding, including £30m to support the region’s businesses, and £11m for local authorities 
to support public health measures such as Test and Trace to stop the spread of the virus. This is 
in addition to the financial support that has been announced by the Chancellor to support 
businesses in sectors that need to close and those that will experience reduced demand as a 
result of the measures.  
 
While infection rates vary across South Yorkshire, collective action was agreed as the only 
practical option to keep everyone in our region safe. If restrictions are effective, individual local 
authorities may be able to move to lower alert levels as soon as it is safe to do so, albeit involving 
consultation with national government. 
 
To exit Tier 3 as quickly as possible, it’s critical people in South Yorkshire follow the new 
restrictions in place. I want to thank everyone in the region for their perseverance.  
Our NHS staff have worked tirelessly throughout this pandemic to keep us all safe. We owe it to 
them to ease the pressure ahead of the toughest winter our health service will ever face. I know 
people will step up and do their bit. 
 
Detailed information on the restrictions is available in the government guidance. 
 

2. Unlocking the potential of South Yorkshire through additional investment   
 
The current COVID crisis is accelerating the already powerful argument to level up. The North has 
been hit hard by COVID; with more cases than other parts of the country, and around four times 
the hospitalisation rate of London.  
 

Page 163

Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-covid-alert-level-very-high


 

I re-stated the case to level up, in my speech at the Great Northern Conference on the 22nd 
October. The case for levelling up is undeniable. It is both a deeply moral case, and a deeply 
practical one. 
 
My goal in South Yorkshire is not just for recovery but a renewal that makes us stronger, greener, 
and fairer. I think we need that for all of the UK. 
 
Comprehensive Spending Review 
 
With the country’s finances facing unprecedented pressures in peacetime it was understandable 
that Government has decided to undertake a one, rather than a three-year Comprehensive 
Spending Review. Whilst this is disappointing and runs counter to what I and many others have 
been calling for, it is not entirely surprising. 
 
The challenge we face locally is that the Spending Review was the Government’s opportunity to 
give us certainty on our long-term funding settlement and to unlock additional investment in our 
economy. The LEP, MCA and I now have only limited discretionary funding available to support 
communities and businesses in the here and now. The MCA’s Members and I are committed to 
targeting our devolved funding to do what we can in the short-term, but I fear that we will have 
another twelve months of piecemeal and hand-to-mouth project funding.  
 
I will therefore continue to make the case for Government to provide the right package of support 
through the Spending Review to support South Yorkshire realise it’s potential. Top of the list for 
this is fully funding our Renewal Action Plan so we can give people, businesses and communities 
the support they need to build back better. But this will also require a fair funding settlement for our 
local authorities, public services and to literally keep us moving with funding for our public 
transport network.  
 

3. South Yorkshire Flooding Roundtable  
 
In October, South Yorkshire MPs, Leaders and I met with Ministers from Defra on flooding. The 
meeting, which also involved the Environment Agency, was constructive, focusing on the need to 
make our region more resilient to floods, keeping families and businesses safe. 
 
There was unanimous support from partners across South Yorkshire for delivery of our 
programme of 27 priority schemes, that will protect over 10,300 homes and 2,800 businesses. We 
now have a foot in the door with Government and I will continue to make the case for the full 
delivery of our programme that represents a step change in investment.  
 
Through the Spending Review the Government must make a start at unlocking funding for shovel-
ready schemes, making vital progress in enabling South Yorkshire more resilient to flooding, 
protecting homes and businesses from harm. 

 
 

Page 164

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mayor-delivers-speech-to-great-northern-conference/

	Agenda
	3 Notes of Last Meeting
	4 Renewal Action Plan Update
	Annex A – Thematic Board Priorities for RAP Implementation

	5 SEP Consultation
	Apendix 1 - Slides on Consultation
	Apendix 2 - Final SEP

	6 The Nuclear sector and opportunities in South Yorkshire
	Appendix 1 - Letter to LEPs and Councils from the UKAEA

	7 Programme Approvals
	8 Recruitment of Private Sector LEP Board Members
	Appendix A: Summary of Appointees

	9 Chief Executive's Update
	10 Mayoral Update

